
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

12 February 2019 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CABINET 

 

Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Cabinet on 
Wednesday, 20th February, 2019 at 10.00 am 

In the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 

Membership: 
 

Leader of the Council – Councillor Michael Cooper 
Deputy Leader – Councillor Aaron Spencer 
Councillors David Brown, Martin Griggs, Claire Rylott, Paul Skinner and Nigel Welton 

 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES                                                                                         (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 9th January 2019. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 15th February 2019. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING ITEM)*  
 

2   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 
(BTAC) (STANDING ITEM)  
 

3   PRE-APPLICATION PROTOCOL REVIEW                                       (Pages 7 - 26) 
 

 A report by the Growth Manager 
 

Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Michael Cooper 
 

4   DEFINING COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY GROUPS                 (Pages 27 - 30) 
 

 A report by the Head of Regulatory Services. 
 

Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Michael Cooper 
 

5   BTAC PLAY AREA RECOMMENDATIONS                                    (Pages 31 - 40) 
 

 A report by the Head of Place and Space 
 

Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Claire Rylott 
 

6   BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 
2019-20  -  2023-24                                                                         (Pages 41 - 160) 
 

 A report by the Chief Finance Officer 
 

Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Aaron Spencer 
 

 
 

* In accordance with the Constitution, recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees referred to Cabinet (if any) shall be included at this point in the 
agenda (unless they have been considered in the context of the Cabinet 
deliberations on a substantive item on the agenda) within six weeks of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee completing its report / recommendations. 

 
Call-In –any decision taken by the Cabinet concerning an item on this agenda can be 
‘called in’ in accordance with the Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision 
notice being published.  It is expected that the decision notice will be published on                                   
Friday 22 February 2019.   Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in a 
decision is 5 p.m. on Friday1st March 2019 
 

 
This meeting may be subject to being recorded 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
the consideration of exempt or confidential items. 

 

Emergency Procedures In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are 
asked to leave the building via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to 

the Fire Assembly Point located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal 
Buildings. 

 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Tel. no: 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
NOTICE OF DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET ON 9 JANUARY 2019 

 
DATE OF PUBLICATION: FRIDAY, 11 JANUARY 2019 

 
DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN: FRIDAY, 18 JANUARY 2019 

 
NOTES: 
 
A COPY OF THE CABINET AGENDA HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED TO 
ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY FURTHER 
INFORMATION ON ANY ISSUE PLEASE CONTACT, IN THE FIRST INSTANCE, THE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR OFFICER NAMED IN THE RIGHT HAND COLUMN. 
 

 
 
MEETING OF THE CABINET 9 January 2019 
 
 
Present: 
Councillor Michael Cooper, in the Chair 
Councillors Aaron Spencer, David Brown, Martin Griggs, Claire Rylott, Paul Skinner and 
Nigel Welton 
 
In attendance: 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer, 
Head of Environmental Operations, Head of Corporate Services and Democratic 
Services Manager 
 
 
51   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 28 November 2018 were received 
and signed by the Chairman. 
 
52   APOLOGIES 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
53   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
54   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
No questions were received. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



 
 
55   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY (STANDING 

ITEM)* 
 

There were no recommendations from the overview and scrutiny committees. 
 
56   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

(BTAC) (STANDING ITEM) 
 

There were no recommendations from the Boston Town Area Committee.  

 
57   CABINET BUDGET SETTING REPORT 2019.20 

 

 
DECISION 
 
That the draft budget and associated documents be published for 
consultation, specifically:  
 

 The budget setting report and associated policies and 
strategies 2019/20 – 2023/24, and  

 The Council Tax for a Band D property in 2019/20 be set at 
£189.09 

 

Portfolio 
Holder and 

Officer 
 
Cllr Spencer   

 
PJ  

 

 

 
REASON FOR DECISION 
 
Councillor Aaron Spencer introduced a report by the Chief Finance Officer which 
outlined the 2019/2020 revenue and capital position for the General Fund and the 
proposals for the setting of discretionary fees and charges, which would be published for 
public consultation prior to a final report being submitted to the Cabinet, and Council for 
formal approval, in February 2019.  
 
The Local Government Act 2003 introduced a requirement for the Chief Financial Officer 
to report on the robustness of the budget. The estimates had been prepared in a 
prudent manner, although it was highlighted that there were a number of elements 
outside of the Council’s control. These had been identified within the report and would 
be mitigated through the budget monitoring and risk management processes of the 
Council. 
 
Having taken advantage of the Government’s four-year settlement announcement, the 
final year of which was 2019/20, the Council was entering the period beyond that in a 
reasonable position taking into account the new financial regime from 2020/21 following 
the upcoming Fairer Funding Review, the proposed introduction of 75% localisation of 
business rates and the revised funding formula, although the recent closure of one of 
the largest local businesses highlighted the difficulties facing the economy. 
 
 

Page 2



Cabinet 
9 January 2019 

 

 
 

 
Whilst the recent budget had set out the Government’s overall public sector spending 
figure for the coming years, the 2019 Spending Review would allocate resources 
between government departments, providing councils with a better understanding of the 
likely resources available in the medium term.  The changes meant that there would be 
additional risks to future funding levels which would require careful management.  
Therefore, the financial position modelled in the report on a current basis, could result in 
a rather different position by the end of the forecast period.  The new Council to be 
elected in May 2019 would need to be clear about its priorities and make resource 
allocation decisions accordingly.  
 
It was noted that there were significant areas of uncertainty in the coming years, 
including the impacts of the Brexit process, local government funding changes, and the 
2017 Business Rate revaluation outcomes locally. The Council had robust risk 
management processes in place and, alongside the quarterly performance reporting, 
would update the likely future impacts as the situation became clearer. 
 
In developing the Council’s budget proposals for 2019/20, it had managed inflationary 
pressures on operational costs and pressures on some areas of income collection.  
Areas where net budget reductions had been delivered to produce a balanced budget 
included Leisure Services and Planning. 
 
In order to deliver a balanced budget beyond 2019/20 and develop proposals for a 
secure medium term financial position the Council would seek innovative opportunities 
to achieve the annual budget reductions required without adversely affecting service 
delivery or compromising on its priorities.  Reports would be presented for deliberation 
and approval as projects were worked up, which would mean a refresh of the 
Transformation Programme once the future funding position became clearer. 
 
The following key proposals contained within the budget report were noted by Cabinet 
as part of the introduction: -  
 

 A rise in Council Tax of just below 3% with Band D council tax being £189.09; 

 A balanced budget for 2019/20 after a reduction in Revenue Support Grant of 
almost £400,000, incorporating on-going savings of £312,000 from the 
Transformation Programme and an increase in expected fees from planning 
income and leisure; 

 Projected budget gap of £0.9m by 2023/24 representing a significant challenge 
for the Council in maintaining service provision to the most vulnerable;  

 The government’s plan to localise 75% of business rates by 2020 would result in 
the council’s resources coming solely from council tax, business rates and fees 
and charges. This would have significant risks attached to it and there remained 
numerous uncertainties on the details within the proposal; 

 In 2019/20 the Council would be part of a business rates pool across Lincolnshire 
following the unsuccessful bid for 75% localisation pilot status;  

 New Homes Bonus tapering down from 2020 to nil in 2023/24; 

 Boston Town Area Committee was due to meet on 9 January to consider the 
requirements for the Special Expense Account for 2019/20; 

 A sustainable and affordable capital programme had been formulated and the 
revenue consequences built into the revenue budget;  

Page 3



 The capital programme showed a diminishing programme in future years as 
resources became scarcer, although the Controlling Migration Fund monies had 
enabled investment in leisure facilities.  The programme recognised that funds 
would be required to renew the refuse fleet, the exact timing would be 
incorporated into future reports;  

 Majority of fees and charges were not proposed to be increased for 2019/20;  
 
Questions were asked regarding the projected income for garden waste collection 
following the Government’s announcement of proposals to make such collections a 
statutory obligation, which would have a significant impact on the Council’s income 
stream.  In response the Portfolio Holder for Finance confirmed that the income was 
only projected until 2023, which was the year the Government’s strategy was proposed 
to be introduced and mitigating plans would be considered as far ahead as possible. 
 
Concern was raised relating to the proposal to increase some charges for bulky waste 
collection as it was felt this could have a detrimental effect on the Council’s campaign to 
combat fly tipping.  Cabinet was reminded that the budget papers were being 
considered for consultation purposes and if comments were received on any proposals 
contained in the draft budget they would be taken into account when considering the 
final budget plans in February 2019.  Any significant variances in income or service 
requests would be highlighted as part of the quarterly monitoring reports and, if 
necessary, reviewed in year.  
 
The draft budget would be published on the Council’s website for consultation with all 
stakeholders, including the local business community.  In addition Members would be 
consulted through various forums including the Corporate and Community Committee, 
and Audit and Governance Committee on the governance aspects of the budget 
preparation.  Following the consultation process comments received would be taken into 
account in preparing and recommending the proposed budget for Cabinet to review on 
20 February and for formal approval to Council on 28 February 2019. 
 
In summing up the Finance Portfolio holder commented that the uncertainty facing the 
authority going forward had never been faced before and it was difficult to plan past 
2020.  However, the cost of providing services was known and the worst case scenario 
would be planned for. 
 

 

 
OTHER OPTIONS OR ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  
 
None. 

 

 
RECORD OF ANY CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
 
None. 

 

 
RECORD OF ANY DISPENSATION GRANTED 
 
None. 

Page 4



Cabinet 
9 January 2019 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 10.20 am 
 

 

Signed by the Chief Executive  
 
       
 
 

DATE 

 
 

 
 

 
These decisions will come into force (and may then be implemented) on the expiry of 
five clear working days after the date of this notice UNLESS the decisions are 
subjected to the Call-In procedure or are starred minutes requiring Full Council 
approval.  
 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 20 FEBRUARY 2019 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF THE PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE PROCESS  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR MICHAEL COOPER 

REPORT AUTHOR: GROWTH MANAGER 

EXEMPT REPORT?        NO 

 

SUMMARY 
 
In July 2015, Planning Committee reviewed the practice of charging for Pre-application 
Advice following its introduction in July 2011.  The Pre-application Advice Protocol includes 
a scale of charges for the service.  These were last updated in November 2014 following 
approval by Cabinet. 
 
This report satisfies the ongoing commitment to monitor and review the Protocol and is 
accompanied by a number of appendices including a short summary showing the level of 
income and nature of Pre-application enquiries received.   The monitoring and review has 
assessed the Protocol and makes recommendations for this to be updated in light of 
budgetary constraints as well as suggesting amended pre-application fees.   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That the proposal to no longer provide informal responses to ‘Do I need planning 
permission...’ enquiries and requiring the submission of Lawful Development 
Certificates be approved.  

 
2. That a fee schedule of charges for larger schemes (typically over 51+ dwellings) be 

provided for those applications where the applicant specifically requests an enhanced 
service and where a Planning Performance Agreement is signed.   

 
3. That the Pre-application Protocol be updated accordingly.  

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Development Management service has a ‘pro-growth’ approach to development and it 
is delivering a successful service that is good value for money.  The aim of the Pre-
application Advice Protocol was to introduce a managed, clear, fee-paying and consistent 
procedure for obtaining planning advice.  At the time of the introduction, it was agreed that 
the process and fees would be reviewed regularly to ensure that it continues to serve its 
purpose and works effectively to provide a good quality service in line with budgetary 
constraints. 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

- Not requiring developers to submit Lawful Development Certificates for general 
enquiries relating to the need for planning permission and/or consents 

- Not increasing fees within the existing charging schedule 
 

 

REPORT 
 
1.0 Pre-application Protocol Review 
 
1.1 In July 2011 the Council introduced a process of charging for formal pre-application 

advice. This abolished both the previous ‘Duty Officer’ system in which members of 
the public could drop in to the Council offices without an appointment to discuss any 
planning related query with an officer, and also the free advice service for written pre-
application enquiries.  
 

1.2 The Pre-application Protocol has been adopted by the majority of Borough and 
District Councils across Lincolnshire.  Its intention was to ensure that Development 
Management provides a consistently high standard of advice within an agreed 
procedure, with the cost of delivering this service recovered by the fees charged 
rather than absorbed as a general cost to the service.  
 

1.3 The Council and Government recognise pre-application discussions to be of 
significant benefit to the applicant by identifying the planning issues and requirements 
at the earliest possible stage.  Pre-application discussions provide greater certainty 
for applicants and developers about likely outcomes from the planning process.  They 
also help to improve the quality of design, encourage greater public consultation, and 
enable the Council to process subsequent planning applications expeditiously. 
 

1.4 Since the Protocol and charge were first introduced, there have been further 
budgetary pressures across local government departments as well as pressures on 
service provision, with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2018 
requiring decisions to be made as quickly as possible.  The NPPF also supports ‘front 
loading’ of planning applications and encourages developers to seek pre-application 
advice.  Planning Performance Agreements (PPAs) should be considered by 
applicants and local planning authorities where this might achieve a faster and more 
effective planning service.  The NPPF (paragraph 46) identifies that PPAs are likely to 
be needed for applications that are particularly large or contentious.   
 

1.5 A Planning Performance Agreements is a project management tool which the local 
planning authorities and applicants can use to agree timescales, actions and 
resources for handling particular applications.  It should cover the pre-application and 
application stages but may also extend through to the post-application stage. PPAs 
can be particularly useful in setting out an efficient and transparent process for 
determining large and/or complex planning applications. They encourage joint 
working between the applicant and local planning authority, and can also help to 
bring together other parties such as statutory consultees. A PPA is agreed voluntarily 
between the applicant and the local planning authority prior to the application being 
submitted, and can be a useful focus of pre-application discussions about the issues 
that will need to be addressed. 

Page 8



 
1.6 It is anticipated that the Council will require the service to remain accessible and 

approachable and therefore it is recommended that a very general level of advice on 
development proposals are still provided over the telephone without incurring a fee.  
Should an enquiry require investigation, a more detailed assessment of policy, or 
research of the site’s planning history, then a fee is requested in accordance with the 
Pre-application Protocol.  
 

1.7 Additionally, there have been changes to legislation as well as changes to the 
Department’s name from Planning Control to Development Management.  The 
Protocol, Appendix A, has been amended to reflect such changes.   
 

2.0 Enquiries and Fees Received 
 
2.1 A variety of enquiries come into the Department; not all incur a fee or fall into the Pre-

application Protocol.  Appendix B shows that in 2017/18, 321 enquiries were logged.  
40 (12.5%) of these enquiries incurred a fee.  The income generated was £9,520.  Up 
until the end of July for 2018/19, 12 paid pre-application fees have been received 
from a total of 116 enquires.  The income received is £3,483.  The average income 
received since charging was introduced is £15,000 per annum.  There has therefore 
been a drop in the previous year and also, based on income to date, will be the same 
for 2018/19.  The income received since the service began charging is shown in the 
graph at Appendix C.   

 
2.2 The number of enquiries received last financial year and to date is fairly consistent.  

As reported previously, the data shows that developers are using the pre-application 
advice service repeatedly, which would suggest that the level of advice being given 
and the service provided remains of value to the customer - as intended.  It is also of 
relevance that in the majority of instances, the advice given when positive, generally 
results in an approval of planning permission further reinforcing the value of pre-
application advice. 
 

2.3 As part of the review, the amount of advice that is given to developers and agents 
outside of the above figures has also been reviewed.  As it is not recorded, it is more 
difficult to quantify, however it is evident that a number of developers will submit a 
planning application without seeking pre-application advice.  Then, if the development 
is refused may look to have an informal chat with the case officer to establish what 
amendments are required.  This is both positive and negative for applicants.  It is 
negative in that the advice will not be recorded and if another Officer deals with the 
resubmission there is no information regarding the advice.  It is positive in the Council 
being open and willing to provide advice and assisting developers.  However, for 
Officers it means that they are rarely able to properly consider the implications of the 
‘phone discussion due to not having sufficient information, or the enquiry will be 
received when they are busy doing other work. The service provided should also be 
fair for everyone with some developers benefiting from a service that others are 
paying for. The approach has therefore recently been amended so that if the enquiry 
requires more than a cursory yes/no answer that developers are encouraged to seek 
pre-application advice.  In the majority of cases, this has not raised any concerns.   
 

Page 9



Charge Review 
 

2.4 The review of fees, presented to Planning Committee on 18th September 2018 are set 
out within the Budget Setting Report as part of this agenda.  However, fees for 
schemes comprising larger numbers of dwellings, in particular, the fee charged does 
not meet the costs in providing the service.  This is due to the number of consultees 
that need to be involved with providing the advice and will include the Planning 
Officers, Growth Manager and frequently Environmental Health Officer, Planning 
Policy Officer, Consultant Architect, Lincolnshire Highways and so on.  In some 
instances, such as the Consultant Architect, the Council pays for their time in 
providing the advice although this is rarely recovered.  It is therefore suggested for 
large schemes (i.e. 51 plus housing units) an individual cost is calculated based on 
the number of hours it is anticipated will be required as well as individual costs for 
relevant consultees.  A schedule of charges for such developments is set out at 
Appendix D.  Such enquires are encouraged through the Planning Performance 
Agreement (PPA) route in line with the National Planning Policy Framework.   
 
Charging for ‘Do I need permission’ enquiries 
 

2.5 A large proportion of these enquiries received relate to the need (or otherwise) for 
planning permission and other consents (i.e. advertisements, listed buildings etc) i.e. 
permitted development advice.  These enquiries are recorded but do not incur a fee 
and have always been a mainstay of the free advice that is given to potential projects.  
This is outside of and different to the ‘pre-application’ process but the statistics in 
Appendix B provide a useful background for comparison.  Approximately 70% of all 
enquiries relate to informal opinions. 

 
2.6 The Council is somewhat unique in providing this service free of charge as the 

majority of authorities across England direct such enquiries towards the submission 
of a Lawful Development Certificate.  Legal advice has been received elsewhere that 
where legislation specifically exists for an action, in this case advising whether a 
development is ‘lawful’, that the lawful way of providing an answer is via the 
legislation. In this case, through the determination of a Lawful Development 
Certificate application. 
 

2.7 A Lawful Development Certificate (LDC) is a formalised route for a developer to 
establish whether or not their development complies with legislation.  The applicant 
receives a decision notice that is binding upon the Planning Authority.  There is a 
charge for this, set out by Government and for proposed developments is half the 
application fee.   
 

2.8 This compares to the informal advice that is currently provided.  This is not binding 
upon the Planning Authority whether or not it is provided in writing.   The Council’s 
response to these enquiries is caveated with the disclaimer that this is only an opinion 
and is not a substitute for a formal determination through the LDC process.   

 
2.9 The amount of work involved in providing the informal advice is almost the same as 

with a LDC application although the latter also has a site visit undertaken.  However, 
as the advice is not binding, enforcement action could still be taken by the Council.  It 
is for this reason, as well as there being a legislative route in order to obtain the 
answer, that most Councils no longer provide this service.  There have been 
instances where people have undertaken building works following informal advice 

Page 10



that permission was not required, later being advised that permission is required.  In 
some instances enforcement action has been taken which can result in reputational 
damage.  Very few planning authorities across the country now provide these 
informal opinions as they do not have any legal basis.   
 

2.10 Approximately 230 informal opinions are provided each year of which approximately 
110 relate to householder enquiries.  If the 230 applications had been submitted as a 
LDC, at least £27,000 in income would have been received.  This sum is calculated 
on the basis of the fee for householder proposals, which is the application type with 
the lowest fee at £117 (being half the full householder application fee).  Any other 
LDC application would incur a higher fee.  In reality, many of those seeking informal 
advice would probably choose to not apply for a LDC which would affect the income, 
but the Council would benefit from Officers not spending unpaid time dealing with the 
enquiries.   
 

2.11 At the time of writing the previous report there was concern, although it was 
acknowledged that there was no evidence, that “...introducing a fee could potentially 
increase unauthorised development and uses due to the authority not being 
accessible for general advice..”.  However, other councils who do not provide informal 
advice have not found this to be the case.   
 

2.12 It is therefore recommended that the Council no longer provides informal advice and 
instead directs the public to either submit a Lawful Development Certificate for formal 
determination as well continuing to direct householders to the Interactive House on 
the Planning Portal website 
(https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200125/do_you_need_permission/90/interactiv
e_house).  

 
3.0 Response times 
 
3.1 The Pre-application Protocol currently states that we will endeavour to respond to the 

majority of enquiries within 21 days.  Excluded from these timeframes are large 
schemes which are normally subject to Planning Performance Agreements and by 
their very nature require a significant amount of work from a number of different 
partners.   

 

 
2017-2018 April 2018 to end of July 2018 

Days Total Number 
of Enquiries 

Percentage Total Number 
of Enquiries 

Percentage 

>42 30 9.1% 11 10.8% 

0-21 215 65.3% 61 59.8% 

22-42 84 25.5% 30 29.4% 

   
  

Grand Total 329 
 

102  

Average 
Number of 

Days 

 

19.65 

  
21.32 

 

 

3.2 The table above results show that in the last financial year and financial year to date, 
the majority of enquiries (>70%) responses have been dispatched within the stated 
timescale.  

 

Page 11

https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200125/do_you_need_permission/90/interactive_house
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200125/do_you_need_permission/90/interactive_house


3.3 In certain circumstances, particularly with major or more complex enquiries, the need 
to arrange meetings, carry out consultations and/or submission of additional 
information can mean that the 21 day target is not achievable.  This is explained to 
the enquirer when they first receive an acknowledgment. In such situations the case 
officer aims to provide an interim response or contact the enquirer to agree a revised 
timescale to suit all parties.  These circumstances are not addressed within the above 
figures. 

 

4.0 Customer satisfaction 
 
4.1 Since the last review of the Pre-Application Advice Protocol no further formal 

customer satisfaction information has been obtained by way of surveys.  However, 
applications submitted after pre-application advice has been given are generally 
determined in accordance with that advice.  There has been one instance where 
advice was given, however due to policy changes with weight being attached to the 
South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 2011-2036, the final recommendation (and 
decision) was contrary to the advice given. 

 
4.2 Since the last reports were presented to Committee and Cabinet, no formal 

complaints have been received in relation to the Pre-application Protocol procedures, 
fees, timescales or advice.  

 

5.0 Conclusion 
 
5.1 It is recommended that the Planning Committee resolve to Cabinet that the Council 

continues providing pre-application advice subject to the fee schedule listed within 
the budget report as part of this agenda.  A separate fee schedule for large scale 
developments i.e. those over 51 dwellings or subject to a Planning Performance 
Agreement is recommended as part of this report and the Pre-Application Advice 
Protocol is updated to take account of changes in legislation, guidance etc.  

 
5.2 It is recommended that the Council direct enquirers who wish to ascertain whether or 

not a development requires planning permission or not to a Lawful Development 
Certificate.  This will provide a legal binding decision as to whether or not the 
development is permitted development.   

 
5.3 It would appear customers are satisfied with the service that is being provided and we 

are considered to be accessible, approachable and good value for money. 
 
5.4 The reason for introducing the Pre-application Advice Protocol was to bring in a clear, 

managed and consistent approach to advice.  Officers consider that this has been 
successfully achieved and the current procedure is working well. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The proposal, if accepted, will likely increase the revenue received by the department in 
relation to providing pre-application advice as well as receipt of applications for 
Certificate of Lawfulness.  It is not possible to define the sum as this will be dependent 
upon the number of enquiries and applications received.   
 

 

Page 12



LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The provision of a pre-application advice service is non-statutory, and is provided at the 
discretion of the Local Planning Authority.  However, the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2018 highlights its importance and encourages it.  
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken. 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Pre-application Advice Protocol 

APPENDIX B Types of Informal Enquiries Received 

APPENDIX C Pre-application Fees Received 

APPENDIX D Fees Relating to PPAs and large scale developments 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report. 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
  

Name of body Date 
 

Planning Committee 18 September 2018 

Planning Committee 13 January 2015 

 
 

Page 13



Appendix A 
 

WHY IS PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE IMPORTANT AND WHY IS THERE A FEE? 
 
The Council welcomes and encourages discussion before those proposing development 
submit an application for planning permission.  In order that the Council can provide this 
discretionary service at this level and to a consistent and high standard, it has been decided 
that the substantial cost of providing this service should be recovered from those proposing 
development and should not fall as a general cost to the wider service.  The current 
statutory planning application fees do not cover the cost of pre-application advice. 
 
The Council considers pre-application discussions are of significant benefit to the applicant 
by identifying the planning issues and requirements at the earliest possible stage. Pre-
application discussions provide greater certainty for applicants and developers about the 
likely outcome from the planning process. They also help to improve the quality of design, 
encourage greater public consultation, and enable the Council to process subsequent 
planning applications more quickly. 
 
I AM ONLY LOOKING FOR VERY GENERAL ADVICE.  DO I NEED TO GO THROUGH THIS 
PROCESS AND PAY A FEE? 
 
The Council will continue to provide a general level of advice to members of the public about 
the planning process without the need to pay a fee.  For example, how to submit a planning 
application, how the planning process works, and what issues would normally be taken into 
account when a planning application is decided.   
 
It is not the Council’s intention to discourage development or to make professional officers 
inaccessible, but to give professional reliable advice in response to specific enquiries when 
a written opinion would be of assistance in return.  
 
Ideally, the officer who deals with your pre-application advice would become the case officer 
on the subsequent planning application.  This will assist consistency of advice and 
expeditious handling of the submitted application if it is the same character of development 
which was the subject of advice and if the pre-application advice has been followed.  Any 
subsequent planning application made following receipt of pre-application advice should 
therefore include a copy of or provide a clear reference of the pre-application advice you 
have received. 
 
HOW DOES THE PROCESS WORK? 
 
To give you constructive advice and greater certainty of outcome from the pre-application 
process, we need you to provide a minimum level of information that will help us to assess 
your proposal. This protocol sets out how we will deal with your enquiry and gives a 
checklist of the information that you could provide. The more information you provide the 
more comprehensive our reply will be. 
 
The advice that we give at any stage is given in good faith but it is not binding on the 
Council.  This is because there may be new information that comes to light during the 
consideration of a subsequent planning application where we have a duty to consult third 
parties or issues might be raised that had not been anticipated at pre-application stage.  
Also, some planning applications will be decided by the Planning Committee and not by 
Council officers under delegated powers.   
 

Page 14



Pre-application advice may also become less relevant over time as planning policies 
change. 
 
The Council considers it is important to seek the views of statutory consultees on a 
confidential basis.  This is in the interests of those seeking pre-application advice, as it will 
help to ensure that as many of the key issues as possible are identified at the earliest 
feasible stage in line with the National Planning Policy Framework 2018.  The Council will 
therefore consult statutory consultees, where necessary, unless you request it not to do so.  
However some statutory consulttees, such as the Environment Agency, have their own 
charge for pre-application advice.  In these cases, the Council will not consult with them and 
the written advice will reflect this.   
 
WHAT TYPE OF ENQUIRY CAN I SUBMIT? 
 
STAGE ONE –THE PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
Dependent upon your needs, you may wish to adopt a two-stage approach to seeking pre-
application advice.  This does not affect the fee, Stages One and Two are dealt with 
together as appropriate but sometimes we receive very detailed proposals at the pre-
application stage where the principle of development is in conflict with planning policy.  In 
order to only establish whether the principle of development is acceptable we require the 
following minimum information: 
 

 Identify the location/address of the site. 
 A basic plan of the site and your proposals 

 
One of the common questions that we are asked at this stage is “how many houses could 
we get on the site?” or we may be told “my client needs to get six houses on the site”. We 
will be unable to provide this level of detailed advice without significantly more information. 
 

Sometimes, for example on a sensitive site in a conservation area, we may not be able to 
advise on the principle of development without the additional information referred to under 
stage two below. We will inform you if this is the case. 
 
STAGE TWO – THE DETAIL 
 
Stage two of the process relates to matters of detail such as the layout, design, scale or 
density of development and you may wish to go straight to this level of information. 
 
Accurate site survey plans and tree condition surveys (where applicable) will be required if a 
planning application is to be submitted. Therefore, such survey plans are likely to be useful 
to you in the process of designing a scheme too. 
 
You should prepare draft design principles in a Design and Access Statement for the site 
based on the findings of the site survey work and to explain the design approach. Guidance 
produced by CABE in ‘Design and Access Statements: How to Write, Read and Use them’ 
can be useful. 
 
Once you have gone through the above checklist you should be in a much better position to 
begin designing your scheme. This is when you should approach us to seek advice. 
 

Page 15



For schemes other than householder proposals such as extensions, the Council will expect 
the following to have been undertaken and provided before detailed pre-application advice 
can be offered: 
 
Site Survey and Analysis 
 
(i) A location plan identifying the site should be provided to a scale of 1:1250 or 1:2500 

(photographs of the site are also helpful) 

(ii) An accurate survey of the site including the buildings and features within and 
surrounding the site (for example trees on adjacent land but close to the site boundary) 
and an analysis of the constraints and opportunities of the site should always be 
undertaken. The analysis should also include: 

(a) identification of existing and proposed character areas including views into and 
out of the site; 
(b) accurate site levels; 
(c) an assessment of the impact of the proposed development on natural features 
and trees located within and adjacent to the site 

 
Plans of the Proposed Development 
 
Plans showing the layout of the proposed development at a scale of 1:200 or 1:500 for large 
schemes including an indication of the size and scale of development and how this will 
relate to any existing and retained features and site levels. 
 
 
 
 
 
Supporting Statement 
 
Your detailed proposal should ultimately be accompanied by a supporting statement to 
explain and justify the design approach chosen. The extent to which these indicative 
requirements are necessary will depend upon the nature of the proposal and they are given 
here as a guide rather than a list of required submissions before we will accept your enquiry. 
The supporting statement could include an explanation of: 

(i) How the proposal satisfies the ‘Sequential’ and where necessary the ‘Exception’ test of 
the National Planning Policy Framework 2018 for development in areas of flood risk, 
reference to the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2017) and what mitigation 
measures are proposed. 

(ii) How the proposal accords with planning policies. 

(iii) How the scheme relates to and reinforces local distinctiveness. 

(iv) How the proposal is appropriate for the site in terms of the amount of development 
proposed. 

(v) If existing community services and facilities (including foul and surface water drainage, 
schools, roads, open space, sporting and recreational facilities) have the capacity to support 
the proposed development or what is proposed to ensure that capacity can be increased. 

Page 16



For example, how the proposed development can be safely accessed from the nearest 
public highway and how any adverse impacts upon the local highway network, resulting 
from the proposed development, may be mitigated 

(vi) How the proposal will not harm any archaeological or ecological interests. 

(vii) How the development will promote sustainable drainage and foul water methods 
(SuDS), deal with the effects of climate change or any history of site contamination. 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
Affordable housing is highlighted as a priority within the Boston Community Plan 2008 – 
2018 and Lincoln’s Sustainable Communities Strategy 2008-2023.  The Boston Community 
Plan 2008 – 2018 and The Lincolnshire Housing Strategy 2017 – 202 both refer to a priority 
of increasing the supply and availability of affordable homes.  Therefore, there will be no 
pre-application charge for schemes where funding is sought from Homes England.  In other 
circumstances, a scheme which proposes to deliver 100% affordable housing; is a rural 
exceptions site or where a Registered Provider is the applicant will also be exempt from a 
pre-application charge. 
 
HOUSEHOLDER PROPOSALS 
 
For those schemes that involve ‘householder development’ (‘ancillary development of an 
existing house or within the curtilage of an existing house’) the Council will normally expect 
you to do some preliminary work prior to any advice and guidance being offered please 
provide the following: 

(i) A site location plan clearly identifying the location of the site should be provided, 
preferably to scale. 

(ii) A proposed sketched layout plan (either to scale or including metric dimensions) showing 
the application property and its residential curtilage together with the house and curtilage of 
immediate neighbouring properties. 

(iii) A sketch of existing and proposed elevations (either to scale or including metric 
dimensions). 

(iv) Details of access and parking arrangements (if appropriate). 

(v) External photographs (Desirable). 
 
Change of Use 
For those schemes that involve a change of use the Council will normally expect you to do 
some preliminary work prior to any advice and guidance being offered, please provide the 
following: 

(i) A site location plan clearly identifying the location of the site should be provided, 
preferably to a scale. 

(ii) A proposed sketched layout plan (either to scale or including metric dimensions) showing 
the application property and its curtilage together with immediate adjacent development. 

(iii) A sketch of existing and proposed elevations where external changes are proposed 
(either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

Page 17



(iv) Existing and proposed floor plans clearly annotated specifying the use of each room 
(either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

(v) Type and nature of business along with hours of operation, estimated number of visitors / 
customers and staff. 

(vi) Details of access and parking arrangements (If appropriate). 

(vii) External / Internal photographs (Desirable). 
 
Listed Building Consent and Development within Conservation Areas  
For those schemes that involve Listed Building Consent the Council will normally expect you 
to do some preliminary work prior to any advice and guidance being offered, please provide 
the following: 

(i) A site location plan clearly identifying the location of the site should be provided, 
preferably to scale. 

(ii) A proposed sketched layout plan (either to scale or including metric dimensions) showing 
the application property and its curtilage together with details of adjacent development. 

(iii) A sketch of existing and proposed elevations where external changes are proposed 
(either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

(iv) Existing and proposed floor plans clearly annotated specifying the use of each room 
(either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

(v) Information should be submitted to demonstrate an understanding of the impact of the 
proposal on the building’s historic significance and / or the character of the Conservation 
Area. 

(vi) Details of access and parking arrangements (If appropriate). 

(vii) External / Internal photographs of key features. 
 
Residential Development 
For those schemes that involve Residential Development the Council will normally expect 
you to do some preliminary work prior to any advice and guidance being offered, please 
provide the following: 

(i) A site location plan clearly identifying the location of the site should be provided, 
preferably to a scale. 

(ii) Existing and proposed sketched layout plans (either to scale or including metric 
dimensions) showing the application site and its relationship to adjacent development. 

(iii) A sketch of proposed elevations (either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

(iv) Proposed floor plans clearly annotated specifying the use of each room (either to scale 
or including metric dimensions). 

(v) Details of access and parking arrangements (If appropriate). 

(vi) Photographs of relevant features of the site (Desirable). 

Page 18



 
Non-Residential Development 
For those schemes that involve Non-Residential Development the Council will normally 
expect you to do some preliminary work prior to any advice and guidance being offered: 

(i) A site location plan clearly identifying the location of the site should be provided, 
preferably to a scale. 

(ii) A proposed sketched layout plan (either to scale or including metric dimensions) showing 
the application property and its curtilage together with that of the adjacent development. 

(iii) A sketch of existing and proposed elevations where external changes are proposed 
(either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

(iv) A sketched detail of the proposal (either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

(v) Photographs of relevant features of the site (Desirable). 
 
Advertisement Consent 
For those schemes that involve Advertisement Consent, the Council will normally expect 
you to do some preliminary work prior to any advice and guidance being offered: 

(i) A site location plan clearly identifying the location of the site should be provided, 
preferably to scale. 

(ii) A proposed sketched layout plan (either to scale or including metric dimensions) showing 
the application property and its curtilage together with that of the immediate neighbouring 
properties. 

(iii) A sketch of existing and proposed elevations (either to scale or including metric 
dimensions), with the signage in situ. 

(iv) Details of type of illumination (If applicable). 

(v) A sketch of each individual sign (either to scale or including metric dimensions). 

(vi) Photographs of relevant features of the site (Desirable). 

 
HOW LONG DOES IT TAKE? 
 
We will aim to respond to pre-application enquiries within three weeks of receipt of all the 
necessary information and the appropriate fee being received.  More complex proposals, 
which require advice from external consultees or those requiring a site visit, may take longer 
to assess. If we cannot respond within this time we will contact you and let you know when 
you can expect to receive a full reply. 
 
Depending on the nature and scale of the development, pre-application advice will be 
offered by letter or email and may include meetings in person at the site or in the Council’s 
offices.  Essentially we will respond to you by the same method that you contacted the 
Council.  The case officer will judge the appropriate means of conducting pre-application 
discussions to provide you with constructive and relevant comments and advice to assist 
you in the submission of a planning application.  Site meetings cannot be offered in all cases 
particularly where there is little prospect of planning permission being obtained as a matter 

Page 19



of principle. Meetings about such development are time consuming and reduce the 
availability of officers to provide a satisfactory level of service to our customers. 
 
Sometimes we may recommend that you amend your proposals and a further meeting or 
site visit may be necessary. If as a result of changes, the proposal has changed materially, a 
new fee will be requested as if it is a new enquiry.  Likewise we do not wish to discourage 
very general investment or development inquiries and there would be no charge for an initial 
introductory meeting.  
 
Some developers have told us that they are wary of receiving advice and then the 
determination on any subsequent application going a different way.  The advice you receive 
cannot be regarded as being binding on the Council, or any consultee that may have 
contributed to it, since it is a confidential service and may not have been with full 
consultation from all statutory consultees or neighbours.  Clearly, if you have not followed 
the pre-application advice, you cannot expect the decision to follow that advice. 
 
However, in order to ensure consistency of advice, all advice will be signed off by a senior 
officer before it is dispatched.   
 
HOW DO I ARRANGE PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE? 
 
The Council has produced a simple form and checklist for you to complete. This is available 
from http://www.boston.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=3875 or 
 
Development Management – 
Boston Borough Council, 
Municipal Buildings, 
West Street, 
BOSTON PE21 8QR 
 
Telephone 01205 314305 
 
Email: planning@boston.gov.uk 
 
Once you have completed the form and gathered the information set out in stages 1 and/or 
2 above you should send this and the necessary fee to the address above.  The fee may be 
paid by calling the number below via credit or debit card or posting a cheque for the 
requisite fee payable to ‘Boston Borough Council’.  
 
Please note: Pre-application enquiries without the required fee will be returned to you 
without any action having been taken. 
 
For help on methods of paying the fee ring the Development Management team on 01205 
314305 or email planning@boston.gov.uk 
 
Once your request has been received it will be processed by the Council. Each pre-
application enquiry we accept is given a unique reference number and is allocated to a 
named planning officer. You may be contacted by the planning officer to request a meeting 
or a site visit, or further information to help us process your enquiry.  
 
If you need further advice on how to complete the form or about the pre-application enquiry 
process please contact the service through the contact details above. 

Page 20

http://www.boston.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=3875
mailto:planning@boston.gov.uk
mailto:planning@boston.gov.uk


 
YOUR INFORMATION 
 
Records in relation to pre-application enquiries are retained for a period of 3 years (+current 
year) in accordance with our Retention and Disposal Policy. For information regarding how 
we use and store your information, please refer to our Privacy Statement; 
www.boston.gov.uk/planning.   
  
PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE - FEES SCHEDULE 
 
The schedule of fees is set out in the table below: 
* Where a proposal covers more than one category of development the highest of the 
relevant fees will be charged. 
** All fees are subject to VAT at 20% 
 
THE TABLE WILL BE INSERTED IN HERE ONCE THE FEES HAVE BEEN AGREED 
 
EXEMPTIONS AND REDUCTIONS 
No fee will be charged for: 
 

 Proposals by parish and town councils and non profit making organisations  
 Proposals relating to the needs of persons with disabilities 
 Proposals solely for affordable housing as set out on p.4 of this protocol 

 
 

Page 21

http://www.boston.gov.uk/planning


Appendix B 
 

2017/18   

Count of Application Type    
 Total Percentage of Total 
AHC Advice 7 2.2% 
Application Advice 15 4.7% 
Do I need...? 113 35.2% 
Exempt fee category 2 0.6% 
Householder - Questionnaire/do I need? 107 33.3% 
NFA 32 10.0% 
Paid Pre-app 40 12.5% 
Resubmission 5 1.6% 
Grand Total 321  
   
18/19 - to end July   
Count of Application Type    
 Total Percentage of Total 
AHC Advice 1 0.9% 
Application Advice 1 0.9% 
Do I need...? 40 34.5% 
Exempt fee category 1 0.9% 
Householder - Questionnaire/Do I need? 44 37.9% 
NFA 17 14.7% 
Paid Pre-app 12 10.3% 
Grand Total 116  

AHC – Agricultural Habitation Clause 
NFA – No further action.  Pre-application requests where the fee was not subsequently paid.

Page 22



Appendix C 
 

Page 23



Appendix D 
 
Fee Relating to Developments Subject to Planning Performance Agreement or as 
identified within Appendix D as ‘additional fee subject to negotiation’.   
 

        2018-19 

Description     Fee Vat 20% 
Total 
Fee 

Planning       £ £ £ 
  

   
      

The following would be in addition to the cost for drawing up and agreeing the 
Planning Performance Agreements.  The list is indicative and some 
developments may require an assessment which is not listed below.  This will 
not prevent the local planning authority from seeking to recover its costs in 
these areas. 
  

   
      

The Local Planning Authority will, for each development, keep a record of the 
costs and/or hours worked for each issue and will either refund to the developer 
any amount overpaid, or will require further funds should the sum paid not 
cover the costs. 
  

   
      

The following charges are given for a development of 51+ houses and is 
indicative of the level and type of charges that could be incurred. 
  

  
        

Officer Time 
 

        

Senior Development Management Officer* 2,500.00 500.00 3,000.00 

Growth Manager 1,500.00 300.00 1800.00 

  
  

        
*These charges are on the basis of a Senior Planning Officer leading the 
discussions and four meetings. It is not anticipated that the Growth Manager 
would attend all meetings. Different officers / number of meetings might result 
in a different charge.  The appropriate officer to deal with a scheme will be 
determined by the Development Management Department. 
  

  
        

Assessments 
  

      
Viability 
assessment 

  
5,000.00 1,000.00 6,000.00 

Legal – re obligations/ 
advice  

 
500.00 100.00 600.00 

Marketing assessment 
 

1000.00 200.00 1200.00 
Daylight/Sunlight 
assessment 

 
1000.00 200.00 1200.00 

Economic/Employment Statement 1000.00 200.00 1200.00 

  
  

        

Consultees 
  

      

Environmental Health – 
 

      
- Contaminated Land 

 
200.00 40.00 240.00 

- Air Quality 
  

200.00 40.00 240.00 
- Noise 

  
200.00 40.00 240.00 

-Vibration 
  

200.00 40.00 240.00 
- Odour     200.00 40.00 240.00 

Page 24



- Lighting 
  

200.00 40.00 240.00 
- Health Impact Assessments 200.00 40.00 240.00 
Conservation – Heritage 

 
400.00 80.00 480.00 

Conservation – Biodiversity 
 

500.00 100.00 600.00 
Archaeology 

  
150.00 30.00 180.00 

Environmental 
Operations  
(bins/waste) 

  
100.00 20.00 120.00 

Policy 
   

400.00 80.00 480.00 
Housing Department (Affordable Housing) 833.33 166.67 1,000.00 
Structural Assessment of Building 500.00 100.00 600.00 
              

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: CABINET 

DATE: 20 February 2019 

SUBJECT: Defining Community and Voluntary Groups 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR MICHAEL COOPER - GOVERNANCE 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF REGULATORY SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Following a question to the Cabinet from a member of the public, officers were asked to 
explore the value and purpose of Cabinet defining the types of ‘Community and 
Voluntary Groups’ that the Council will formally recognise and support going forward.  
This report provides an officer recommendation to Cabinet.   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet resolve that:   
 
Only formally constituted organisations, ie those with a constitution (or other 
appropriate governing documents and rules, eg charity registration) and a valid 
bank account, will be eligible to receive direct monetary payment from the Council for 
any purpose agreed. 
 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The recommendation is clear and simple but still leaves the Council with the flexibility 
for example, to collect rubbish, make donations or provide reasonable equipment and 
PPE to non-formally constituted groups and organisations. 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
As the Council must never fetter its discretion, further prescription and therefore other 
alternatives are not considered appropriate as they would be likely to limit the Council’s 
ability to use its cash and wider resources to support groups and organisations who 
support local communities in the wider public interest. 
 
 

  

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



MAIN REPORT 
 

1 Following a question to the Cabinet from a member of the public, officers were 
asked to explore the value and purpose of Cabinet defining the types of 
‘Community and Voluntary Groups’ that the Council will formally recognise and 
support going forward.  Currently, the only ‘description’ of such groups, and 
indeed the only grant assistance offered by the Council, is set out and 
administered by BTAC through its small and large grant programmes.   

 
2 In this respect, the only definitions/requirements the Council, through BTAC, 

prescribe, are that groups and organisations are ‘formally constituted’.  Practically 
this means they must evidence that they have a formal constitution (or other 
appropriate governing documents and rules, eg charity registration) and a 
bank account. 
 

3 Through accessing a number of other Council’s websites, ‘formal definitions’ of 
community and voluntary groups do not readily appear.  However, one reference 
site highlighted to the author does go into some detail and defines community and 
voluntary groups (eligible to grant assistance) in the following way: 

 

 Formal.  If it has, a formally constituted character (excludes informal 
groups, households, families and friends). It may be a company limited by 
guarantee, a housing association, an unincorporated association, a friendly 
society, a Community Interest Company (CIC), a Social Enterprise or other 
not for profit organisation which has a bank account in the name of the 
organisation, with at least THREE signatories who are NOT related or live 
in the same household. 

 

 Private.  If it is not a part of government, established by statute or royal 
charter, or under a substantial degree of executive control by government 
(excludes universities and non-department public bodies); it may include 
consortia composed of local authorities and others (e.g. local regeneration 
and development bodies), if the consortium is formally constituted and, at 
the very least, given a name. 
 

 Self-governing.  If it has its own decision-making system and usually a 
formal constitution with procedures for accountability to independent 
trustees or its own members or constituents (e.g., excludes any so-called 
“self-help groups” which are in fact directly run by clinicians) 
 

 Non-profit-making and distributing.  If it does not distribute any 
surpluses to owners or members but spends them on serving its basic 
purpose (excludes commercial concerns but includes organisations which 
charge users or the public for services, undertake contracts for statutory 
bodies or operate commercial subsidiaries which trade and transfer profits 
to parent organisations).  It can pay reasonable out of pocket expenses to 
members and volunteers. 
 
 

Page 28



 Non-political.  It is not engaged in supporting candidates for political office 
(excludes political parties but includes campaigning and pressure groups, 
even though they are not eligible for charitable status e.g. Greenpeace, 
Child Poverty Action Group) 
 

 Voluntary.  It has an element of involvement of volunteers (some 
voluntary and community organisations appear to be entirely reliant on 
paid staff; however, their trustees or committee members may, in fact, be 
their only volunteers). 

 
4  Whilst this published definition is significantly longer than BTACs requirement, 

that LA’s definition goes on to say: 
 

While this definition applies to formal organisations (those with 
constitutions or rules and which probably are registered with the Charity 
Commission, local authority or intermediary bodies, etc.), less-formal 
groups based in neighbourhoods or local communities are not 
necessarily excluded. 

 
5  The paragraph above clearly leaves that Council with the flexibility to award 

grants/funding/resources to other groups that do not meet any or all of the six 
criteria within their funding parameters raising the question of what real value 
and purpose does such prescription have over BTACs simple criteria? 

 
6  What officers do not consider appropriate to recommend to Cabinet is adoption of 

an overly prescriptive or restrictive definition of the type of community or voluntary 
organisation the Council will work with and support in the wider sense as this 
may result in a loss of significant community support?  For example, the Council 
currently collect bags of rubbish in areas of the Borough collected by volunteer 
groups who do not have a constitution and who do not have a bank account.  
Whilst the Council does not grant fund such groups, it does expend additional 
resources on collecting the rubbish they pick up in the locality. 

 
7  The author would therefore recommend that Cabinet adopt the following position: 
 

Only formally constituted organisations, ie those with a constitution (or other 
appropriate governing documents and rules, eg charity registration) and a 
valid bank account, will be eligible to receive direct monetary payment from the 
Council for any purpose agreed.   
 

8  As the Council must never fetter its discretion, further prescription is not 
considered appropriate as it could limit the Council’s ability to use its cash and 
wider resources to support groups and organisations who support local 
communities in the wider public interest. 

 

 

  

Page 29



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications of adopting the definition proposed within 
the recommendation. 
 

 
 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Adopting the recommendation does not override or conflict any of the Council’s legal, 
equality or other duties. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None identified  
 

 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
CMT 
Cabinet 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

NONE  

  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers under Section 100 D have been used in the production of this 
report. 
 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
The report subject has not been presented to any other Council Committee. 
 

 
 

Page 30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: 

 

CABINET 

DATE: 20 FEBRUARY 2019 

SUBJECT: 
 

 

 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

RECOMMENDATION FROM BTAC - PLAY AREA 
IMPROVEMENTS - OUTDOOR GYM, TRIM TRAILS AND 
PLAY AREA SIGNS 

 

HEAD OF PLACE AND SPACE 

EXEMPT REPORT: No 

  

 

SUMMARY: 
 
Following the 2018 tour of play sites BTAC members requested the BTAC Sub Group for 
Open Spaces to consider potential play area improvements relating to outdoor gym 
equipment, trim trails and play area signage and report back to BTAC. This is part of a 
wider scheme for all BTAC Sites.  The budget is already allocated for this project. 
 
BTAC considered the proposed improvements at its meeting on 30 January 2019 and 
recommended approval, subject to Cabinet agreement for the expenditure as it 
exceeded the £10,000 limit. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the expenditure of £40,850 for play area improvements within the BTAC area be 
approved.  
 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To provide improved play opportunities and physical activity to residents and visitors. 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

Not to approve the expenditure for play area improvements. 
 

 

  

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



 

 

REPORT:  

 
1.0  INTRODUCTION: 
 
1.1 Following the 2018 tour of BTAC open spaces and play facilities, members 

established a Sub Group to develop plans for the improvement of play and physical 
activity facilities in the BTAC Area. Public consultation took place shown in 
Appendix A. 

 
1.2 The BTAC Sub Group met in 07/11/2018 to consider five quotations from a number 

different suppliers for equipment.  
 
1.3 The following areas were identified for new outdoor gym equipment and trim trail 

improvement; Burgess Pit and St John’s Park. 
 
1.4      Play area signage for all BTAC play areas. 
 
 
2.0 IMPROVEMENTS  
 
2.1 Burgess Pit: 
  
2.2 Table 1 – Outdoor gym equipment: 
 

Provider Improvements 

Great Outdoor Gym Company  Dips/Leg Raise 

  Chest Press/ Seated Row 

  Cross Trainer 

  Hand Bike 

  Spinning Bike 

  Gym Sign Post 

  Maintenance Kit 

  Installation 

  Surfacing 

  Delivery 

  

Total £10,000 

 
2.3      Burgess Pit: 
 
2.4      Table 2 – Trim Trail 
            

Provider Improvements 

HAGS SMP  Klondike Single 

  Cheddar Gorge 

  Angel Cascade 

  Jacobs Ladder 

  Installation 

  Surfacing 

Page 32



 

 

  Topsoil and Turf 

  Delivery 

  

Total £10,000 

 
2.5      St John’s Park 
 
2.6      Table 3 – Outdoor Gym Equipment 
      

Provider Improvements 

Great Outdoor Gym Company  Dips/Leg Raise 

  Chest Press/ Seated Row 

  Cross Trainer 

  Hand Bike 

  Spinning Bike 

  Gym Sign Post 

  Maintenance Kit 

  Installation 

  Surfacing 

  Delivery 

  

Total £10,000 

 
2.7      St John’s Park 
 
2.8     Table 4 – Trim Trail 
       

Provider Improvements 

HAGS SMP  Klondike Single 

  Cheddar Gorge 

  Angel Cascade 

  Jacobs Ladder 

  Installation 

  Surfacing 

  Topsoil and Turf 

  Delivery 

  

Total £10,000 

 
2.9      New Play Area Signage 
 

2.10   Cost for play area signage for St John’s, Burgess Pit, Shelton’s Field, Central Park, 
Woodville Road, Broadfield Lane and Garfit’s Lane Total £850. The design for the 
new signs is shown in Appendix B 

 
  

Page 33



 

 

3.0 Conclusion 
 

3.1 On the tour Members were pleased with the progress of improvements already 
carried out on BTAC open spaces and felt these had made a significant contribution 
to improving the quality of those spaces provided in the town and that the plans 
discussed for further development will encourage greater more positive use of 
public open spaces. 

 
3.2 It is anticipated that a future report will be submitted to BTAC by the sub group to 

provide cost details in relation to those improvements identified for 2019.  
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are outlined in points 2.2,  2.4,  2.6,  2.8 and 2.10 of this report.  
 
As the proposed expenditure exceeds the BTAC limit of £10,000 Cabinet approval is 
being sought.  

 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
The Council is required to conform to the requirements of the EU Procurement Directive 
and its own Contract Procurement and Procedure Rules Part 4 (H) of the Constitution. 
The Council is required to comply with the public sector equality duty. A full equality 
impact analysis will be undertaken at the appropriate time to ensure that any new 
equipment intended for procurement will consider the needs of all individuals. 
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None.  

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation on this proposal has taken place with the Chairman of BTAC and Councillors 
Martin Griggs and Paul Gleeson. 
 
BTAC considered the report at its meeting on 30 January 2019 and recommended 
approval subject to Cabinet agreement for the expenditure.  
 

APPENDICES 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Public Consultation 

APPENDIX B Design for play area signage – All Play Sites 

 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report. 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

BTAC – 30 January 2019 

Page 34



 

 

 
FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  
 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  BTAC play area improvements   
REPORT DATE: 30th January 2019 
 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
Revenue      
Burgess Pit      
GOGC 
HAGS 
ST Johns  
GOGC 
HAGS  
 

Signage  

10,000 
10,000 
 
10,000 
10,000 
 

850 

    

      

Total Revenue 
Cost 

40,850     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  Date:  
Total capital cost 
 

  BTAC 30.01.19 
 

Revenue cost 
 

£40,850    

Financial Services Comments 
There are funds allocated within the current BTAC reserves for open space improvements that 
have been carried forward from previous years of £40,950.  
 
The maintenance and inspection costs for the new equipment will be included in future budgets.  
 
Risk 
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
This FP is valid for 3 months 

from FP date 
If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 
If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 

be reviewed by Finance. 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A –  Report 1 - Public Open Spaces Consultation 

 
St John's 

 73% want kit 

 All who said yes want resistance gear 

 63% want cardio 

 36% want calisthenics 

Burgess Pit 

        70% want kit 

        All who said yes want cardio gear 

        66% want resistance 

        80% want calisthenics 

        1 wants all 

        1 wants it to be suitable for younger people 

 

Minimum user count 20 

Resistance gear 

Must avoid spot training (e.g. not all chest exercise) 

Bonus if it can be used at various fitness levels 

Needs to be enticing 

Needs to explain how and what it does 

If possible to be all inclusive, i.e. suitable for those people with a disability 

Robust maintenance plan 

Compound movements are better than isolation 

Cardio Gear & Calisthenics Gear 

Should try to be varied in movements 

Enable multi-fitness level use 

If possible to be all inclusive, i.e. suitable for those people with a disability 

Needs to explain how and what it does 

Robust maintenance plan 

Needs to be enticing 

Page 37



St Johns 

• Strongest focus on resistance with some cardio 

• Calisthenics as a bonus if we can squeeze some extra from providers 

Burgess Pitt 

 Strongest focus on cardio with some calisthenics 

 Preferably some form of rig to allow multi use 

 Resistance equipment as a bonus 

 18 only a couple of items 

 Movement such as squats or other multifunctional compound movement given higher 

priority   

 

 

Page 38



APPENDIX B – Play area signs 

 

 

On request from BTAC for new play area signs for all play areas, the following 

design was agreed by BTAC Sub group and will be used on all sites. Cost £850 for 

all sites. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET: 20 FEBRUARY 2019 
 

REPORT OF AARON SPENCER, FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
(Author:  Chief Finance Officer) 

 
BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 

2019/20 – 2023/24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO:  

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



Page 2 of 32 

 

 

CONTENTS PAGE 
 
SECTION CONTENT PAGE NUMBER 
 Portfolio holder introduction 3 
1 Executive Summary and Introduction 5 
2 Budget Assumptions 7 
3 Resources 9 
4 Spending Plans 18 
5 Council Tax Requirement 20 
6 Other Budget Issues 21 
7 Reserves 22 
8 Consultation 24 
9 Savings Targets / Transformation Programme 25 
10 Risk and Sensitivity 27 
11 Capital Programme 28 
12 Options 32 
13 Reasons for Recommendations 32 
14 Recommendations 32 
 
 
Appendices: 

  

1 Summary by Portfolio Area – Overall   
2 Summary by Service Area – Overall    
3 
4 

Corporate Charging Policy  
Fees and Charges 

 

5 Reserve Statement  
6 Asset Management Plan Commentary  
7 
8 

Capital Strategy – 2019/20 update 
Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24  

 

9 
10                           
11 
 

Pay Policy 
Links to consultation documents 
Public Consultation responses 
 
 

 

   

P
age 42



Page 3 of 32 

 

 

 
 

  

FOREWORD TO THE BUDGET FROM COUNCILLOR AARON SPENCER – FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
 

Times are still extremely tough for Councils across the country, as they play their part in assisting the national spending situation as 
the Government continues to reduce the national budget deficit. Using the Government’s figures, the real change in Boston’s Core 
Spending Power across the four years to 2019/20 is -20%, with grant reductions well in excess of this. Since 2016 this Council has 
used the refresh of its Transformation Programme to manage the local impact of reducing resources, and will have reduced its 
annual net revenue budget by over £2million in the period to 2020 as Government Grant is withdrawn. In 2019/20, further savings 
of £312,000 have been identified, ensuring a balanced budget is proposed. The Transformation Programme has ensured that the 
Council continues to provide the services it is required to by law, whilst also supporting the Borough’s most vulnerable residents 
and investing in the local economy. It will continue to strive to be as efficient as possible in all its work, building on partnership 
working where possible, whilst ensuring it maximises the income it receives. 
 
Having taken advantage of the Government’s four-year Settlement announcement, the final year of which is 2019/20, the Council is 
entering the period beyond that, with a new financial regime from 2020/21 following the upcoming Fairer Funding review, the 
proposed introduction of 75% localisation of business rates and the revised funding formula, in a reasonable position, although the 
recent closure of one of the largest local businesses highlights the difficulties that the economy faces. Whilst the recent Budget set 
out the Government’s overall public sector spending figures for the coming years, the 2019 Spending Review will allocate 
resources between government departments, giving councils a better understanding of the likely resources available in the medium 
term. These changes mean that there are additional risks to future funding levels which will require careful management. Therefore, 
the financial position for the Council, whilst modelled in this report on an as-is basis, may well turn out to be rather different by the 
end of the forecast period. The new Council to be elected in May will have to be clear about its priorities and make resource 
allocation decisions accordingly. 
 
There continue to be a number of significant areas of uncertainty for the Council’s finances in the coming years, including the 
impacts of the Brexit process, local government funding changes, and the 2020 Business Rate revaluation outcomes locally. The 
Council’s risk management processes are robust, and alongside the annual budget the quarterly performance reporting process will 
provide updates on the impacts experienced as things become clearer.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 43



Page 4 of 32 

 

 

 
 
Major local announcements during 2018/19 include the commencement of work on the £100m Boston Barrier which is expected to 
be complete by the end of 2020; progress with the Quadrant development; work towards adoption of the South East Lincolnshire 
Local Plan; the relocation of the Department for Works and Pensions, Lincolnshire Community and Voluntary Services and the 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau to the municipal buildings; and the approval by the Council of borrowing for the first time in a number of 
years as it looks towards the medium to longer term and how it might meet its capital spending priorities without further pressure 
being placed on already squeezed revenue budgets.  
 
In developing the Council’s budget proposals for 2019/20, it has managed inflationary pressures on its operational costs and 
pressures on some areas of income collection. Areas where net budget reductions have been delivered to produce a balanced 
budget include Leisure Services and Planning. 
 
In order to deliver its statutory budgetary duty from 2020/21 and develop proposals for a financially secure medium term, the 
Council will continue to seek innovative opportunities to achieve the budget reductions necessary to deliver balanced budgets 
annually without adversely affecting service delivery and compromising on its priorities, and reports will be presented for 
deliberation and approval as projects are worked up. This will mean a refresh of the Transformation Programme once the future 
funding position becomes clearer.  
 
In line with the Government’s referendum principles, the budget for 2019/20 proposes an increase in Boston Borough Council’s 
Council Tax of 2.99%. This will give an average band D Council Tax increase of just under 10 pence per week, with nearly 90% of 
households paying less than this.  This budget is designed to meet the Council’s challenges and responsibilities, and ensure that 
the best possible services continue to be provided to Boston’s residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 44



Page 5 of 32 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
 

 2018/19 2019/20 

Boston Borough Council Precept £3,435,810 £3,618,029 

Council Tax Increase 2.98% 2.99% 

Council Tax Band D £183.60 £189.09 

Government Funding (RSG, Specific Grants and NHB) £1,725,020 £1,973,550 

Boston Town Area Committee Special Expense Account * £654,694 £680,303 

Earmarked Reserves (at 1 April) £8.741m £9.820m 

 
*   The 2019/20 figure for Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) is the one recommended at its meeting on 9 January.  

 
 
 
SAVINGS REQUIREMENTS: 
 

 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – cumulative - 538 548 634 887 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – annual - 538 10 86 253 

P
age 45



Page 6 of 32 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report outlines the 2019/20 revenue and capital position for the General Fund and proposals for the setting of 

discretionary fees and charges. The purpose of the report is to ask Members to recommend the 2019/20 estimates (along 
with associated Policies and Strategies) and council tax level to the Council for formal approval, and for Members to be 
advised on the projected financial position through to 2023/24. The final settlement figures were published on 29 January 
2019, with no changes from those provisionally announced in December for Boston.  

 
1.2 The Local Government Act 2003 introduced a requirement for the Chief Financial Officer to report on the robustness of the 

budget. The estimates have been prepared in a prudent manner, although it should be recognised that there are a number of 
elements outside of the Council’s control. Assessing the projected 2018/19 outturn position informs the reliance we can 
place on the baseline we use for setting the 2019/20 estimates.  Officers believe the outturn for 2018/19 will be broadly in 
line with the budget.  Key risks have been identified in section 10 of this report and will be mitigated through the regular 
budget monitoring and risk management processes in place at the Council. 

 
1.3 This year’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is set at a time of continuing significant uncertainty, change and financial 

challenges for local government, with issues such as welfare reform, responding to reductions in Central Government 
funding (with a greater emphasis on business and housing growth), the 2019 Spending Review, and the commitment to a 
new funding regime from 2020/21 all contributing to the scale of the challenges the Council faces.   

 
1.4 There are also significant changes affecting business rates. Some have already been introduced (the part-localisation of the 

regime from April 2013 and the 2017 revaluation exercise) and others (the proposal to further devolve business rate incomes 
to councils and a reset of the baseline position) are yet to come into full effect. Their impacts include the positive financial 
effect of growth in the local rateable value on the Council’s resource base, but this comes at a price, with increased 
uncertainties surrounding the extent of appeals and the ability to accurately forecast income into the future. 

 
1.5 All of these changes create both opportunities and downside risks to the Council, and are reflected in the Strategy.  

P
age 46



Page 7 of 32 

 

 

2. BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 Table 1 – Assumptions which influence the five year financial strategy 
 

Assumption 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Budgeted inflation1 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Pay costs increase 2 2% from 
scp 12 

2% from 
scp 12 

2% 2% 2% 2% 

Full Time Equivalent Employees 3 271.1 262.9 261.1 258.1 258.1 258.1 

Pension contribution rate 4 26.2% 27.2% 28.2% 29.2% 30.2% 31.2% 

NI contribution rate 5 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 13.8% 

Return on cash investments 0.7% 0.9% 1.20% 1.35% 1.35% 1.50% 

Return on property funds  3.5% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 

Staffing levels 99% 99% 99% 99% 99%           99% 

Tax base 6 18,713.60 19,133.90 19,325.2 19,518.5 19,713.7 19,910.8 

Fuel cost rises1 8% 3% 3% 3% 3%              3% 

 
1. 0% used except for utilities/fuel where 8% has been used for 2018/19 due to revised contract prices and then 3% per 

annum thereafter reflecting the price risk for these areas and also taking into account any gains from both climate change 
and transformational activity by the Council which are likely to lead to reduced consumption. 

 
2. The pay increase for 2019/20 is based on the National Employers’ offer made to trade unions covering the period 1 April 

2018 to 31 March 2020.  Lower pay points are set at £8.50 per hour in order to continue to close the gap with the 
National Living Wage.  A flat-rate increase of 2% is included for higher pay points for 2018/19 and 2019/20.  A flat 2% 
has been included for 2020/21 onwards. 

 
3. It is recognised that some projects within the Transformation programme could potentially further affect staffing numbers 

in future years. Until business cases are worked-up it is not possible to make further assumptions on any changes.  
 

4. The pension contribution rate is based on an employer’s contribution rate of 16.6% for 2019/20 and 16.9% from 1 April 
2020, plus an annual monetary contribution.  Table 1 shows the equivalent % contribution rates, with a further 1.0% p.a. 
increase projected from 2021/22 as detailed in the pension triennial valuation report for April 2017. 

 

5. The National insurance contribution is included at 13.8%; however this may change over the five years. 

P
age 47



Page 8 of 32 

 

 

 
6. The tax base used for Council Tax setting is calculated as prescribed by statute, with responsibility for the setting of the 

tax base delegated to the Council’s Section 151 Officer.  The tax base for 2019/20 is 19,133.9 and for estimation 
purposes has been increased by 1% per annum thereafter. This may increase if the recent number of planning 
applications deliver additional Band D equivalent properties above the assumption, and will be reflected in the annual 
budget figures as appropriate. 

P
age 48



Page 9 of 32 

 

 

3. RESOURCES  
 

 Business Rates Retention 
 
3.1 Table 2 details the Council’s retained business rates for 2019/20, based on the final local government settlement, the final 

year of the four-year settlement period.    
 
3.2 Under the current part localisation regime, where the Council collects more business rates than the baseline set by Central 

Government, a levy of 50% is applied and paid to Central government.  A way to avoid this levy to Central Government is to 
pool business rates with a County Council, and, as in 2016/17 and 2017/18, Boston has entered into a voluntary pooling 
arrangement for 2019/20 with Lincolnshire County Council and some of the District Councils in the area (in 2018/19, the 
Council was part of a successful bid across the county to be a pilot for 100% localisation, but unfortunately was not chosen 
to be a 2019/20 pilot). 

 
3.3 The Government has announced that business rates will become 75% retained by councils by 2020, with proposals for a 

new funding system for local authorities due to be in place from 2020/21. Consultation papers on the localisation and Fairer 
Funding proposals were published with the provisional settlement (Appendix 10), and impacts will be reported as the regime 
is developed. Three yearly revaluation periods are set to be introduced from 2020. 

 
3.4 In addition to the 2017 national revaluation, a new procedure for appeals has been introduced. Information on its impact 

continues to be limited to date, and there is a possibility that the actual situation will be significantly different from that 
included in the forward estimates which may require the Council to adjust its forecasts in light of the outcome.  

 
3.5 The Council’s appointed auditors reported in their Report to Those Charged with Governance (presented to the Audit and 

Governance Committee in July 2018) that they considered the Council’s approach to be very cautious, and this was taken 
into account as part of the annual review of the likely sum needed to be provided. The outcome is that part of the amount 
previously held in the Collection Fund will be released to the General Fund as a one-off, and placed in Reserves to provide 
the Council with resource to enable it to help manage future risks. Table 11 in section 7 of this report sets out the revised 
position. 

 
3.6 As a consequence of the part localisation of the business rate regime the Council recruited a Business Rates Assurance 

Manager to ensure that the list is complete and accurate. The cost of the officer is funded from additional business rate 
income to the Council, and outcomes from that area of work are reported as part of the quarterly monitoring process, with 
significant positive impacts to the Council to date during a time when there were numerous challenges to the list.  

 

P
age 49



Page 10 of 32 

 

 

 
Table 2 – Business Rates 
 

     Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Retained Business Rates        11,714 7,904 8,364 8,534 8,628 8,628 

Tariff (7,959) (5,055) (5,156) (5,259) (5,364) (5,364) 

Pre Levy Income 3,755 2,849 3,208 3,275 3,264 3,264 

Renewable Energy (100% retained by Boston BC) 205 111 141 144 146            149 

Less net levy payment to Lincolnshire Pool - (257) - - - - 

Levy Account Surplus – Settlement Data - 41 - - - - 

Estimated Business Rates (Deficit) / Surplus  (395) 1,569 - - - - 

Equals Net Retained Business Rates Income 3,565 4,313 3,349 3,419 3,410 3,413 

 
3.7 The estimated business rates surplus for 2019/20 in Table 2 above is largely due to the reduction in the sum held in the 

Collection Fund’s appeal provision at the end of 2018/19, following a review of the likely sum required. 
 
3.8 In the 2018 Budget, the Chancellor announced support for retail businesses that reduces the amount of business rates 

shown in the table above for 2019/20 and 2020/21; compensating Section 31 grant money will be received by the Council to 
offset this. 

 
3.9 The future business rate projections are in line with the inflation indices used by the Government. To illustrate the potential 

impact should these rates not materialise, uplifts of 2% p.a. would reduce the Council’s retained business rates by 
approximately £120,000 by 2023/24. The annual MTFS refresh will provide updates on the projections, but they are included 
here to indicate some of the extent of uncertainties in the Council’s future resource base inherent in the localisation regime. 
Also, in the November 2017 Budget the Chancellor announced a change to the method of indexation for business rates, to 
CPI, the cost of which will be reimbursed to councils through section 31 grant.  

 

P
age 50



Page 11 of 32 

 

 

3.10 From 2020, the three-yearly revaluation basis could present risks to the Council’s future funding position, depending on its 
growth in relation to the rest of the country between revaluations and the details of how the regime will operate. 

Council Tax 
 
3.11 Since 2013/14, the Council has revised its exemptions and discounts for Council Tax to recover the reduced funding as part 

of the Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme, and on 21 January 2019 the Council approved its CTS scheme for 2019/20. 
 
3.12 The Council Tax element of the Collection Fund has been calculated based on the 2018/19 scheme, leaving a budget 

neutral position. This will be reviewed throughout the year, and collection rates assessed. The MTFS assumes an increase 
in the Borough’s council tax of 2.99% for 2019/20, then circa 2% p.a. thereafter. The surplus in 2019/20 is as a result of 
additional properties being built during 2018/19 above the estimated figure. 

 
 Table 3 – Council Tax 
   

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/21 2022/23 2023/24 

       No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

Council Tax base (Band D 
equivalents) 

18,713.60 19,133.90 19,325.2 19,518.5 19,713.7 19,910.8 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Council Tax Band D 183.60 189.09 192.78 196.56 200.43 204.39 

Annual Increase £ 5.31 5.49 3.69 3.78 3.87 3.96 

Annual Increase % 2.98 2.99 1.95 1.96 1.97 1.98 

Gross Council Tax collected  3,435,817 3,618,029 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568 

In year Surplus / (deficit)  110,710 29,610 - - -  

TOTAL 3,546,527 3,647,639 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



Page 12 of 32 

 

 

 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Section 31 Grants 
 
 Table 4 – RSG and Section 31 Grants 
 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revenue Support Grant - 342 - - - - 

Rural Services Grant - 85 - - - - 

Brexit Preparation Grant - 17 17 - - - 

S31 NNDR reliefs including SBRR 1,113 808 715 729 744 750 

Total Received 1,113 1,252 732 729 744 750 

 
3.13 Following the announcement of four year figures in 2016/17, significant reductions of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) have 

occurred in recent years, and from 2020/21 it has been phased out as a result of the extension of the localisation of business 
rates regime.  

 
3.14 As part of the plans for further local retention of business rates, Revenue Support Grant has been removed from 2020/21 as 

have all other support grants from Government.  Business rates reliefs have been left in for illustrative purposes until more 
detail is known. 

 
3.15 In March 2016, the Government announced it would make the exempting of small businesses from business rates 

permanent, and the table above reflects the estimated reimbursement from government for Boston’s share of this cost. 
 
3.16 As part of the 2016/17 four year settlement, the Government gave some recognition to the additional costs of providing 

services in rural areas, with affected councils receiving amounts of Rural Services Grant over the period to 2019/20; 
Boston’s element is shown in the table above (in 2018/19 this was incorporated into the pilot localisation figures). 

 
3.17 The Government announced in late January 2019 that £56.5m was being made available to councils nationally to help them 

deal with Brexit, with Boston’s share being £17,500 for each of the 2018/19 and 2019/20 years. Further announcements are 
expected as the process progresses. 

P
age 52



Page 13 of 32 

 

 

 
 
New Homes Bonus 
 
3.18 The New Homes Bonus (NHB) was introduced in order to provide a clear incentive to local authorities to encourage housing 

growth in their areas.  The Government then published a consultation paper in December 2015 “New Homes Bonus: 
Sharpening the Incentive” in order to make changes to the scheme from a system with no controls to one that is cash-limited 
each year.  Key changes introduced in 2017/18 were: 

 A move to four-year payments for both existing and future NHB allocations from 2018/19. 

 Introduction of a national baseline of 0.4%, for 2017/18 and 2018/19, below which allocations will not be made.   

 Government will also retain the option of making adjustments to the baseline in future years to reflect significant and 
unexpected housing growth.   

 Allocations will continue to be un-ring fenced. 
 
3.19 For 2019/20, the Government has retained the 0.4% baseline, and announced that New Homes Bonus is planned to be 

phased out over the next four years.  
 

Table 5 – New Homes Bonus estimates  
 

  
Boston BC share 

 Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

TOTAL 613 721 572 482 289 0 

 
3.20 It is expected that the Government will introduce a revised future incentive for councils to promote local growth, although no 

details have been published yet. 
 
3.21 In line with the Council’s existing policy, the MTFS assumes that 50% of NHB will be transferred into the Capital reserve 

each year, with the remaining 50% used to support the Council’s revenue budget until 2023/24 where a nil receipt of New 
Homes Bonus is assumed. 

 

 

P
age 53



Page 14 of 32 

 

 

 

Fees and Charges 
 
3.22 Income from fees and charges is an important source of revenue for the Council, representing over 12% of the gross income 

budgeted in 2019/20. Charges have a central role to play in service delivery, raising income, controlling access, responding 
to competition, funding investment and affecting behaviour. 

 
3.23 For 2019/20, there are no significant fee increases from 1 April 2019. The fees and charges charged in 2018/19 are shown 

at http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s4278/Appendix%204%20-%20Fees%20and%20Charges.pdf 
 
3.24 As part of the annual review, and following the installation of new gym equipment at the Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre, 

budgeted income levels have been increased to reflect expected volumes.   
 
3.25 The Planning fee income budget has been revised upwards following the recent increase in the number of applications 

received, and expected to be received in the coming year, along with a new charge for the issuing of a certificate of lawful 
use. 

 
3.26 Fees and charges are set within the framework of the Corporate Charging Policy, which is attached at Appendix 3.   
 
3.27 As part of the broader moves to commercialisation across the Council, in line with many other authorities as they respond to 

the increasing challenges of diminishing resources, it is recognised that, in accordance with the Corporate Charging Policy,   
in-year variances to the approved fees and charges on a trial basis, within the approved budget framework, can be made. 
Any such changes will then be reported in the next quarterly monitoring report.  

 
3.28 Appendix 4 shows the proposed fees and charges to be charged from 1 April 2019. Once these changes have been 

approved the full list of Council fees and charges applicable for 2019/20 will be published on the Council’s website. 
 
3.29 The following table shows the main income budgets from fees and charges for Boston, before any consideration of possible 

increases beyond 2019/20 as part of balancing net budget and resources in those years.  At this time assumptions for the 
majority of these areas are that income levels will not increase within the period of the MTFS, and this will be revisited as 
part of the annual Budget and Strategy refresh. Given the scale of Transformation savings required in the coming years, it is 
likely that future years will see rises in some fee areas. 

 
 

P
age 54

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s4278/Appendix%204%20-%20Fees%20and%20Charges.pdf


Page 15 of 32 

 

 

 
 
 
Table 6 – Fees and charges income budgets 
 

Budget Area 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Leisure income 826 961 996 996 996 996 

Building control 184 183 183 183 183 183 

Licensing 121 122 122 125 125 125 

Land charges 99 99 99 99 99 99 

Bereavement 803 828 852 876 900 925 

Garden Waste 400 408 409 409 409 409 

Trade waste 188 251 259 266 274 282 

Planning fees 465 515 465 465 465 465 

Parking 987 990 993 995 995 995 

Markets 180 160 160 160 160 160 

Other small areas 206 169 208 211 241 243 

TOTAL FEE INCOME 4,459 4,686 4,746 4,785 4,847 4,882 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55



Page 16 of 32 

 

 

 
 
 
Other Income 
 
3.30 The Council also receives a number of other forms of income, and these are shown in the following table: 
 
Table 7 – Other Income 
 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Housing benefit subsidy 17,989 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 

Council tax and Housing benefit administration 
grant 338 323 323 323 323 323 

Specific government grants 134 119 7 6 5 4 

Housing benefit overpayments 80 80 80 80 80 80 

Court income 197 197 197 197 197 197 

Rental income 572 617 618 619 620 621 

NNDR admin grant 91 92 92 92 92 92 

Other Contributions (from external bodies for 
sharing of services and posts) 689 868 883 902 917 933 

Other Income 867 915 978 978 1,038 898 

Total Other Income 20,957 21,058 21,025 21,044 21,119 20,995 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



Page 17 of 32 

 

 

 
 
 
External Funding opportunities 
 
3.31 With the continuing reduction in resources available to the Council it will be important to seek and secure funds from external 

sources wherever possible, in accordance with the Council’s priorities. For example, the announcement during 2018/19 of 
the Council’s successful bid, in conjunction with partners, in relation to the Controlling Migration Fund.  The Council’s 
revenue element is shown within specific government grants for 2019/20. 

 
Summary  
 
Table 8 – All sources of income 
 

Budget Area 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Business rates 3,565 4,313 3,349 3,419 3,410 3,413 

Revenue Support Grant - 342 - - - - 

Other Grants  1,113 910 732 729 744 750 

New Homes Bonus 613 721 572 482 289 - 

Total Government Resources 5,291 6,286 4,653 4,630 4,443 4,163 

Council tax – Boston BC precept, including 
Collection Fund adjustment 3,547 3,648 3,726 3,837 3,951 4,070 

BTAC Special Area Expense 655 680 706 727 749 772 

Fees & charges 4,459 4,686 4,746 4,785 4,847 4,882 

Other income 20,957 21,058 21,025 21,044 21,119 20,995 

Interest Receivable on Investments 117 711 761 800 822 869 

Contribution from Reserves 332 2,623 406 210 80 20 

Gross budgeted income 35,358 39,692 36,023 36,033 36,011 35,771 

 
 
 

P
age 57



Page 18 of 32 

 

 

 
 
 
4. 2019/20 SPENDING PLANS 
 
4.1 The following table shows the estimates by type of expenditure/income split over the CIPFA standard classification for the 

next five years. The paragraphs below the table provide information on budget variances between years. Details of the 
overall position are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. 

 
 Table 9 – Estimates by expenditure/income  
 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Employees 9,186 9,555 9,721 9,871 10,041 10,202 

Premises 1,254 1,360 1,408 1,426 1,461 1,487 

Transport 512 552 565 580 597 614 

Supplies and Services 2,485 2,801 2,628 2,684 2,723 2,715 

Third Party Payments 129 201 152 154 155 155 

Drainage Board Levies  1,884 1,899 1,918 1,937 1,956 1,976 

Transfer Payments 17,989 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 17,847 

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 798 1,999 392 199 80 20 

Interest on Borrowing 111 500 500 500 500 500 

Contribution to Reserves 1,010 2,978 1,430 1,383 1,285 1,142 

Savings Target - - (538) (548) (634) (887) 

Gross Expenditure 35,358 39,692 36,023 36,033 36,011 35,771 

 
4.2 All staffing costs have been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy as detailed in Appendix 9.  Pension cost 

estimates have been prepared on the basis of whether current post holders were in the scheme or not as at 31 August 2018.  
The pension costs reflect the revised contribution rates and lump sum payable as detailed in the triennial pension valuation 
results that took effect from 1 April 2017.  The rise in staff costs in 2019/20 is due to an increase of 2% from spinal column 
points 12 and 19 respectively.  For points lower than this, a minimum rate per hour of £9 for 2019/20 has been used to 
reflect the offer to the Trade Unions from the National Employers and to close the gap between bottom pay points and the 
National Living Wage proposal of £9 per hour by 2020.  

P
age 58



Page 19 of 32 

 

 

 
4.3 Post 2019/20, Internal Drainage Board increases have been estimated at this time, with an increase of 1% p.a. assumed.  At 

a time of significant cuts and having to find significant savings annually, the Council is liaising with the local Internal Drainage 
Boards to work towards limiting future increases where possible.  

 
4.4 Capital financing and direct revenue financing is mainly for capital expenditure funded from reserve contributions. 
 
4.5 The contribution to reserves is for contributions to the capital reserve from New Homes Bonus funding, and the revenue 

contribution to the capital programme (£400,000 in 2019/20). The overall contribution is set to reduce significantly from 2020 
due to the New Homes Bonus scheme ending. 

 
 
 

P
age 59



Page 20 of 32 

 

 

5. COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 
 
5.1 Outline estimates through to 2023/24 are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. In compiling these figures we have used the 

assumptions set out in Section 2 of this report and made specific adjustments to service budgets as and where Service 
Managers have advised of changes over the medium term. These forward estimates allow for a 3% increase in 2019/20 and 
then annual 2% increases from 2020/21 onwards for Council Tax, but are subject to risks surrounding the Secretary of 
State’s annual referendum limits.  These assumptions are for planning purposes only and are likely to change.  

 
Table 10 – Council Tax Requirement  
 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure 9,085 9,194 9,143 9,004 

Retained Business Rates (3,349) (3,419) (3,410) (3,413) 

New Homes Bonus  (572) (482) (289) - 

Other Grants (733) (729) (744) (750) 

Special Expenses  (706) (727) (749) (772) 

Boston BC Council Tax Requirement 3,725 3,837 3,951 4,069 

 
5.2 The forward estimates demonstrate that achieving a balanced position annually will require significant ongoing savings, and 

the intention is that this will be delivered through the implementation of a refreshed Transformation Programme. Further 
information on efficiencies and economies is provided in section 9 of this report. 

 

P
age 60



Page 21 of 32 

 

 

6. OTHER BUDGET ISSUES 
 
6.1 In order to meet its obligations, equality impact assessments will be carried out when the nature of proposed changes to 

services and the potential mitigation (if any) is clear, so that the implications of decisions are fully understood as they affect 
specific groups and communities. These have been, and will continue to be, regularly undertaken and considered as part of 
the decision making process.  

 
6.2 The consultation paper on the future Business Rate regime looks to progress the shape of the new system, with questions 

on sharing risk and reward, managing volatility and the setting up of the system. The consultation runs until 21 February 
2019, and the Government’s intention is that it is implemented from 2020/21. Further reports will be presented to members 
as information, and more specifically the impact on Boston, becomes available.  

  
6.3 The consultation paper on the future Relative Needs and Resources framework, looking at Relative Needs, Relative 

Resources and Transitional Arrangements, also runs until 21 February 2019. Again, the intention is that implementation will 
commence from 2020/21, alongside the local government finance settlement, the revised business rate retention regime and 
full business rate baseline reset, and the 2019 Spending Review. The Government has stated that it is aiming to publish 
indicative allocations through a further formal consultation stage before the 2020/21 provisional finance settlement, to assist 
councils’ financial planning processes. 

 
6.4 The Government recently released ‘Our waste, our resources, a strategy for England’, which sets out how England will 

minimise waste, promote resource efficiency and move towards a circular economy. The Strategy is wide ranging and sets 
out actions to be taken now with longer term policy commitments in line with the Government’s ‘25 Year Environment Plan’. 
The headline proposals include Extended Producer Responsibility, Deposit Return Schemes and Collection of a consistent 
set of dry recyclable materials. Operational implementation is proposed in 2023, following a period of consultation and 
approval of necessary legislation.  

 
Separate Food Waste, and Garden Waste, collection proposals will be consulted on, with the Government’s expectation that 
‘New duties will be assessed to account for new burdens, and funded appropriately’.  

Whilst it is apparent that there are likely to be changes to the future years’ figures projected for both revenue and capital 
spending, the specific impact on the Council’s resources cannot be quantified at this time. Future years’ MTFS updates will 
amend projections in light of information available at the time of preparing reports. The Head of Environmental Operations 
and Portfolio Holder for Environment will continue to work to influence Government policy and local implementation via the 
Lincolnshire Waste Partnership and the recently approved Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy. 

P
age 61



Page 22 of 32 

 

 

7. RESERVES  
 
7.1 To comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council must undertake a review of the level of 

reserves as part of its annual budget preparation. A review of the current projection for reserves has been undertaken, 
including a review of current and future risks the Council might face. This has included an assessment of risk registers, 
pressures upon services, inflation and interest rates and any underwriting arrangements. The proposed budget has been 
developed on the basis of not requiring any long term support from reserves.   

 
General Balances 
 
7.2 The General Fund balance is estimated to stand at £2.0m for the next five years, which the Council’s Section 151 Officer 

believes to be prudent for the Council at this time. 
 
Specific Reserves 
 
7.3 Specific reserves are set up to provide funds for known future commitments or provide resources for unexpected events. 

The projected closing balance on specific reserves over the next five years is given below in table 11. Given the risks and 
uncertainties facing both the local and national economy the Council is committed to retaining robust levels of reserves, 
whilst ensuring resources are available to enable efficient service delivery.  

 
7.4 The projected increase in the Capital Reserve is as a direct consequence of the expectation that the Council’s capital 

resources will diminish in the coming years, and if it is to protect services and the value of its assets, the Council will need to 
ensure that funds are available to support core service priorities, as well as seeking external sources wherever possible. 

 
7.5 The setting up and holding of £1m in the Mitigation Reserve is as a consequence of the approval of capital spend on 

Property Fund holdings, with the recognition that the Council needs to ensure that potential future revenue budgets are 
protected, if necessary, and as a result of the review of the business rate appeal provision. 

 
7.6 The Tax Reserve is maintained to offset the impacts of unexpected negative events. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 62



Page 23 of 32 

 

 

Table 11 – Specific Reserves  
 

Reserve Balance 
31.03.19 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.20 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.21 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.22 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.23 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.24 

£’000 

Capital Funding  4,187 3,755 4,867 6,061 7,310 8,417 

Transformation  985 946 934 923 923 923 

ICT  367 322 222 177 97 77 

Repairs and Renewals  715 599 625 660 696 731 

Housing 1,070 791 789 789 789 789 

Controlling Migration Fund 530 - - - - - 

Tax 1,427 2,472 2,472 2,472 2,472 2,472 

Insurance 290 290 290 290 290 290 

Mitigation Reserve 249 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 9,820 10,175 11,199 12,372 13,577 14,699 

 
7.7 Appendix 5 and table 11 above outline the projected position on reserves over the next five years. This shows the name of 

each specific reserve, the balance as at the 1 April for each year of the financial strategy, and the movements in capital and 
revenue.  

 
7.8 As part of the projection, a review of reserves was undertaken and the Community Cohesion and Climate Change reserves 

have been transferred to the Transformation reserve, due to the relatively low levels held and the likelihood of schemes 
coming forward on those themes. 

 
7.9 The main increase in reserves relates to the Capital Reserve.  There are a number of potential capital commitments and 

risks such as ongoing investment in our assets and energy efficiency measures, the majority of which have not been 
included in the capital programme at this point. Proposals will be brought forward annually as schemes are worked up.  

 
7.10  The Government has been critical of Councils across the country and their levels of reserves. However, given strategic risks, 

such as business rate appeals and flooding, and reducing resources to meet future spending plans, we believe that Boston 
Borough Council’s proposed level of reserves is appropriate. 

P
age 63



Page 24 of 32 

 

 

8. CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 Under the Gunning Principles, the following points are the golden rules of consultation: 

 Proposals being consulted upon must be at a formative stage; 

 Proposals must contain enough information for the respondent to provide intelligent consideration; 

 Must give adequate time for a response; 

 Responses must be conscientiously taken into account. 
 
8.2 Using these principles, the budget consultation process for the 2019/20 budget comprised a number of elements. It was 

published on the Council’s website for consultation by all stakeholders, including the local business community. 
 
8.3 In addition to this we consulted through a number of Member forums including Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny – 

Corporate and Community Committee; and on the governance aspects of its preparation through the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

 
8.4 Comments received through the Member forums included the need to ensure that Internal Drainage Board funding, and its 

impact on district council budgets, is included in representations regarding the future funding regime. 
 
8.5 The public exercise elicited 45 responses, as set out in Appendix 11.  
 
 
 
 

P
age 64



Page 25 of 32 

 

 

9. SAVINGS TARGETS/TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 
 

9.1 The projected budgets recognise an increasingly challenging and uncertain position through the five year period of our 
financial strategy. A key factor is that the Local Government Finance Act 2012 and future finance reviews demand a 
significant transformation in the way public services are both paid for and provided, with an emphasis on business and 
housing growth to both improve economic development and maximise funding to the Council to help offset ongoing 
reductions in overall resources. The upcoming 2019 Spending Review and the outcome of the Fairer Funding review will 
impact on the Council’s future resources.  

 
9.2 In response to the challenges facing it, the Council refreshed its Transformation Programme which was formally approved in 

July 2016 (the report is available at  
 http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s1720/Transformation%20Programme.pdf. It seeks to ensure that annual 

balanced budgets can be set across the MTFS period to 2020 without the need to cease the provision of any services, 
although some are being delivered differently as a result of implementing changes to reduce costs or improve income. 

 
9.3 The table below shows the savings that have been included in the 2019/20 budget that have enabled the draft proposals to 

produce a balanced position for next year. 
 
    

Table 12 – Transformation Programme savings in 2019/20 
 

Transformation Theme Title 2019/20 
£’000 

TP 4 Insurance reserve 30 

TP 7 Leisure, Cultural & Heritage 238 

TP 9 Voluntary Sector 44 

TOTAL 312 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 65

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s1720/Transformation%20Programme.pdf


Page 26 of 32 

 

 

9.4 Beyond 2019/20, there is a need to close the projected budget gap by almost another £1m by 2023/24. Members will be 
reviewing and revising the Transformation Programme during 2019/20 to ensure that the Council can set effective balanced 
budgets each year. 

 
9.5 Based upon our current budget assumptions we believe the value of cashable savings required by the Transformation 

Programme to set a balanced budget for the next five years are as follows: 
 

 
Table 13 – Savings Targets  
 

 2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

2023/24 
£000 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – cumulative - 538 548 634 887 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – annual - 538 10 86 253 

 
 
9.6 Given the scale of savings made in recent years, the near £1m gap by 2023/24 is significant, and the Council will need to 

maintain its focus and commitment if it is to achieve its aspirations. Work needs to commence early in 2019/20 to ensure that 
the required level of savings is delivered from 2020/21.  

 
 
9.7 In addition, there have been some events and actions during 2018/19 that have impacted on the MTFS assumptions for next 

year, which are incorporated into the draft budget figures. The main areas are: 
 

 A larger than projected increase in the Council Tax base, delivering £71,000; 

 A smoothing of the cost of elections across years, rather than all in the year that the election takes place; 

 Higher than estimated receipt of New Homes Bonus monies, and the proposed phasing out over four years; 

 Planning income increases due to numbers of applications, rising by £100,000 in 2019/20, then dropping to £50,000 p.a. 
for the remainder of the MTFS. 

 
9.8 The ongoing delivery of a significant level of savings is recognised as a key challenge to the Council that will require both 

political direction and cultural change to ensure it is met. 
 

P
age 66



Page 27 of 32 

 

 

10. RISK AND SENSITIVITY 
 
10.1 The Council is required to set a budget, which is a realistic statement of its estimated Income and Expenditure for the 

coming year based upon information currently available to it. It has a duty to take into account the demand for its services, 
and the effect upon council taxpayers of meeting those demands at varying levels of service. I have examined the budget 
proposals contained in this report, and believe that whilst the spending and service delivery proposals contained within are 
tighter than we have previously set, they are nevertheless achievable and deliverable given good management practices and 
sound financial and performance monitoring. I am satisfied that the requisite management processes exist within the Council 
to deliver this budget, and to identify and deal with any problems which may unexpectedly arise throughout the year.  We 
fully expect there to be a need to review these budgets throughout the coming financial year in order that we can respond to 
as yet undefined financial risks.  As an organisation we recognise a period of budgetary turbulence and we will use our 
financial management processes to identify options that will allow us to adjust our budgetary position as and when required. 
Formal quarterly budget monitoring updates are presented to members throughout the year. 

  
10.2 The following table shows the key risks and how we intend to treat them through our risk management practices. 

Members receive updates through the quarterly performance monitoring process as information becomes available. 

 Table 14 – Key Risks  
  

Risk Likelihood Impact Action 

Fluctuation in business rates High High Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

Lack of funding from partners High High Engagement and realism 

Inadequate capital resources High High Proportionate spending, sale of surplus assets, 
capital property fund spend 

Central Government policy changes High High Engagement in consultation and policy creation 

Reductions in Government Funding High High Lobbying  and service transformation 

A poor settlement for rural councils Medium High Lobbying as a special interest group 

Fee income volatility Medium Medium Early monitoring of deviations 

Increased demand for services Medium Medium A robust performance management framework 

Failure to deliver the required 
transformation programme 

Low High Effective programme and project management 

 
 
 

P
age 67



Page 28 of 32 

 

 

11.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME  
 
11.1 In drawing together the proposed capital programme we have taken a five year view from 2019/20 to 2023/24, to run 

alongside our revenue plans. This is sensible and encourages a link between revenue and capital spending decisions. 
 
11.2 It is important to emphasise that no scheme will appear on the Capital Programme until the criteria set out in the capital 

strategy have been met and agreed.  Members may well be aware of several potential projects which are not included in the 
proposed five year capital programme. This is not to say that they will not happen but that they will not be included until an 
affordable business case is approved and more information is available. We will have a programme which is likely to have 
further schemes added once aspirations are turned into robust projects. The decisions that are taken ultimately have to be 
affordable, prudent and sustainable for the local community. 

 
11.3 The future for capital investment, funded from both the Council’s resources and external resources, will be dependent on 

decisions taken as part of each year’s budget process. Our capital resources have been substantially eroded over time and 
we aim to take money from revenue to ensure that statutory commitments can continue to be met. This will demand a 
greater role for the Council’s Asset Management Plan to ensure that future liabilities are reduced and that capital receipts 
are maximised. Commentary on the plan is provided at Appendix 6. 

 
11.4 The suggested capital programme (including details of anticipated slippage in the 2018/19 capital programme) for 2019/20 to 

2023/24 is shown in Table 15 along with how the programme will be financed. Additionally Table 16 details future investment 
aspirations identified that need affordable business cases to be developed before they can proceed.  It should be noted that 
some risk exists with capping the finance available for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) works as this is a statutory provision 
dictated by law based on need rather than the ability of the Council to provide the funds to carry out the works, and as such it 
is subject to ongoing review.   

  
11.5 Following the publication of CIPFA’s review and MHCLG guidance on the Prudential System (which guides and regulates 

councils’ capital and investment strategies), during 2018/19 the Council made use of external borrowing to support the 
Council’s long term Capital Strategy, by purchasing capital Property Fund units. The intention is to bring a number of 
benefits to the Council over the medium to long term, including yield, growth in future capital resources, statutory service 
resilience and historically low interest rate finance. This is subject to regular monitoring and is primarily overseen by the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  

 

 

 

P
age 68



Page 29 of 32 

 

 

11.6 The Capital Working Group met to review the capital bids submitted for the next five years.  The group agreed to 
recommend the following schemes for 2019/20: 

 
 £150,000 Housing Strategy Costs in relation to a contribution to Waterloo Housing for 80 new affordable homes. 

 Revised Information Technology Refresh programme for the next 5 years following a detailed review of the IT estate 
by the IT Manager in conjunction with the Corporate Management Team.  

 CCTV system upgrade of £43,000. 

 GMLC refurbishment including new flooring and changing lockers totalling £57,000. 
  
11.7  Given the resource constraints with regard to funding the Council’s future capital commitments it is proposed that the 

contribution from revenue budgets to the capital reserve is set at £0.4m in 2019/20, and then subject to annual review 
thereafter.  This contribution is considered necessary given the absence of capital receipts and the future reductions in New 
Homes Bonus from 2020.  

 
11.8 The proposed capital programme is affordable, meets the Council’s obligations and provides a basis for growth. An update 

to the capital strategy, which underpins the capital programme proposed from 2019/20 to 2023/24, is attached at Appendix 
7. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 69



Page 30 of 32 

 

 

 
Table 15 – Capital Programme 
 

Capital Programme £’000 

 
Expected 
Slippage 
2018/19 

Revised 
2019/20 

with 
Slippage 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

1.Disabled Facilities Grant - 280 280 280 280 280 

2.Housing Strategy  - 272 - - - - 

3.Marginal Viability Fund 3,500 3,500 - - - - 

4.Municipal Buildings Alterations 5 5 - - - - 

5.Housing Scheme – Julian’s Yard 25 25 - - - - 

6.CCTV Open Architecture System Upgrade - 43 - - - - 

7.Noise Equipment Monitoring - -  10 - - 

8.Resurfacing and Footpath Improvements 8 23 11 14 - - 

9.Public Conveniences Refurbishment - 15 - - - - 

10.Estate Works 10 10 - - - - 

11.Guildhall Refurbishment  - - - 14 - - 

12.Town Centre Heritage Scheme (PSICA 2) 200 400 200 200 - - 

13.Multi Use Games Area (CMF) 269 269 - - - - 

14.Investment in Replacement Flooring and Pool 
Changing Lockers 

 
- 

 
57 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

15.Information Technology Replacement - 45 100 45 80 20 

16. Vehicle Replacement – Street Cleaning 22 22 240 75 - - 

17.Vehicle Replacement – Refuse Fleet - 1,225 - - - - 

18.Vehicle Replacement – Grounds Tractor - 60 - - - - 

19. Crematorium – Provision of Parking and Re-
Surfacing Works 

 
65 

 
65 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

20.Crematorium – Weatherproof Canopy for Floral 
Tribute Display Area 

 
- 

 
25 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

21.Crematorium – Install Air Conditioning - 25 - - - - 

Totals 4,104 6,366 831 638 360 300 

 
 

P
age 70



Page 31 of 32 

 

 

 

Capital Financing £’000 

Revised 
2019/20 

with 
Slippage 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

1.Capital Grants and Contributions 4,367 439 439 280 280 

2.Capital Reserve  1,531 283 154 - - 

3.IT Reserve 45 100 45 80 20 

4.Repairs and Renewals Reserves 151 9 - - - 

5.Housing Reserve 272 - - - - 

Totals 6,366 831 638 360 300 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 71



Page 32 of 32 

 

 

12. OPTIONS 
 
12.1 There are no alternative options presented, and Cabinet are requested to recommend the budget and council tax level to 

Council for formal approval. Given the likely outlook for future resource levels, the Council needs to focus strategically over 
the next five years, and consider to what extent they wish to maintain existing services, how services might be prioritised, 
and to develop proposals on how future budgetary shortfalls might be addressed.  As in previous years, the Cabinet are 
encouraged to work with all Members (and stakeholders generally) as critical friends to assist in the development of future 
years’ budgets and the proposed refresh of the Transformation Programme. 

 
13. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
13.1 To comply with the budgetary and policy framework. 
 
 
14. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1 To recommend the budget and associated documents to Council for formal approval, specifically: 
 

 The budget setting report and associated policies and strategies 2019/20 – 2023/24, and 
 

 The Borough Council Tax for a Band D property in 2019/20 is set at £189.09. 
 

 

P
age 72



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2019-20 TO 2023-24 APPENDIX 1

SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER

2018/2019 

ESTIMATE £

2019/2020 

ESTIMATE £

2020/2021 

ESTIMATE £

2021/2022 

ESTIMATE £

2022/2023 

ESTIMATE £

2023/2024 

ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION

Hsg, Property & Community 709,820 1,064,789 778,886 794,143 783,163 804,985

Tourism, Arts, Culture & Heritage 342,630 319,870 328,810 347,204 326,656 335,924

Town Centre (577,720) (488,840) (528,085) (527,218) (518,611) (509,792)

Environment 2,130,200 2,125,680 2,203,649 2,259,094 2,326,575 2,369,604

Finance 1,970,240 2,087,480 2,151,844 2,207,518 2,262,805 2,301,637

Leader 1,225,460 1,340,030 1,464,767 1,478,576 1,465,568 1,597,543

Regulatory 600,700 479,790 479,948 481,690 498,326 506,728

BTAC 654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794

Cumulative Transformation savings required 0 0 (538,332) (547,833) (633,697) (887,310)

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 7,056,020 7,609,102 7,044,664 7,217,565 7,257,005 7,288,113

Drainage Board Precepts 1,884,180 1,898,600 1,917,580 1,936,750 1,956,120 1,975,680

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 8,940,200 9,507,702 8,962,244 9,154,315 9,213,125 9,263,793

Appropriations

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 798,640 1,999,000 392,000 199,000 80,000 20,000

Interest on borrowing 111,250 499,980 499,980 499,980 499,980 499,980

Repayment of loan principle / MRP 0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital Charges contra entry (1,035,740) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120)

Interest Receivable on Investment 0 (711,000) (761,000) (800,000) (822,000) (869,000)

Contributions To / (From) Reserves 677,320 354,518 1,024,596 1,173,203 1,204,643 1,121,729

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 9,491,670 10,615,080 9,082,700 9,191,378 9,140,628 9,001,382

FINANCING

Retained Business Rates 11,714,470 7,903,829 8,364,270 8,534,290 8,627,710 8,627,710

Tariff (7,959,250) (5,054,650) (5,155,740) (5,258,860) (5,364,030) (5,364,030)

RSG 0 342,470 0 0 0 0

Levy to Pool 0 (256,780) 0 0 0 0

NNDR surplus / (deficit) (394,780) 1,569,420 0 0 0 0

NNDR Renewables 205,000 110,969 140,730 143,540 146,420 149,340

Levy Account Surplus - Settlement Data 40,800

New Homes Bonus 612,960 720,880 572,180 482,080 289,130 0

Special Area Expense 654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794

Specific Grants 1,112,060 910,200 732,570 729,380 743,960 750,000

Council Tax surplus 110,710 29,610 0 0 0 0

FUNDING 6,055,860 6,997,051 5,357,188 5,354,821 5,189,411 4,931,814

Boston Borough Council precept requirement 3,435,810 3,618,029 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568

TRANSFORMATION SAVINGS REQUIRED 0 0 (538,332) (547,833) (633,697) (887,310)

24 C:\Users\sampsont\Documents\Book1 Summary by PFH Apx 1

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2019-20 TO 2023-24 APPENDIX 2

SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE Excl Recgs

2018/2019 

ESTIMATE £

2019/2020 

ESTIMATE £

2020/2021 

ESTIMATE £

2021/2022 

ESTIMATE £

2022/2023 

ESTIMATE £

2023/2024 

ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION

Chief Executive 296,930 309,090 315,697 321,609 327,372 333,205

Corporate 1,152,310 1,164,210 1,190,250 1,210,640 1,228,790 1,245,172

Finance 934,540 1,055,810 1,096,255 1,132,863 1,172,641 1,196,522

Regulatory 1,575,130 1,919,669 1,652,315 1,658,239 1,699,006 1,721,657

Monitoring Officer 812,020 898,480 1,014,468 1,021,022 999,589 1,124,283

Place & Space 360,830 254,320 222,186 271,628 281,362 319,554

Operations 1,269,570 1,327,220 1,388,647 1,425,006 1,435,721 1,466,236

BTAC 654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794

Cumulative Transformation savings required (538,332) (547,833) (633,697) (887,310)

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 7,056,020 7,609,102 7,044,664 7,217,565 7,257,005 7,288,113

Drainage Board Precepts 1,884,180 1,898,600 1,917,580 1,936,750 1,956,120 1,975,680

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 8,940,200 9,507,702 8,962,244 9,154,315 9,213,125 9,263,793

Appropriations

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure  798,640 1,999,000 392,000 199,000 80,000 20,000

Interest on borrowing                                                   111,250 499,980 499,980 499,980 499,980 499,980

Repayment of loan principle / MRP                           0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital Charges contra entry                                      (1,035,740) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120) (1,035,120)

Interest Receivable on Investment 0 (711,000) (761,000) (800,000) (822,000) (869,000)

Contributions To / (From) Reserves                          677,320 354,518 1,024,596 1,173,203 1,204,643 1,121,729

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 9,491,670 10,615,080 9,082,700 9,191,378 9,140,628 9,001,382

FINANCING

Retained Business Rates 11,714,470 7,903,829 8,364,270 8,534,290 8,627,710 8,627,710

Tariff (7,959,250) (5,054,650) (5,155,740) (5,258,860) (5,364,030) (5,364,030)

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 0 342,470 0 0 0 0

Net Levy to Pool 0 (256,780) 0 0 0 0

NNDR surplus / (deficit) (394,780) 1,569,420 0 0 0 0

NNDR Renewables 205,000 110,969 140,730 143,540 146,420 149,340

Levy Account Surplus - Settlement Data 40,800

New Homes Bonus 612,960 720,880 572,180 482,080 289,130 0

Special Area Expense (BTAC) 654,690 680,303 703,178 724,391 746,221 768,794

Specific Grants                                                           1,112,060 910,200 732,570 729,380 743,960 750,000

Council Tax surplus 110,710 29,610 0 0 0 0

Funding 6,055,860 6,997,051 5,357,188 5,354,821 5,189,411 4,931,814

Boston Borough Council precept requirement 3,435,810 3,618,029 3,725,512 3,836,557 3,951,217 4,069,568

TRANSFORMATION SAVINGS REQUIRED 0 0 (538,332) (547,833) (633,697) (887,310)

25 C:\Users\sampsont\Documents\Book2 Budget Book Summary 19-20 Apx 2

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CORPORATE CHARGING POLICY 2019/20 

 

POLICY AIM  
 
The aim of this policy is to provide a corporate framework for the setting of 
fees and charges for the services provided by Boston Borough Council. The 
policy shows the connection between charging for services and the council’s 
objectives and aims to secure the delivery of services efficiently, effectively 
and at affordable levels; it also aims to strengthen financial management. 
 
As the overall resources available to the Council are diminishing, it is 
important to ensure that the charging policy clearly sets out the ways that fees 
and charges will contribute to the continuation of services for residents, 
businesses and other consumers. 
 

POLICY STATEMENT  

LIC STATEMENT 

 The Policy applies to all those fees and charges which the Council has 
discretion to set, regardless of whether the levels are approved by the 
Cabinet or any alternative Council reporting arrangement (for example 
Licensing Committee). Services where charges are decided externally 
will be set in line with the relevant national legal framework and will     
automatically be changed to reflect the latest position. 

 

 We will identify the full costs of delivering services to make clear the 
level of subsidy the Council is providing. 

 

 We will operate an effective and efficient collection system. The 
methods for paying charges will be made clear and the procedures for 
recovering fees will be governed by established Debt Recovery 
Procedures.  The Council reserves the right to levy charges for the late 
payment of invoices. 

 

 Reasonable notice will be given to service users before any new 
charge is implemented. Reasonable notice is defined as one calendar 
month. 
 

 The effects any new charge has on service usage and income must be 
closely monitored over the first 12 months by the service manager. 
 

 We will invest receipts from fees and charges in the improvement of 
the service, subject to statutory requirements and the wider corporate 
objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. A Service Manager 
may propose to invest receipts from fees and charges and will prepare 
a report to the Corporate Management Team identifying their full 
requirements for use of additional income in their service area. 

 

Page 77



Appendix 3 
 

 All discretionary fees and charges will be set in line with the approved 
charging policy for that service and should fall into one of the 
categories in the following table. 

 

Charging Strategy Objective 

Commercial 
charges 
 

The council aims to cover the cost of providing the 
service and make a surplus 
 

Full Cost 
Recovery 

The council aims to recover the costs of providing 
this service from those who use it 
 

Subsidised The council wishes users of the service to make a 
contribution to the costs of providing it. This might be 
to meet a service objective or to allow competition 
with other providers 
 

Free The Council chooses to make the service available at 
no charge to meet a service objective 
 

Statutory Charges are determined in line with legal 
requirements. 
 

 

 Fees and charges will be regularly reviewed within the Council’s financial 
planning process, any variations outside of this will need formal approval 
by the Cabinet or Committee as appropriate. Service Managers will 
complete the corporate template for the review of fees and charges, 
these will form the bases for reports to the Cabinet or relevant 
committee, as part of the annual review of fees and charges.  

 

 Increases in fees and charges will, each year, be generally in line with 
the level of inflation assumed in the budget process, subject to 
consideration of the specific issues in relation to each service. All 
changes will be agreed as part of the overall budget setting process.  

 

 Wherever possible charges will be collected either in advance or at the 
point of service delivery. Where charges are to be collected after service 
delivery has started, invoices will be raised within 5 working days, and as 
necessary appropriate recovery procedures followed. 

 

 The policy requires a comprehensive schedule of all fees and charges to 
be set up. Each Service Manager will maintain a schedule of fees and 
charges levied for their areas of responsibility. This schedule will be in a 
corporate format and should include, but identify separately, those 
charges that are nationally set. The format will be determined by the 
Accountancy Manager. 

 

 The Customer Services Manager will be able to refer to all fees and 
charges and these will be made available on the Authority’s website. 

Page 78



Appendix 3 
 

 Charges should be easy to understand. 
 

 Existing policies and procedures should be taken into account when 
setting fees and charges. 

 

 Setting of fees and charges should be made in accordance with the 
current value added tax regulations. Where rates of VAT increase then 
fees and charges will automatically be adjusted upwards. Advice will be 
provided by the Accountancy team. 

 

 As a general policy no concession is to be given from the charge set. 
However, it is open to service managers to present a case to the Cabinet 
arguing that a concession is appropriate for a particular group or that a 
concession would assist the achievement of the Council’s Corporate 
Objectives. 

 

 In accordance with business need fees and charges can be amended as 
agreed by the respective Portfolio Holder, Corporate Management Team 
member, Head of Service and the Section 151 Officer (or Deputy Section 
151 Officer) in exceptional circumstances and reported to Cabinet 
retrospectively.  

 I 
IMPLEMENTATION 
IM 
Who is responsible? 
 
Overall responsibility is with the Accountancy Manager and day-to-day 
operational responsibility with Service Managers. 
 
Complaints procedure 
 
If any member of the public believes that the Council has acted in a way that 
is not in line with this policy the Council’s Formal Complaints Procedure may 
be followed. 
 
Monitoring and review 
 
The Accountancy Manager will review the implementation of this policy and 
undertake a triennial review of the policy.  
 
Service Team Plans 
 
All service team plans will be consistent with the principles within this policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



Appendix 3 
 

Value for Money 
 
The Council continually reviews its costs and charges to ensure that Value for 
Money is being delivered, and in determining next year’s fees and charges, 
annual reviews will seek to challenge subsidies, determine the value placed 
on the service and how much people are willing to pay. They will also identify 
any new charges for services. 
 
MONITORING 
ONITORING 
The policy will be monitored in the following ways: 
 

MONITORING ACTIVITY PERSON RESPONSIBLE 

Data collection Service Managers 

Review of policy Accountancy Manager 

External communication Customer Services Manager 

 ONSULTAON 
CONSULTATION 
 
Corporate Management Team and Cabinet were consulted on a draft version 
of the strategy before full implementation. Changes were made to the policy 
reflecting the outcomes of the consultation. 
POLICY APPROVAL 
 
 

Page 80



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON & FOSDYKE CEMETERIES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Burial Fee - Adult  (Resident of the Borough) 820.00 42.00 862.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Adult  (Non resident within 5 years) 1,640.00 84.00 1,724.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Child 6 - 15 years 248.00 0.00 248.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Child 1 month - 5 years 99.00 0.00 99.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Child up to 1 month 35.00 0.00 35.00 Non business - no VAT

Burial Fee - Non Viable Foetus or Baby Tissues resulting 

from post mortem 35.00 0.00 35.00 Non business - no VAT

Excavation of grave space in preparation for construction 

of brick vault:

Brick Vault : Single POA - POA Non business - no VAT

                      Double POA - POA Non business - no VAT

                      Others (pro rata) POA - POA

Re-opening of grave for interment in existing vault 

(excavation & re-filling) 820.00 42.00 862.00 Non business - no VAT

Cremated remains placed in coffin for interment 75.00 5.00 80.00 Non business - no VAT

Interment (beneath surface) or exhumation of cremated 

remains in Cemetery 148.00 2.00 150.00 Non business - no VAT

Double interment of cremated remains (one excavation, 2 

caskets or both in same casket) 222.00 3.00 225.00 Non business - no VAT

Scatter of Cremated Remains in cemetery (unwitnessed) 60.00 5.00 65.00 Non business - no VAT

Officer attendance at witnessed scattering or interment of 

ashes - (by appointment only) 25.00 2.00 27.00 Non business - no VAT

Exhumation of coffined body from cemetery POA - POA Standard rate

Fees and Charges

Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial 

permit) - single space (resident of Borough) 1,000.00 100.00 1,100.00 Non business - no VAT

Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial 

permit) - single space (non resident) 2,000.00 200.00 2,200.00 non business - no VAT

Purchase of Exclusive Right of Burial for a cremated 

remains plot at Fosdyke Cemetery NEW CHARGE 0.00 550.00 Non business - no VAT

Transfer of grave ownership fee 30.00 5.00 35.00 non business - no VAT

Administration fee for surrender of Exclusive Right of 

Burial or rectification to change to alternative grave space 45.00 5.00 50.00 Non business - no VAT

Permit for vase (unpurchased graves) 65.00 5.00 70.00 Non business - no VAT

Exclusive right of burial for child grave including memorial 

permit 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - no VAT

Permit for additional inscription on existing memorial 42.00 3.00 45.00 Non business - no VAT

Grave maintenance - Annual contract

With Planting - Single 110.00 0.00 110.00 Standard rate

With Planting - Double 220.00 0.00 220.00 Standard rate

With Planting - Triple 330.00 0.00 330.00 Standard rate

With Planting - Quadruple 440.00 0.00 440.00 Standard rate

Family History Searches:

To locate names in the indexes & registers through to

identification of the grave on site -

per grave                                                                                                2.50 0.00 2.50 Standard rate 

Non-genealogical searches or names not found in indexes no charge 0.00 no charge

Page 81



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Memorial Price List

Book of Remembrance

2 Line Inscription 75.00 4.00 79.00 Standard rate

5 Line Inscription 110.00 6.00 116.00 Standard rate

8 Line Inscription 139.00 7.00 146.00 Standard rate

Illustration, Badge, Coat of Arms etc (to accompany 5 & 8 line entries only) 75.00 4.00 79.00 Standard rate

Miniature Book of Remembrance 2 line entry 75.00 4.00 79.00 Standard rate

Miniature Book of Remembrance 5 line entry 110.00 6.00 116.00 Standard rate

Miniature Book of Remembrance 8 line entry 139.00 7.00 146.00 Standard rate

Memorial card - 2 line entry 28.50 0.00 28.50 Standard rate

Memorial card - 5 line entry 34.00 0.00 34.00 Standard rate

Memorial card - 8 line entry 39.50 0.00 39.50 Standard rate

Each additional line in existing Miniature Book 17.00 1.00 18.00 Standard rate

Correction or addition to Book of Remembrance entry (client error) 17.00 1.00 18.00 Standard rate

Fixed Term Memorials

Renewal of dedication for existing individual roses, trees & shrubs - per annum 23.00 1.00 24.00 Standard rate

Each 5 year dedication of one granite Bench plaque (one third share, 3 

plaques per granite bench), bench remains the property of the Council 382.00 19.00 401.00 Standard rate

Each 5 year dedication of plaque on wooden bench (one plaque per bench 

only), includes maintenance of bench which remains the property of the 

Council 461.00 23.00 484.00 Standard rate

Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque- initial set up plus first year of 

dedication 80.00 4.00 84.00 Standard rate

Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque - per each year of dedication 40.00 2.00 42.00 Standard rate

Single Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 47.00 2.00 49.00 Standard rate

Leather Recordia Panel (per year-2nd year onwards), single or double 24.00 0.00 24.00 Standard rate

Double Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 94.00 4.00 98.00 Standard rate

Re-enameling of lettering on existing memorial tablet (all types) (5year old or

more) 92.00 5.00 97.00 Standard rate

Plaque on babies memorial wall, initial set up charge 56.00 0.00 56.00 Standard rate

Lease of plaque for babies memorial (per year) 16.00 0.00 16.00 Standard rate

Placement of ashes in above-ground granite vault , (99 year lease), including

plaque and urn 1,200.00 60.00 1,260.00 Standard rate

Second placement of ashes in existing above-ground granite vault (existing

lease period stands), including plaque and urn 250.00 13.00 263.00 Standard rate

Photo plaque on Vault plaque or Columbarium plaque (each plaque) 105.00 5.00 110.00 Standard rate

Initial placement of ashes in columbarium niche - 50 year lease includes

inscribed polished granite tablet and urn 600.00 30.00 630.00 Standard rate

Initial placement of ashes in columbarium niche - 99 year lease includes

inscribed polished granite tablet and urn 1,200.00 60.00 1,260.00 Standard rate

2nd placement in existing columbarium niche (remaining lease period stands).

Includes inscribed polished granite tablet and urn 250.00 13.00 263.00 Standard rate

Other Charges

Replacement or re-facing of memorial tablet (memorial pathway) incl 30 letters 920.00 0.00 920.00 Standard rate

Grey Granite memorial tablet for Garden of Rest (opposite front entrance), incl

30 letters 300.00 15.00 315.00 Standard rate

Each additional letter of inscription on memorial tablet (memorial pathway &

opposite front entrance) 3.50 0.20 3.70 Standard rate

Replacement metal flower container for existing memorial tablet 12.00 1.00 13.00 Standard rate

Additional name/plaque on existing Rose/Shrub or Tree (perspex type) 31.00 2.00 33.00 Standard rate

Addition to or replacement of existing cast bronze plaque in communal rose 

bed 96.00 5.00 101.00 Standard rate

P
age 82



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Upgrade to Cast bronze plaque on existing memorial tree or rose bush 96.00 5.00 101.00 Standard rate

Media Fees

Audio only: Recording of a funeral service supplied as CD or USB (first copy) 37.00 2.00 39.00 Standard rate

Each additional CD or USB 17.00 1.00 18.00 Standard rate

Audio visual recording of funeral service supplied on DVD or USB - first copy 41.00 0.00 41.00 Standard rate

Each additional DVD or USB audio visual recording 19.00 0.00 19.00 Standard rate

Webcasting of funeral service (USB/DVD of webcast is extra as above if req) 82.00 4.00 86.00 Standard rate

Visual tribute set up fee 11.00 1.00 12.00 Standard rate

Visual tribute (stills) during service with or without music - per photo 0.00 2.00 2.00 Standard rate

video footage per minute used 5.00 1.00 6.00 Standard rate

DVD or USB copy of the visual tribute only 21.00 1.00 22.00 Standard rate

DVD or USB copy of the whole service with the Visual tribute embedded 52.00 1.00 53.00 Standard rate

Fees and Charges

Cremation Fee - Adult 710.00 25.00 735.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Direct cremation. No funeral service or mourners, 8.30am or 

4pm time slot only (cremation next day). Includes 2 pallbearers (wheeled) 520.00 25.00 545.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Child 6 - 15 years 95.00 0.00 95.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Child 1 month to 5 years 27.00 0.00 27.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Child under 1 month, non-viable foetus or body part resulting 

from post mortem 17.00 0.00 17.00 Exempt - no VAT

Cremation Fee - Batch Cremation of pre-12 week foetuses (per batch not 

exceeding 20.) 41.00 4.00 45.00 Exempt - no VAT

Provision of one pall bearer 20.00 2.00 22.00 Standard rate

Provision of two pall-bearers (maximum & only if available) 40.00 4.00 44.00 Standard rate

Additional service slot in Chapel (when available) 185.00 10.00 195.00 Exempt - no VAT

Use of Crematorium Chapel for a burial or memorial service or for training 

purposes. 185.00 10.00 195.00 Exempt - no VAT

Courier of Cremated remains (including polytainer) 90.00 0.00 90.00 Exempt - no VAT

Storage of cremated remains after 28 days 8.00 0.00 8.00 Exempt - no VAT

Bronze Urn 18.00 1.00 19.00 Exempt - no VAT

Polytainer 11.00 1.00 12.00 Exempt - no VAT

Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (unwitnessed) 148.00 2.00 150.00 Exempt - no VAT

Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (witnessed with 

staff present) 173.00 4.00 177.00 Exempt - no VAT

Scattering of Cremated remains (Witnessed with staff present) 25.00 2.00 27.00 Exempt - no VAT

Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (unwitnessed) 60.00 5.00 65.00 Exempt - no VAT

Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (Witnessed with staff 

present) 85.00 7.00 92.00 Exempt - no VAT

Double interment of cremated remains, (one excavation, 2 caskets or both in 

same casket) 222.00 3.00 225.00 Exempt - no VAT

Additional Certificate of Cremation (if remains are split or original lost) 12.00 1.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

Photocopy of Registrars or Coroners disposal certificate 12.00 1.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

Letter of delcaration for customs - remains taken abroad 12.00 1.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

P
age 83



APPENDIX 4
COMMERCIAL WASTE WASTE FEES AND CHARGES 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/2020 LIABILITY

Green Bin prices (residual waste) £ £ £

240 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business 

240 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business 

240 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business 

240 Litre - Monthly Non Business 

360 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business 

360 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business 

360 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business 

360 Litre - Monthly Non Business 

660 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business 

660 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business 

660 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business 

660 Litre - Monthly Non Business 

1100 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business 

1100 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business 

1100 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business 

1100 Litre - Monthly Non Business 

Trade Bags (10 bags per roll) Non Business 

Blue Bin prices 

240L fortnightly Non Business 

240L Monthly Non Business 

360L - Fortnightly Non Business 

360l - Monthly Non Business 

660L Fortnightly Non Business 

660L Monthly Non Business 

1100L Fortnightly Non Business 

1100L Monthly Non Business 

Trade bags (10 bags per roll) Non Business 

Other charges:

Commercial waste bins:

Re-instatement of bin Non Business 

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

P
age 84



APPENDIX 4

WASTE SERVICES Appendix 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

BULKY COLLECTION CHARGES - DOMESTIC

Bulky Collections: Standard Items

Collection of 1-2 standard items 16.00 2.00 18.00 Non business

Collection of 3 standard items 21.00 4.00 25.00 Non business
Collection of 4-5 standard items 28.00 2.00 30.00 Non business

Bulky Collections: White Items

Collection of 1 large white goods 25.00 1.25 26.25 Non business

Collection of 2 large white goods 35.00 1.75 36.75 Non business

Any Other Items

Eg Carpets, sheds, wood, garden waste POA POA Non business

Refuse Bins 

New/ replacement 240L bin 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business

New/ replacement 360L bin 0.00 NEW CHARGE 50.00 Non business

New/ replacement 660L bin 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business

New/ replacement 1100L bin 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business

Garden Waste Collections

Garden waste collections for 1 bin (per annum) 30.00 0.00 30.00 non business

Garden waste collections for each extra bin (per annum) 15.00 0.00 15.00 non business

Garden waste 240L bin purchase 25.00 0.00 25.00 non business

BULKY COLLECTIONS - COMMERCIAL (NEW CHARGES)

Commercial Waste Bulky collections: Standard

Collection of 1-2 standard items Non business

Collection of 3 standard items Non business

Collection of 4-5 standard items Non business

Commercial Waste Bulky collections: White Items

Collection of 1 large white goods Non business

Collection of 2 large white goods Non business

STREET CLEANING - COMMERCIAL (NEW CHARGES)

Street Cleaning - large sweeper (Driver +1) Hourly rate-min 

2 hours Standard rate

Street Cleaning - small sweeper (Driver +1) Hourly rate -

min 2 hours Standard rate

Street Cleaning - large sweeper (Driver +1) Day rate - min 

2 days Standard rate

Street Cleaning - small sweeper (Driver +1) Day rate - min 

2 days Standard rate

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

P
age 85



GROUNDS MAINTENANCE CHARGES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Commercial Tree Services:

Commercial contract services (Tree) half day (plus disposal 

costs of any waste) Standard rate

Commercial contract services (Tree) full day (plus disposal 

costs of any waste) Standard rate

Price on Application

Price on Application

P
age 86



APPENDIX 4

GUILDHALL

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Private Hire (after 6pm there is a minimun of 2 hours hire required)

Private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 50 0 50 Standard Rates

Private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 80 0 80 Standard Rates

Private hire of more than one room (price on application) Standard Rates

Charity private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 40 0 40 Standard Rates

Charity private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 50 0 50 Standard Rates

Buffet style catering packages are also avaliable - please contact the Guildhall for further information 

Meeting Room Hire

Meeting room hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 25 0 25 Standard Rates

Meeting room hire outside normal opening hours 8am to 6pm (per hour) 50 0 50 Standard Rates

Refreshments (per serving) 10 2 12 Standard Rates

Buffet style catering packages are also avaliable - please contact the Guildhall for further information 

Wedding Hire 

Wedding hire -  Ceremony only 450 70 520 Standard Rates

Reception to follow wedding (per hour) 75 10 85 Standard Rates

Wedding hire -  Ceremony only Outside normal opening hours 0 620 620 New fee

Reception to follow wedding (per hour) Outside normal opening hours 0 95 95 New fee

Wedding Hire on bank holidays or during Christmas closure period

Wedding hire -  Ceremony fee (3 hour closure)  Applies to weddings between the Christmas 

and New Year Guildhall closure and Good Friday to Easter Monday 800 -800 0 Removed

Wedding hire -  Ceremony fee (3 hour closure) Applies to weddings on bank holidays 

weekends other than the ones named above 
600 -600 0 Removed

Reception to follow wedding  (an additional 2 hour closure) 250 -250 0 Removed

Buffet style catering packages are also avaliable - please contact the Guildhall for further information 

Tours (price is for upto 20 people)

Group guided tour within opening hours (booking required) 40 20 60 Standard Rates

Group guided tour not within opening hours upto 6pm (booking required) 80 -80 0 Removed

Bespoke tours/talks/on and off site/packages  

Paranomal investigations groups 400 0 400 Standard Rates

Other

Location Hire Standard Rates

Hire of entire Guildhall Standard Rates

Photography fee for occaision events Standard Rates

* Upto 10pm and excluding Christmas and Bank Holidays 

The Guildhall is not avaliable for wedding bookings or other hire on bank holidays and during  its Christmas closure period 

All bookings are subject to avaliability 

Price on application 

Price on Application 

Price on Application 

Price on Application 

Price on Application 

P
age 87



APPENDIX 4

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Health Education - 3217

Unit Food Examination (Charge for initial 1st Hour) 90.20 0.00 90.20 Non business - No VAT charge

Unit Food Examination (Charge per hour after initial hour) 42.40 0.00 42.40 Non business - No VAT charge

Request for a revisit 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Training courses (food safety)

Setting up a food business 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Food Hygiene refresher (Half day) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Food Hygiene refresher (Full day) 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Management system coaching 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Short courses 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Warden - 3219

Dog Fines (Seizure) - FIXED BY STATUTE 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Stray Dogs - Admin Charge per dog. 20.00 0.00 20.00 Standard rate 

Kennelling fees (per day) 11.00 0.00 11.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Control 

Dog Fouling (Fixed penalty) - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Failing to exclude your dog from a fenced off children’s play area  - FIXED 

BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Failing to put a nuisance or dangerous dog on a lead when requested to 

do so by an authorised officer - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Failure to provide evidence of the means to clear up dog faeces (Bag or 

receptacle).- FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mobile Homes Act 2013 - licence fees

New Site Licence 365.00 0.00 365.00 Non business - No VAT charge

New Site Licence per pitch 8.50 0.00 8.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Transfer / amendment of existing site licence 225.00 0.00 225.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Significant amendments 255.00 0.00 255.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Annual fee for existing site licence per pitch 3.00 0.00 3.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Enforcement notices 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Enforcement notices additional one 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Depositing site rules 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Pollution - 3216

Contaminated Land (consultation and advice) - charged per hour 30.00 0.00 30.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Port Health - 3214

Ship Sanitation Certificate - FIXED BY STATUTE 120.00 0.00 120.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Ship Sanitation Extension - FIXED BY STATUTE 55.00 0.00 55.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Cleansing - 3235

Litter Fixed Penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Fly tipping penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 150-400 0 150-400 Non business - No VAT charge

Public Conveniences - 3204

Radar Keys 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 88



APPENDIX 4
MISCELLANEOUS LICENCES

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges Charges Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

Part A Part B Total 

£ £ £ £ £

Sex Establishments (1st Application) 1,547.00 1,330.00 217.00 1,547.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Sex Establishments (Renewal Application) 539.00 322.00 217.00 539.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Pet Shops 112.50 0.00 75.00 37.50 112.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Riding Establishments 131.00 0.00 93.50 37.50 131.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Animal Boarding 122.00 0.00 84.50 37.50 122.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Keeping or training of animals for exhibition 0.00 0.00 84.50 37.50 122.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Day care for Dogs 0.00 0.00 84.50 37.50 122.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Reinspection fee for all trypes of animal welfare licences 0.00 0.00 80.00 0.00 80.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Breeders 131.00 0.00 93.50 37.50 131.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dangerous Wild Animals (1st Application) 284.50 0.00 284.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Dangerous Wild Animals (Renewal Application) 210.00 0.00 210.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Zoo Licence Grant 4 years 445.00 0.00 368.00 77.00 445.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Zoo Licence Renewal 6 years 368.00 291.00 77.00 368.00

Zoo Licence Transfer 148.00 148.00

Zoo Licence Annual Inspection 77.00 77.00

Tattoing, ear piercing, acupunture & electrolysis Premises 

Registration 116.00 0.00 86.00 30.00 116.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Tattoing, ear piercing, acupunture & electrolysis Personal 

Registration 49.50 0.00 49.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Trading Consent 112.50 0.00 112.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Trading daily consent 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Scrap Metal Dealers 0.00 0.00

Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence 488.50 0.00 316.50 172.00 488.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Scrap Metal Dealer Collector Licence Fee 228.50 0.00 161.50 67.00 228.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Variation of licence collector to site 218.50 0.00 218.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Variation of licence site to collector 57.00 0.00 57.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Change of site manager 47.00 0.00 47.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Minor change e.g. change of licensee details 32.00 0.00 32.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Duplicate Licence (Standard replacement Licence fee for all 

licence types) 10.50 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Register entry fee (for the first entry and £0.50 per entry 

thereafter) 10.50 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 89



APPENDIX 4
Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates 2019/20 Statutory fees - no increase.

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value

£0 - 

£4,300

£4,301 - 

£33,000

£33,001 - 

£87,000

£87,001 - 

£125,000

£125,001 

and over

Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates (New, Variations & Conversion)

If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:

Band D = £450 X 2 = £900

Band E = £635 X 3 = £1905

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value £100 £190 £315 £450 £635

Multiplier Charge see above £0 £0 £0 £900 £1,905

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000 (For New and Variation)

Capacity

5,000 - 

9,999

10,000 - 

14,999

15,000 - 

19,999

20,000 - 

29,999

30,000 - 

39,999

40,000 - 

49,999

50,000 - 

59,999

60,000 - 

69,999

70,000 - 

79,999

80,000 - 

89,999

90,000 - 

Plus

Additional Fee (£) 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 16,000 24,000 32,000 40,000 48,000 56,000 64,000

Annual Fee and Variation Fee For Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates

Payable on anniversary of grant

Plus additional fee see below if capacity is over 5,000

Mulitplier applies to band D and E 

If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:

Band D = £320 X 2 = £640

Band E = £350 X 3 = £1050

For Club paid by sceretary

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value £70 £180 £295 £320 £350

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000 

Capacity

5,000 - 

9,999

10,000 - 

14,999

15,000 - 

19,999

20,000 - 

29,999

30,000 - 

39,999

40,000 - 

49,999

50,000 - 

59,999

60,000 - 

69,999

70,000 - 

79,999

80,000 - 

89,999

90,000 - 

Plus

Additional Fee (£) 500 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 12,000 16,000 20,000 24,000 28,000 32,000

P
age 90



APPENDIX 4

Other Fees

£

PREMISES Theft, Loss etc of Premises Licence or Summary 10.50

315.00

10.50

23.00

23.00

23.00

CLUBS 10.50

10.50

10.50

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE 21.00

10.50

PERSONAL LICENCE 37.00

10.50

10.50

FREEHOLDER/LEASEHOLDER 21.00

Exemption of Fees for Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates

Applies for regulated entertainment at certain premises

Premises - school, college, church or community hall or similar building

The exemption does not apply to any other licensable activity within these premises

Exemption

No fee for grant or variation

No annual fee

Theft, Loss etc of Club Premises Certificates or Summary

Change of Name or Alteration of Club Rules

Theft, Loss etc of Personal Licence 

Register of Interest

Change of Registered Address of Club

Temporary Event Notice

Theft, Loss etc of Temporary Event Notice

Grant/Renewal of Personal Licence

Change of Name and Address

Interim Authority

Transfer: Premises Licence

OTHER FEE

Provisional Statement

Change of Name or Address (Premises Licence Holder)

Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor

P
age 91



APPENDIX 4

HACKNEY CARRIAGE, PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE AND OTHER LICENCES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence 126.00 0.00 126.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - 

RENEWAL 106.50 0.00 106.50 Non business - No VAT charge

DVLA Licence check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Additional manual DVLA check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Private Hire Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Private Hire Operators Licence 172.50 0.00 172.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Hire of Vehicle Plate 26.00 0.00 26.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Replacement Drivers Badge 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Drivers Knowledge Test Fee 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mogo Plate Fee 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mogo Plate Bracket 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Route 2 DBS validation check 20.00 0.00 20.00 Non business - no VAT charge

DBS check (Set by DBS) 44.00 0.00 44.00 Non business - no VAT charge

P
age 92



APPENDIX 4
FEES FOR GAMBLING ACT 2005 (introduced wef 21st May 2007)

2019/20

LICENCE TYPE BBC

Charge

Bingo Premises Licence

Application fee for provisional statement 784.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 461.00

Application fee new premises 784.00

Annual Fee 572.50

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Adult Gaming Centre

Application fee for provisional statement 721.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00

Application fee new premises 721.00

Annual Fee 447.50

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Family Entertainment Centre

Application fee for provisional statement 721.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 406.00

Application fee new premises 721.00

Annual Fee 413.50

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Betting Premises 

Application fee for provisional statement 721.00

Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00

Application fee new premises 721.00

Annual Fee 392.00

Variation of Licence 700.00

Transfer fee 448.00

Application for reinstatement 448.00

Miscellaneous

Change of circumstances 25.00

Fee for copy notices 15.00

Fee for copy of a licence 15.00

Fee for Permits - Statutory 15.00

Temporary Use Notices 165.00

Gambling permit

Gambling permit - Club gaming permit (new/renewal) 200.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming permit annual fee 50.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming permit - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - Variation 100.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit (new/renewal) 200.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit annual fee 50.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - variation 100.00

Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit (new/renewal/Transitional fee) 100.00

Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit Annual fee 50.00

Gambling permit - small society lottery registration 40.00

Gambling permit - small society lottery registration  annual fee 20.00

Alcohol and entertainment licences/temporary events permits

Gambling pemit - FEC gaming machine (new/renewal) 300.00

Gambling permit - FEC permit - change of name 25.00

Gambling permit - FEC permit - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - Prize gaming (new/renewal) 300.00

Gambling permit - Prize gaming - change of name 25.00

Gambling permit - Prize gaming - copy of permit 15.00

Gambling permit - alcohol licensed premises - Notification of 2 or less machines 50.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines 150.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Annual fee 50.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Change of name 25.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Copy  of permit 15.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Variation 100.00

Gamling permit - Alocohol licesned premises - more than 2 machines - Transfer 25.00Page 93



APPENDIX 4

LAND CHARGES

Proposed 

LCC LCC BBC BBC Charges 

Element Element (with VAT) Element (no VAT) Element (with VAT) 2019/20

£ £ £ £ £

CON 29 Search Fee  - Part R (Manual) 21.00 25.20 52.50 63.00 88.20 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part R (Electronic) 21.00 25.20 52.50 63.00 88.20 Standard rate

Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.  Deregulated 07-

08 (Manual) 0.00 21.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge

NLIS Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.  

Deregulated 07-08 (Electronic) 0.00 21.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 4 1.00 1.20 14.50 17.40 18.60 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 8 1.00 1.20 4.00 4.80 6.00 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 21 3.00 3.60 12.00 14.40 18.00

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 22 6.00 7.20 8.50 10.20 17.40 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 0.00 12.00 14.40 14.40 Standard rate

Additional Enquiries 0.00 18.00 21.60 21.60 Non business - No VAT charge

CON 29 Search Fee - (manual & electronic) Additional Parcels 

of Land 17.00 20.40 20.40 Standard rate

LLC1 Additional Parcels of Land 0.00 1.00 1.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Cancellation of LLC1 10.00 10.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Cancellation of CON 29 0.00 30.00 36.00 36.00 Standard rate

Informal Searches 0.00 26.00 31.20 31.20 Standard rate

P
age 94



APPENDIX 4LEISURE POOL 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

LEISURE POOL

Swimming

Adult 4.20 0.20 4.40 Standard rate 

OAP Concessions 3.20 0.20 3.40 Standard rate 

Junior Swim    3.10 0.10 3.20 Standard rate 

Disabled Concession 2.80 0.20 3.00 Standard rate 

Spectator 1.00 1.00 Standard rate 

Family Swim 11.30 0.70 12.00 Standard rate 

Lessons Junior and Adult (1/2 hour x 7 sessions) 29.40 1.40 30.80 Exempt - no VAT

One to One swimming lessons 16.70 0.80 17.50 Exempt - no VAT

Crash course swimming lessons (1/2 hour x 5 sessions) 21.50 1.00 22.50 Exempt - no VAT

Activity Sessions 6.00 0.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Adults 5.90 0.10 6.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Concession 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit College / School 4.30 4.30 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Staff non member 3.15 3.15 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Staff member 3.00 3.00 Exempt - no VAT

Kids Club - Membership 12.50 0.50 13.00 Exempt - no VAT

Child Activity Pack - Monthly Pass 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT

Child Activity Pack - 30 day pass 20.00 5.00 25.00 Exempt - no VAT

Kids Club - Member session fee 2.70 0.10 2.80 Exempt - no VAT

Kids Club - Non member fee 4.90 0.10 5.00 Exempt - no VAT

Under 5's Swim    1.00 1.00 Exempt - no VAT

Aqua Fit (Single session) 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT

School (per child) with staff supervision 1.60 0.10 1.70 Exempt - no VAT

Club and Individual Training

BASC agreed rate per week ( as determined throught the Partnership SLA)(not in on Sundays 

wef: Sept 2015) Price set until August 2018 1,041.50 35.40 1,076.90 Exempt - no VAT

Leisure Pool Hire

Training Room Activity Room 25.00 0.50 25.50 See note 1 below

Party Package (Pool plus activity room - max 30) (inc £20 deposit) 120.00 5.00 125.00 Standard rate 

Party Package (Activity Room) 50.00 50.00 Standard rate 

Table Tennis (table hire 55 minutes - activity room) 5.00 5.00 Standard rate 

Table Tennis (bat hire 55 minutes - activity room) 1.50 1.50 Standard rate 

Six month Swim Pass

12 months Adult NEW FEE 301.20 Standard rate

6 months OAP Concessions NEW FEE 270.00 Standard rate

30 Day Swim Pass 31.50 3.50 35.00

Adult - Direct Debit monthly 25.10 1.30 26.40

Concessions - Direct Debit monthly - now in line with gym - 1 price for concessions 22.50 1.20 23.70

Courses / Training

RLSS NPLQ (Including First Aid) 230.00 230.00 Exempt - no VAT

First Aid 125.00 125.00 Exempt - no VAT

Defib 70.00 70.00 Exempt - no VAT

NRASTAC (School teacher safety training) 90.00 90.00 Exempt - no VAT

Note 1 - The VAT liability of the charge for the activity areas is exempt if it is purely room hire, without use of pool.

Note 2 - The VAT liability may change if there are a series of lets - please refer to rules on Sports Charges Fees & Charges page

P
age 95



APPENDIX 4

FITNESS SUITE

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

FITNESS SUITE 

Club membership

Induction (knocked off joining fee in 1st month) 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Joining Fee 25.00 25.00 Standard rate 

Joining Fee (College/BBC) 15.00 15.00 Standard rate 

Monthly fees (club members)

Gym/health/swim - 29.60 0.35 29.95 Standard rate 

Corporate 26.50 26.50 Standard rate 

Student 21.00 21.00 Standard rate 

Concession 22.50 1.20 23.70 Standard rate 

All facilities annual - 12+1 months from 15 months 432.00 -72.60 359.40 Standard rate 

All facilities annual CONCESSION - 12+1 months from 15 months 270.00 Standard rate 

3 Month Pack - 108.00 REMOVED

3 Month Concession membership 72.00 REMOVED

One month activity pass 46.00 Standard rate 

Monthly fees (College)

All facilities 21.00 1.50 22.50 Standard rate 

Casual fees (College & BBC )

Gym 6.50 0.30 6.80 Standard rate 

Classes 4.30 0.20 4.50 Exempt - no VAT

Health/swim 4.30 0.20 4.50 Standard rate 

Float Fit - Member 3.00 3.00 Exempt - no VAT

Casual fees (non-members)

Gym 10.00 10.00 Standard rate 

Concession Gym 5.00 0.25 5.25 Standard rate 

Classes 6.50 0.50 7.00 Exempt - no VAT

Float Fit - Concession Non-Member 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT

Extend class 2.50 0.20 2.70 Exempt - no VAT

Fit Fifties class 3.70 0.20 3.90 Exempt - no VAT

Health/swim 7.00 0.40 7.40 Standard rate 

Full fitness assessment 30.70 30.70 Exempt - no VAT

GP referral scheme 20.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

Group Rig and TRX training 15.00 -5.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Personal Training (member) 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT

Personal Training (NON member) 20.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

Weight and body composition 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Page 96



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Craft Market

Per stall - payment on day 14.00 0.00 14.00 Exempt - no VAT

Per stall - paid up front (quarter or month) 12.00 0.00 12.00 Exempt - no VAT

15 Stalls Maximum

CRAFT MARKET CHARGES

P
age 97



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Market Place & Bargate - (stall hire-10ft width)

Regular trader **

per market 23.00 0.00 23.00 Exempt - no VAT

per market (monthly in advance) 21.00 0.00 21.00 Exempt - no VAT

per market (quarterly in advance) 20.00 0.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

per market (annually in advance) 19.00 0.00 19.00 Exempt - no VAT

Casual Trader

per market 26.00 0.00 26.00 Exempt - no VAT

Market Place - 100 markets/50 weeks

Bargate Market - 

Pitches (per 1ft. Frontage)

Regular trader **

per market 1.70 0.00 1.70 Exempt - no VAT

per market (monthly in advance) 1.50 0.00 1.50 Exempt - no VAT

per market (quarterly in advance) 1.40 0.00 1.40 Exempt - no VAT

Vehicle space - removed 6.20 -6.20 0.00 Removed

Electricity (other than for lights in winter) 2.00 0.00 2.00 Standard rate 

Trade Waste Bin 1000l 13.00 0.00 13.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Trade Waste Bin 240l 3.00 0.00 3.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Trade Waste Bags 2.00 0.00 2.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Casual Trader

per market 2.10 0.00 2.10 Exempt - no VAT

Market Trader Parking Permits

3 hour ticket purchased for all day-limited car parks 2.50 0.00 2.50 Standard or non business

(depends on car park)

** Incentive for regular traders that stand every week April to Feb (excluding holidays) can stand for free in March. 

** Incentive for NEW traders only stand for 4 markets and get 4 free

MARKET CHARGES

P
age 98



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Community/Individual Event fee not for profit  (up to 500 people) 185.00 -115.00 70.00 standard rate

Community/Individual Event fee not for profit (between 500 -999 

people) 350.00 -255.00 95.00 standard rate

Registered Charity (up to 500 people) 92.50 -22.50 70.00 standard rate

Registered Charity (between 500 - 999 people) 175.00 -80.00 95.00 standard rate

Commercial event (up to 500 people) £1,000 bond 500.00 0.00 0.00 Removed

Commercial event (between 500 - 999 people) £1,000 bond 800.00 0.00 0.00 Removed

All events over 1000 people Removed

All Commercial events Revised fee

Use of Premises Licence (500 -999 people) 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non Standard

Use of Premises Licence (up to 500 people) 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non Standard

Asistance with events in Boston Market place (per event) 0.00 50.00 50.00 New fee

List of Event Spaces – this relates to Borough Council land only 

 (other spaces, such as Market Place, are owned and controlled by Lincolnshire County Council)

Broadfield Lane Recreation Ground

Burgess Pit Recreation Ground

Shelton’s Field Recreation Ground

Central Park

St. Johns Recreation Ground

Witham Way Country Park

Woodville Road Recreation Ground

EVENT CHARGES

Price negotiated

Price negotiatedP
age 99



APPENDIX 4PARKING FEES Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20

£ £ £

SHORT STAY CAR PARKS (Mon - Sat 8am - 6pm)

30mins (Market Place Only) N/A 0.00 N/A

1 Hr 1.50 0.00 1.50

2 Hrs 2.50 0.00 2.50

MIXED STAY CAR PARKS (Mon - Sat 8am-6pm)

1 Hr 1.50 0.00 1.50

2 Hrs 2.00 0.00 2.00

3 Hrs 2.50 0.00 2.50

4 Hrs 3.00 0.00 3.00

All day (8am to 6pm) 4.00 0.00 4.00

LONG STAY CAR PARKS (Mon - Sat 8am-6pm)

2 Hrs 1.00 0.00 1.00

3 Hrs 1.20 0.00 1.20

4 Hrs 1.50 0.00 1.50

All day (8am to 6pm) 2.50 0.00 2.50

OTHER TARIFFS

Evening (6pm to 8am) 1.00 0.00 1.00

Sunday (8am to 6pm) 1.20 0.00 1.20

Coach 3.50 0.00 3.50

St George's Rd Car park:

2 day tariff (48hrs) 5.00 0.00 5.00

3 day tariff (72 hrs) 7.00 0.00 7.00

7 day tariff (168 hrs) 15.00 0.00 15.00

VAT RATES: Standard Off Street Parking

Non Business On Street Parking

P
age 100



APPENDIX 4PARKING SEASON TICKETS AND FINES Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20

£ £ £

Trade bay (annual) 24 hours per day 370.00 0.00 370.00

Traders bay (quarterly) 24 hours per day 100.00 0.00 100.00

Traders bay (monthly) 24 hours per day 35.00 0.00 35.00

Parent Parking Permits 

(selected car parks only)

(per day according to 

number of school days 

each term) 0.50 0.00 0.50

Premier Permit (annual) - long 

stay 24 hours per day 450.00 0.00 450.00

Premier Permit (quarterly) - long 

stay 24 hours per day 120.00 0.00 120.00

Premier Permit (monthly) - long 

stay 24 hours per day 45.00 0.00 45.00

Season Tickets - daily (annual) - 

long stay 8 am - 6 pm 350.00 0.00 350.00

Season Tickets - daily 

(quarterly) - long stay 8 am - 6 pm 95.00 0.00 95.00

Season Tickets - daily (monthly) - 

long stay 8 am - 6 pm 35.00 0.00 35.00

Season Ticket - overnight 

(annual) 6 pm - 8.00 am 210.00 0.00 210.00

Season Ticket - overnight 

(quarterly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 60.00 0.00 60.00

Season Ticket - overnight 

(monthly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 25.00 0.00 25.00

Resident's season tickets 

(annual) 24 hours per day 225.00 0.00 225.00

Resident's season tickets 

(quarterly) 24 hours per day 60.00 0.00 60.00

Resident's season tickets 

(monthly) 24 hours per day 22.50 0.00 22.50

Resident's season ticket-daily 

(annual) 8am - 6pm 175.00 0.00 175.00

Resident's season ticket-daily 

(quarterly) 8am - 6pm 47.50 0.00 47.50

Resident's season ticket - daily 

(monthly) 8am - 6pm 17.50 0.00 17.50

P
age 101



APPENDIX 4PARKING SEASON TICKETS AND FINES Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20

£ £ £

Resident's season ticket-

overnight (annual) 6pm - 8am 105.00 0.00 105.00

Resident's season ticket- 

overnight (quarterly) 6pm - 8am 30.00 0.00 30.00

Resident's season ticket - 

overnight (monthly) 6pm - 8am 22.50 0.00 22.50

Blue Street season ticket 24 hours per day 150.00 0.00 150.00

Staff Charges 7 Days n/a 0.00 n/a

Staff Charges Weekdays only n/a 0.00 n/a

Bus Departures 0.32 0.00 0.32

Lower Band Penalty Charge 

Notice(PCN) (paid within 14 

days) 25.00 0.00 25.00

Lower Band Penalty Charge 

Notice(PCN) (paid within 14-28 

days) 50.00 0.00 50.00

Lower Band Penalty Charge 

Notice(PCN) (paid after 28 days) 75.00 0.00 75.00

Higher Band Penalty Charge 

Notice(PCN) (paid within 14 

days) 35.00 0.00 35.00

Higher Band Penalty Charge 

Notice(PCN) (paid within 14-28 

days) 70.00 0.00 70.00

Higher Band Penalty Charge 

Notice(PCN) (paid after 28 days) 105.00 0.00 105.00

The above parking charges are inclusive of VAT

Penalty Charge Notices are Non-Vatable

The bus departure rates are exclusive of VAT (standard rated)

P
age 102



APPENDIX 4

BUILDING CONTROL FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Copy of Building Regulation Approval (where number is quoted) 38.00 38.00 Standard rate

Letter of Comfort 48.00 48.00 Standard rate

Building Regulations (Confirmation of erection of outbuildings in 

accordance with the approved plans) 189.00 189.00 Standard rate

P
age 103



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Copy of Planning Decision Notice 5.00 5.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Planning Committee Agenda 7.10 7.10 Zero rated - 0%

Photocopy of Background Papers per sheet 0.10 0.10 Standard rate 

Each additional A4 sheet per sheet 0.10 0.10 Standard rate 

Planning Application information searches 25.70 25.70 Non business - no VAT charge

Lincolnshire Design Guide (County wide price) 32.80 32.80 Zero rated - 0%

Production of Plans for consultation and inspection 

purposes only

A0 size (841mm x 1189mm) 4.10 4.10 Standard rate 

A1 size (841mm x 594mm) 2.10 2.10 Standard rate 

A2 size (420mm x 594mm) 1.00 1.00 Standard rate 

A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Black & White 0.30 0.30 Standard rate 

A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Colour 0.60 0.60 Standard rate 

A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Black & White 0.10 0.10 Standard rate 

A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Colour 0.20 0.20 Standard rate 

Adopted South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 37.30 37.30 Zero rated - 0%

Postage & Packaging 5.50 Standard rate 

Copy of Tree Preservation Orders 5.00 5.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Copies of Local Development Schemes 17.10 17.10 Zero rated - 0%

If invoice is required for any of above services 5.40 5.40 VAT liability depends on what invoice is for

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

P
age 104



APPENDIX 4PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Planning Application Fees

Charges 

2019/20

£

Outline Planning Permission

For every 0.1ha up to 2.5ha 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For outline applications with a site area exceeding 2.5ha 11,432.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each 0.1ha over 2.5ha to a maximum £150,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Alterations or extensions to existing dwellings ("householder 

applications) 206.00 Non business - no VAT charge

2 or more dwellings 407.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Operation within curtilage of dwellinghouse or ancillary to 206.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Erection of dwellings for each dwelling up to 50 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For developments of more than 50 dwellings 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each dwelling over the 50th, to a maximum of £300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Other dwellings where no more than 40sqm floorspace 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

between 40 and 75sqm floorspace 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Every additional 75sqm floorspace created up to 3750sqm 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Where floorspace exceeds 3750sqm, plus 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each additional 75sqm to a maximum of £300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For every 0.1ha not exceeding 5ha 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For a site area exceeding 5ha 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each additional 0.1ha above 5ha to a maximum of 

£300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

For no more than 465sqm floorspace created 96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Between 465 and 540sqm floorspace created 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Between 540 and 4215sqm plus 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each 75sqm of additional floorspace over 540sqm created 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Exceeding 4215sqm 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each additional 75sqm above 4215sqm to a maximum of 

£300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Application Type:

Full Applications and Applications for Approval of Reserved 

Matters following an Outline Permission

Alterations or extensions to existing dwellings

Erection of dwellings

Plant or machinery

Other buildings

Operations within curtilage of dwellinghouse, or purpose ancillary 

to use of dwellinghouse

Agriculltural Buildings

P
age 105



APPENDIX 4PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

No more than 465sqm floorspace created 96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

When more than 465sqm floorspace created 2,580.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Buildings or land, including caravan sites 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

A building to more than one dwelling for each additional dwelling 

not exceeding 50 dwellings 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

More than 50 dwellings, plus 22,859.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Add for each dwelling over the 50th subject to a maximum of 

£300,000 138.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Car parks, service roads, accesses at existing developments 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Other operations for every 0.1ha up to £2028 maximum 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Relating to the business on the premises 132.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Advance direction signs to a business 132.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Other advertisements 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Agriculture, forestry or demolition proposals 96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Change of use *refer to guidance 96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Change of use including building operations * refer to guidance 206.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Telecommunications 462.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Variation or removal of a condition 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

- Existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with a condition 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Existing use or operation same as full PP Non business - no VAT charge

- Proposed development half the normal fee Non business - no VAT charge

If related to alterations to a dwelling house including outbuildings, 

walls etc 34.00 Non business - no VAT charge

All other developments 116.00 Non business - no VAT charge

If a householder application 34.00 Non business - no VAT charge

In any other case 234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Application for Permission in Principle

For each 0.1ha site area 402.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Confirmation of Compliance with Condition(s) on a Permission

Lawful Development Certificates

Glasshouses and Polytunnels for purpose of Agriculture

Applications for Non-Material Changes to Planning Permission

Changes of Use

Other Applications

No Buildings Created

Advertisements

Prior Notifications and Approvals

P
age 106



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT

Householder development including alterations and extensions. 72.00 13.00 85.00 Standard rate 

Change of use including siting of caravans. 150.00 40.00 190.00 Standard rate 

Development of 1-10 dwellings, or residential development on sites of less than 0.50 ha including 

changes of use to residential. 300.00

£220 for 1st dwelling; and 

£130 for each additional 

dwelling. Standard rate 

Development of 11-50 dwellings, or residential development on sites of over 0.50 ha but less than 1.0 

ha including changes of use to residential.

480 (for 11 or >0.5ha) 

plus £60 for each 

dwelling above 11 up 

to a max of £2,820

£1,000 for the 10th dwelling; 

and £65 for each additional 

dwelling. Standard rate 

Development of 51+ dwellings, or residential development on sites of more than 1.0 including changes 

of use to residential. 3,000.00

Minimum fee £3,000 with 

additional fee subject to 

negotiation dependent upon 

complexity of proposal (PPA 

encouraged) and resources 

required. Standard rate 

Non residential development up to 499 square metres floor area or 0.50 hectare site area. 150.00 50.00 200.00 Standard rate 

Non residential development of over 500 and 999 square metres floor area or between 0.51 and 1.0 

hectares site area. 300.00

£250 plus £125 for each 

additional 100m²; or £1,000 

for each 0.1 ha Standard rate 

Non residential development of over 1000 and 4999 square metres floor area or between 1.1 and 2.0 

hectares site area.

500 plus £50 for each 

100 sqm up to 4,900 

sqm

£825 for 1000m² plus £75 for 

each additional 100m² or 0.1 

ha. Standard rate 

Non residential development of over 5000 square metres floor area or over 2.1 hectares site area. 3,000.00

£3,000 with additional fee 

subject to negotiation 

dependent upon complexity of 

proposal (PPA encouraged). Standard rate 

Alterations to non-residential development where no new floor area space is created. 72.00 28.00 100.00 Standard rate 

Variation or removal of planning conditions, Telecommunications development, Certificates of Lawful 

Development, Advertisements, and Listed Building Advice. 72.00

£80.00;                                             

Alterations to a listed building 

£120.00; Additional site visit 

£125.00 Standard rate 

Exemptions and Reductions

Proposals by parish and town councils and non profit making organisations No Charge No Charge

Proposals relating to the needs of persons with disabilities. No Charge No Charge

Proposals by registered social landlords No Charge No Charge

Proposals relating to a proposal on a property subject to an article 4 direction No Charge No Charge

Proposals form part of a scheme of works covered by the Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas No Charge No Charge

Where a proposal covers more than one category of development the highest of the relevant fees will be charged.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES-PRE APPLICATION ADVICE

P
age 107



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - PLANNING PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20

£ £ £

Planning

Daylight / Sunlight assessment £1,200.00 Standard rate 
Economic / Employment Statement £1,200.00 Standard rate 

Consultees

Environmental Health - 

 - Contaminated Land £240.00 Standard rate 

 - Air Quality £240.00 Standard rate 

 - Noise £240.00 Standard rate 

 - Vibration £240.00 Standard rate 

 - Odour £240.00 Standard rate 

 - Lighting £240.00 Standard rate 

 - Health Impact Assessments £240.00 Standard rate 

Conservation - Heritage £480.00 Standard rate 

Conservation - Biodiversity £600.00 Standard rate 

Archaeology £180.00 Standard rate 

Environmental Operations (Bins / Waste) £120.00 Standard rate 

Policy £480.00 Standard rate 

Housing Department (Affordable Housing) £1,000.00 Standard rate 

Structural Assessment of Building £600.00 Standard rate 

Fees Relating to Developments Subject to Planning Performance Agreements or subject to 

negotiations.

P
age 108



APPENDIX 4

SPORTS CHARGES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Football Pitch per match under-10's 17.00 0.00 17.00 Standard rate

Football Pitch per match under-16's 22.00 0.00 22.00 Standard rate

Football Pitch per match Adults 35.00 0.00 35.00 Standard rate

Football Pitch unauthorised use 80.00 0.00 80.00 Standard rate

Bowls per hour n/a n/a charge no longer applicable

Bowls seasonal ticket n/a n/a charge no longer applicable

Please avoid single lets for 24 hours or more and series of lets.

If pitch/court is a single let for 24hours or more, income is exempt and therefore no VAT is charged.

If pitch/court is a series of lets and fulfills ALL of the following criteria, income is exempt (no VAT charged):

1. 10 or more lets/sessions booked

2. Each let is for the same activity

3. Each let is in the same place

4. The interval between each let is at least 1 day, but no more than 14 days

5. The series of lets is paid for as a whole and there is no provision for a refund

6. The facilities are let out to a school, club, association or organisation such as local league

7. The person(s) to whom facilities are let has exclusive use of them during the sessions

P
age 109



APPENDIX 4

Homeless Hostel Rent and Charges 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £

 - Rent element only per week 156.80 0.00 156.80 Exempt

 - Rent element only per night 25.40 0.00 25.40 Exempt

 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per wk 21.00 0.00 21.00 Exempt

 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per night 3.00 0.00 3.00 Exempt

TOTAL CHARGE PER WEEK 177.80 177.80

TOTAL CHARGE PER NIGHT 28.40 28.40P
age 110



APPENDIX 4

HMO LICENCE FEES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £

HMO with up to 5 lets 500.30 -500.30 0.00 Removed

Variation of existing licence 0.00 0.00 0.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Process of initial application cost - Part 1 479.00 0.00 479.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Post approval application cost - Part 2 469.00 0.00 469.00 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 111



APPENDIX 4

Housing Act Notice

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £

Hazard Awareness Notice (Owner Occupier) No Charge 0.00 No Charge Exempt

Hazard Awareness Notice (private rented sector) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Exempt

Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition 

Order - (for one hazard) 200.00 0.00 200.00 Exempt

Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition 

Order - (for each additional hazard included within 

the Notice / Order) 60.00 0.00 60.00 Exempt

P
age 112



Other Housing Fees 

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £

Charge for Immigration inspections 76.00 -76.00 0.00 Removed/Included in fee below

Property inspection and report (per 

hour) 95.00 0.00 95.00 Exempt

P
age 113



APPENDIX 4
PROPERTY SERVICES

Proposed Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Naming of a new street £92.80 per street. £92.80 per street. Non business - no VAT charge

Renaming of an existing street at the request of all of its residents. £92.80 for the street 

plus £23.20 per dwelling

£92.80 for the street 

plus £23.20 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on an existing street. £34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 1 – 5 plots.

£34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 6 – 10 plots.

£ 29.00 per dwelling £ 29.00 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 11 - 29 plots.

£ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 30 - 74 plots.

£ 17.40 per dwelling £ 17.40 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development 

consisting of 75 + plots

£13.35 per dwelling £13.35 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

Addition or alteration of a name to an existing dwelling. £ 34.80 per dwelling £ 34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge

Changes to a development after initial application for naming and 

numbering has been processed.

£ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling

Non business - no VAT charge

P
age 114



APPENDIX 4

Current 3% Proposed 

Charges Increase Charges VAT

2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 LIABILITY

£ £ £

Hire of Council Chamber 20.80 0.60 21.40 Standard rate 

Hire of Meeting Room 20.80 0.60 21.40 Standard rate 

Hire of Committee Room 20.80 0.60 21.40 Standard rate 

Hire of Haven Room 20.80 -10.10 10.70 Standard rate 

Hire of Maud Foster 0.00 10.70 10.70 Standard rate 

Refreshments at meetings 14.70 0.40 15.10 Standard rate 

Sale of Electoral Registers - FIXED BY STATUTE

* These charges are per hour of rental

CIVIC AND ELECTORAL

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

Reserve Purpose

Balance 

01.04.19 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance 

31.03.20

Net Change 

in Year

Balance 

31.03.21

Net Change 

in Year

Balance 

31.03.22

Net Change 

in Year

Balance 

31.03.23

Net Change 

in Year

Balance 

31.03.24

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ £'000 £

Capital Funding 4,187 1,099 (1,531) 3,755 1,112 4,867 1,194 6,061 1,249 7,310 1,107              8,417

Transformation 985 5 (44) 946 (12) 934 (11) 923 -                      923 -                      923

ICT 367 -                      (45) 322 (100) 222 (45) 177 (80) 97 (20) 77

Repairs and Renewals 715 35 (151) 599 26 625 35 660 36 696 35                   731

Housing 1,070 23 (302) 791 (2) 789 -                      789 -                      789 -                      789

Controlling Migration Fund 530 -                      (530) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Tax 1,427 1,065              (20) 2,472 -                      2,472 -                      2,472              -                      2,472 -                      2,472

Insurance 290 -                      -                      290 -                      290 -                      290                 -                      290 -                      290

Risk Mitigation Reserve 249 751 -                      1,000 0 1,000 0 1,000              0 1,000 -                      1,000

9,820 2,978 (2,623) 10,175 1,024 11,199 1,173 12,372 1,205 13,577 1,122 14,699

RESERVE MOVEMENTS SUMMARY

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6 
 

Asset Strategy Update – January 2019 
  
Strategic Objective 1  
 
‘Over the next three years we will fundamentally review our property holdings and explore all options 
for underused, costly and inefficient assets’.  
 
Over the past 12 months we have:  
 

 Reviewed rents in respect of our income-generating portfolio, seeking to increase them where possible  

 An additional 15 locations have been equipped with remote access technology 
 

 
Strategic Objective 2  
 
‘Over the next three years we will review all of our community asset holdings and assess the long term 
options for their use. This will include consideration of community asset transfer together with looking 
at alternative uses that may better meet our corporate objectives’.  
 
Over the past 12 months we have:  
 

 Entered into negotiations on the possible sale of a sub-station site in the town  
 

Strategic Objective 3  
 
‘Over the next three years we will review our office accommodation needs. This will include exploring 
options for sharing with others, making better use of what we already have and looking at whether 
better opportunities exist for us elsewhere. It will also include looking at how we work and whether 
opportunities exist for mobile and home working’.  
 

 We have continued the successful new ways of working regime amalgamating various internal teams 
into remodelled and highly efficient office spaces 

 Freed up additional office space within the Municipal Buildings to facilitate letting of large areas to 
DWP, LCC Registrars Service, Lincolnshire Community and Voluntary Service (CVS), Humberside, 
Lincolnshire and North Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation Company (HLNY CRC Ltd) and other 
potential occupiers with a view to further reducing our own costs 

 There are now 677 staff, working for 15 different organisations who use the Municipal Buildings 

 Technology solutions to enable mobile working implemented, and used regularly by Building Control, 
Housing and Town Centre Services. 
 

Strategic Objective 4  
 
‘Over the next three years we will maximise the use of our Asset Management Software. We will do this 
to ensure that we can better monitor and report information about our portfolio and strengthen our 
decision making in relation to Strategic Asset Management’.  
 

 Refined and updated our migrated primary asset information to better inform decision making 
 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7 

 

Capital Strategy – 2019/20 update 

 

Following the publication of revised guidance by CIPFA and MHCLG, the Council approved 

an amended Capital and Treasury Strategy in April 2018 (the Strategy and its appendices 

can be viewed at 

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1165&Ver=4 ) 

 

For 2019/20 it is considered that a light touch refresh is appropriate, given the relatively short 

space of time that has elapsed since the amended Strategy was approved. 

 

Legislative framework 

There has been no change to the framework since the approval of the amended 2018/19 

Strategy, although there is concern that some councils are undertaking significant activities 

in respect of both borrowing and commercial property investment, and CIPFA and the 

Government have indicated that these are areas where they will continue to review the 

position and will act if considered appropriate. 

However, there is one item where a minor adjustment is required, following dialogue with the 

Council’s appointed auditors, the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) approved in April is 

being slightly amended from 31 March 2019 to reflect the requirement to provide an element 

of MRP annually. 

 

The Council’s Financial Position 

The projected position for 2019/20 and for the further four years to 2023/24 are shown in the 

draft budget report and appendices. There continues to be pressure on both revenue and 

capital resources and therefore careful management will be required to balance spending 

needs and resources across the whole of the Council’s operations. 

 

2018/19 update 

The amended 2018/19 Strategy recommended the purchase of capital Property Fund 

holdings up to the value of £20m, and this was concluded in the third quarter of this year (the 

Audit and Governance Committee has received updates during the year). At the time of 

preparing this report, £14m of fixed long term borrowing for 50 years had been undertaken, 

at an average interest rate of 2.5%. The remainder is being funded from cash resources in 

the short term, and further long term borrowing is set to take place before the end of the 

2018/19 financial year. 

 

 

 

Page 121

http://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1165&Ver=4


 

Governance 

The current Strategy set out the governance arrangements considered necessary to ensure 

that the Council receives regular updates on progress with the Strategy, and that best 

practice is observed. The election of the new Council in May 2019 will be accompanied by 

training to provide members with sufficient knowledge to undertake their roles. There are no 

changes proposed to the project development, assessment, approval and monitoring 

processes currently in place. 

 

Risks and Mitigations 

The Strategy is very clear that there are risks associated with the purchase of capital 

Property Fund holdings, and they are set out, along with their proposed mitigations, in the 

Strategy approved in April. 

 

 

 

Page 122



1 

 

Appendix C 
 
 

Boston Borough Council 
 
 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement 

 
 
 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 
and Annual Investment Strategy 2019/20 

 
 

 
 

 
Effective from 31 March 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 123



2 

 

Index                Page No 
 

1. Introduction           3-7 
1.1 Background            
1.2 Reporting requirements          
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20       
1.4 The Current Treasury Position at 31 December 2018                        
1.5 Training           
1.6  Treasury management consultants        
 

2. The Capital Prudential Indicators 2018/19 to 2023/24     8-11  
2.1 Introduction 
2.2 Capital expenditure plans 
2.3 The Council’s borrowing need (Capital Financing Requirement)  
2.4 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 

 2.5   Core funds and expected investment balances  
 2.6. Affordability Prudential Indicators  

 
3. Borrowing         12-15 

3.1 Current Portfolio Position 
3.2 Treasury indicators: limits to borrowing activity 
3.3 Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
3.4 Prospects for interest rates 
3.5 Borrowing strategy  
3.6 Policy of borrowing in advance of need 

  
4. Annual Investment Strategy       16-21 

4.1 Investment policy-Management of Risk 
4.2 Creditworthiness policy 

  4.3 Country Limits 
4.4 Investment Strategy 
4.5 Investment reporting 
 

5. Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation        22 
 

6. The Treasury Management Role of the Chief Finance Officer 
(Section 151 Officer)               23 
 

7. Appendices          24-25 
7.1 Specified and Non-Specified Investments  

 7.2 Interest rate forecasts 2019-2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 124



3 

 

1.  INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Background 
 
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget annually, which broadly means 
that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s risk appetite, 
providing adequate security and liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
  
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may 
involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. 
On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, 
as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to 
meet spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for 
larger capital projects.  The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs 
of debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the available 
budget.  Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, it is 
paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal 
will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund Balance. 
 
Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury 
function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising 
usually from capital expenditure), and are separate from the day to day treasury 
management activities. 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury 
management as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 
Revised reporting is required for the 2019/20 reporting cycle due to revisions of the 
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Investment 
Guidance, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance, the CIPFA 
Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.  The primary reporting 
changes include the introduction of a capital strategy, to provide a longer-term focus 
to the capital plans, and greater reporting requirements surrounding any commercial 
activity undertaken under the Localism Act 2011.  The capital strategy is being 
reported separately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



4 

 

1.2 Reporting Requirements 
 

1.2.1 Capital Strategy 
 
The CIPFA revised 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require, for 
2019/20, all local authorities to prepare an additional report, a capital strategy report, 
which will provide the following:  
 

 a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services; 

 an overview of how the associated risk is managed; 
 the implications for future financial sustainability. 

 
The aim of the capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full council 
fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy 
requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite. 
 
The capital strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement; non-treasury investments will be reported through the former. This 
ensures the separation of the core treasury function under security, liquidity and yield 
principles, and the policy and commercialism investments usually driven by 
expenditure on an asset.  The capital strategy shows: 
 

 the corporate governance arrangements for these types of activities; 
 any service objectives relating to the investments; 
 the expected income, costs and resulting contribution;  
 the debt related to the activity and the associated interest costs;  
 the payback period (MRP policy);  
 for non-loan type investments, the cost against the current market value;  
 the risks associated with each activity. 

 
Where a physical asset is being bought, details of market research, advisers used 
(and their monitoring), ongoing costs and investment requirements and any credit 
information will be disclosed, including the ability to sell the asset and realise the 
investment cash. 
 
If any non-treasury investment sustains a loss during the year, implications upon the 
final accounts and audit process, the strategy and revenue will be reported through 
the same procedure as the capital strategy. 
 
To demonstrate the proportionality between treasury and non-treasury operations, 
high-level comparators are shown throughout this report. 

 
1.2.2 Treasury Management reporting 

 
The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126



5 

 

Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first 
and most important report covers: 
 

 the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

 the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are 
to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

 an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 
A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and 
will update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision (in addition, this Council 
receives quarterly update reports). 
 
An annual treasury report – This is a backward looking review document and  
provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual 
treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. 
 
Scrutiny 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny - 
Corporate and Community Committee and the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

1.3   Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 
 
The strategy for 2019/20 covers two main areas: 

  
Capital issues 

 the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 
 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 
Treasury management issues 
 the current treasury position; 
 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
 prospects for interest rates; 
 the borrowing strategy; 
 policy on borrowing in advance of need; 
 debt rescheduling; 
 the investment strategy; 
 creditworthiness policy; and 
 the policy on use of external service providers. 

 
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and MHCLG Investment Guidance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 127



6 

 

1.4    The Current Treasury Position at 31 December 2018 
 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 December 2018 comprised:  
 

Table 1: Current portfolio position 
 

  £m £m Average 
Rate % 

External Borrowing PWLB 14.00  2.51% 
 Local Authorities 9.50  0.75% 
 Market 1.00  11.13% 

Total Debt   24.50  

     
Investments     
Treasury Investments Banks  18.74 0.66% 
     
Non Treasury  Property Funds  20.74 3.10% 

Total Investments   39.48  

     

The Council’s portfolio of cash balances held at 31 December 2018 is set out in Table 
2 below with the latest valuation of property funds shown in Tables 3 and 4.  

 
Table 2: Counterparty List and Cash Balances at 31 December 2018 

  
Financial 
Institution 

Amount 
£’000 

Length of 
Investment 

Interest 
Rate 

Link colour rating 

HSBC 7,985 Call 0.43% Orange (12 months) 

CCLA 3,000 Call Variable Yellow (5 years) 

Santander 3,000 95 day notice 0.85% Red – 6 months 

Barclays 2,000 95 day notice 0.95% Red – 6 months 

Lloyds 

750 1 year 0.90% Orange (12 months) 
750 1 year 1.05% Orange (12 months) 
250 1 year 1.00% Orange (12 months) 

Bank of Scotland 1,000 1 year 0.85% Orange (12 months) 
 18,735    

 
Table 3: Property Fund Valuation (Initial £1m Investment) at 31 December 
2018 

 
Fund Initial 

Investment 
£’000 

Current  
Valuation 

£’000 

Capital  
Growth 

      £’000          % 

Black Rock 500 577 77  

Schroders 250 295 45  

Threadneedle 250 266 16  

 1,000 1,138 138 13.8 

 
Table 4: Property Fund Valuation (New Holdings) at 31 December 2018 

 
Fund Initial 

Investment 
£’000 

Current  
Valuation 

£’000 

Capital  
Growth 

      £’000          % 

Black Rock 4,000 4,036 36  

Schroders 4,000 4,061 61  

Threadneedle 3,989 3,863   (126)  

M&G 4,000 3,895 (105)  

AEW 4,000 3,749 (251)  

 19,989 19,604 (385) (1.93) 

 

Page 128



7 

 

The difference between initial investment and current valuation for new property fund 
holdings with Threadneedle, M&G and AEW reflect the premiums payable against the 
Funds’ ‘Net Asset Value’ price at the settlement date. 
 

1.5   Training 
 
The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  The 
Council has addressed this by targeted training courses for relevant members. 
 
In addition, Officer training is identified through the appraisal process and is also 
supplemented by both targeted training as necessary and technical advice from our 
treasury management advisors. 
 

1. 6  Treasury Management Consultants 
 
The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions as its external treasury 
management advisors. 
  
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon the services of our external service providers. All decisions will be 
undertaken with regards to all available information, including, but not solely, our 
treasury advisers. 
  
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which 
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to 
regular review.  
 
The scope of investments within the Council’s operations now includes both 
conventional treasury investments (the placing of residual cash from the Council’s 
functions), and Commercial Property Fund investments. The Council’s Property Fund 
acquisitions required specialist advice, which was provided by Link Asset Services. 
 
Link Asset Services were commissioned to provide a comprehensive report in 
October 2017 regarding the potential investment In Property Funds, with support 
provided via that report being supplemented by discussions at regular strategy 
meetings, discussions over the phone and attendance at workshops and seminars. 
MRP and Investment Guidance was updated after the above report was submitted (in 
February 2018) and these changes have been covered at seminars, workshops and 
strategy meetings. Support was also provided during the Property Fund Selection 
process. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 129



8 

 

 
 
2.      The Capital Prudential Indicators 2018/19 to 2023/24  

  

2.1    Introduction  
  

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to adopt the CIPFA Prudential 
Code and produce prudential indicators.  Each indicator either summarises the 
expected capital activity or introduces limits upon that activity, reflecting the outcome 
of the Council’s underlying capital appraisal systems.  This report updates currently 
approved indicators.    
  

2.2   The Capital Expenditure Plans   
 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential 
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital 
expenditure plans. Capital expenditure decisions must have regard to:  
  

 service objectives (e.g. strategic planning);  
 stewardship of assets (e.g. asset management planning); 
 value for money (e.g. option appraisal);  
 prudence and sustainability (e.g. implications for external borrowing and whole 

life costing);    
 affordability (e.g. implications for council tax);  
 practicality (e.g. the achievability of the forward plan).  

 
The revenue consequences of capital expenditure need to be paid for from the 
Council’s own resources.    
  

Capital expenditure can be paid for immediately (by applying capital resources such 
as capital grants and contributions or by use of revenue resources), but if these 
resources are insufficient any residual capital expenditure will add to the Council’s 
underlying borrowing need, measured as the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  
  
The Council is asked to approve the summary capital expenditure projections below. 
The current estimate for 2018/19 is subject to change and will be finalised as part of 
year end accounts process.   
 

Table 1: Estimates of Capital Expenditure and Financing  

 
During December 2018, the Property Funds were part-financed from PWLB long term 
borrowing, at fixed rates averaging 2.5% for 50 years.  

 ‘17/18 
Actual 
£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est 

£’000. 

20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 

Capital Expenditure        

     Services 2,215  2,185 6,366 831 638 360 300 

     Property Funds - 20,000 - - - - - 

Total 2,215 22,185 6,366 831 638 360 300 

        

Financed by:        

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 1,989 

 
1,324 

 
4,367 

 
439 

 
439 280 280 

Revenue Resources 226 861 1,999 392 199 80 20 

Net financing need 
for the year - 

 
20,000 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- - - 

Page 130



9 

 

 
It should be noted that as in-year changes to the Capital Programme are made, their 
impact on the prudential indicators will be reported via interim reports to both Cabinet 
and the Audit and Governance Committee.  
 

2.3  The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)  
 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has 
not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a 
measure of the Council’s indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need.  Any 
capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid for through a 
revenue or capital resource, will increase the CFR.   
 

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with 
each asset’s life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they 
are used. The Council’s MRP policy is shown at 2.4. 
   
The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:  

  
Table 2: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement  

 
Given the recent spending, and borrowing, on Capital Property Funds, there is a clear 
expectation that, should there be any part or full disposals, consideration will be given 
in the first instance to earmarking part or all of the receipt to reduce the CFR (and 
associated borrowing). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 ‘17/18 
Actual 
£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est. 

£’000 

‘20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 

Capital Financing Requirement 

Total CFR 459 20,459 20,459 20,459 20,459 20,459 20,459 

Movement in CFR - 20,000 - - - - - 

        

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need 
for the year 

 
- 

 
20,000 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

MRP and other 
financing 
movements 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Movement in CFR - 20,000 - - - - - 

Page 131



10 

 

 
2.4    Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement  

 
If it has a positive Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) the Council is required to 
consider paying off an element of the accumulated positive sum through a charge to 
revenue (known as the Minimum Revenue Provision - MRP).  
 
MHCLG regulations require the full Council to approve an MRP Statement in 
advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as there 
is a prudent provision.  The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP 
Statement for 2019/20 - 
 
From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be either: 
 

 asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any expenditure 
capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction); or 
 

 depreciation method – MRP will follow standard depreciation accounting 
procedures. 

 
These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the 
asset’s life.  
 
Assets held for Investment purposes 
 
Where the Council holds investment assets it will determine the amount of MRP on 
the basis of each holding and how any repayment of debt will be made at the time 
that any borrowing falls due to be repaid.  
 
The Council will monitor the performance of its Property Fund holdings on a regular 
basis with performance reported to Audit and Governance Committee quarterly. A 
decision will then be taken at the end of the financial year as to the appropriate level 
of MRP required (for example, if an estimated useful life of 20 years was used, MRP 
of up to £1m p.a. would be payable; this would be £0.4m p.a. if 50 years was used). 
 
MRP Overpayments 
 
A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP Guidance was the allowance that 
any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue provision (MRP), voluntary 
revenue provision or overpayments, can, if needed, be reclaimed in later years if 
deemed necessary or prudent.  In order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in the 
budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative overpayment made each year.  Up to 
31 March 2019 there have been no such overpayments. 
 
Voluntary Revenue Provision 
 
The Council can also undertake additional voluntary payments if it chooses (Voluntary 
Revenue Provision - VRP). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



11 

 

 
2.5    Core Funds and expected investment balances  

  

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an 
ongoing impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from 
new sources (asset sales, etc).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end 
balances for each resource and anticipated day-to-day cash flow balances (these 
balances will either be held as cash or cash equivalents or be used to support internal 
borrowing).  
  

Table 3: Expected Investment Position* 
 

 ‘17/18 
Act. 

£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est. 

£’000 

‘20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 

General Fund 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Earmarked Reserves 8,741 9,820 10,175 11,199 12,372 13,577 14,699 
BTAC 286 286 286 286 286 286 286 

Capital Receipts 239 239 239 239 239 239 239 

Capital Grants 768 598 329 329 329 329 329 
Provisions 1,254 540 550 784 784 784 784 
Collection Fund (308) (308) - - - - - 
Total Core Funds 12,980 13,175 13,579 14,837 16,010 17,215 18,337 
Working Capital (209) (209) (209) (209) (209) (209) (209) 
Surplus Capital 
Resources  

 
541 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Internal Borrowing - (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) 

Expected Investments  
13,312 

 
8,966 

 
9,370 

 
10,628 

 
11,801 

 
13,006 

 
14,128 

Increase/(decrease) in 
expected investments 

 
- 
 

 
(4,346) 

 
404 

 
1,258 

 
1,173 

 
1,205 

 
1,122 

 
*balances shown are estimated year end figures and will fluctuate throughout the 
year  

  
2.6.   Affordability Prudential Indicators  

  

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the 
impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council 
is asked to approve the following indicators: 
  

         Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  
 
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

Table 4: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  
 

% ‘17/18 
Act. 

‘18/19 
Est. 

‘19/20 
Est. 

‘20/21 
Est. 

‘21/22 
Est. 

‘22/23 
Est. 

‘23/24 
Est. 

Services 0.41 0.11 0.26 (0.17) (0.52) (0.69) (1.17) 

Property Funds (0.43) (4.58) (5.69) (6.99) (6.97) (7.08) (7.25) 

Total (0.02) (4.47) (5.43) (7.16) (7.49) (7.77) (8.42) 

  

Page 133



12 

 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in 
this budget report. 

3.     Borrowing  
  
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s 
cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that 
sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and the Council’s capital 
strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital 
plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers 
the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions 
and the annual investment strategy. 
  

3.1    Current Portfolio Position 
  
The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2018, with forward projections 
are summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the treasury 
management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital 
Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  
 

Table 1: Current Portfolio Position 
 

£’000 ‘17/18 
Act. 

£’000 

‘18/19 
Est. 

£’000 

‘19/20 
Est. 

£’000 

‘20/21 
Est. 

£’000 

‘21/22 
Est. 

£’000 

‘22/23 
Est. 

£’000 

‘23/24 
Est. 

£’000 
External Debt        

Debt at 1 April 1,000 1,000 16,459 16,459 16,459 16,459 16,459 

Anticipated change in 
debt 

 
- 

 
15,459 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March 

 
1,000 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

 
459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

 
20,459 

(Under)/ over 
borrowing 

 
541 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

 
(4,000) 

  
Within the above figures the level of debt relating to Property Fund acquisition 
investment is: 
  
 ‘17/18 

Act. 
‘18/19 
Est. 

‘19/20 
Est. 

‘20/21 
Est. 

‘21/22 
Est. 

‘22/23 
Est. 

‘23/24 
Est. 

Actual Debt at 31 
March £’000 

 
1,000 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

 
16,459 

Percentage of total 
external debt % 

 
- 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
93.92% 

 
Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to 
ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One of these 
is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short 
term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any 
additional CFR for 2019/20 and the following two financial years.  This allows some 
flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not 
undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.     
 
The Chief Finance Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this 
budget report.   

Page 134



13 

 

 
 
 
3.2    Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

 
The operational boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not 
normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the 
CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability 
to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources. 
 

Table 2: Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 

 ‘18/19 
Est. 
£’m 

‘19/20 
Est. 
£’m 

‘20/21 
Est. 
£’m 

‘21/22 
Est. 
£’m 

‘22/23 
Est. 
£’m 

‘23/24 
Est. 
£’m 

Debt 22 22 22 22 22 22 

Other long term liabilities - - - - - - 

Total 22 22 22 22 22 22 

  
The authorised limit for external debt. This is a key prudential indicator and 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a legal limit 
beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by 
the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be 
afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. 

 
a. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 

Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either 
the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this 
power has not yet been exercised. 

 
b. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit: 

 
Table 3: Authorised Limit for External Debt 

 
 ‘18/19 

Est. 
£’m 

‘19/20 
Est. 
£’m 

‘20/21 
Est. 
£’m 

‘21/22 
Est. 
£’m 

‘22/23 
Est. 
£’m 

‘23/24 
Est. 
£’m 

Debt 25 25 25 25 25 25 

Other long term liabilities - - - - - - 

Total 25 25 25 25 25 25 

  

3.3    Maturity structure of borrowing 

 
Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s 
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for 
upper and lower limits.  The Council is asked to approve the following treasury 
indicators and limits:  
 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 
2019/20 

  

 Lower Upper 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years   0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate   

Page 135



14 

 

borrowing 2019/20 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

3.4    Prospects for Interest Rates 
  
The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of 
their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The 
following table gives our central view. 
 

 
  

The flow of generally positive economic statistics after the quarter ended 30 June 
meant that it came as no surprise that the MPC came to a decision on 2 August to 
make the first increase in Bank Rate above 0.5% since the financial crash, from 0.5% 
to 0.75%. Growth became increasingly strong during 2018 until slowing significantly 
during the last quarter. At their November quarterly Inflation Report meeting, the MPC 
left Bank Rate unchanged, but expressed some concern at the Chancellor’s fiscal 
stimulus in his Budget, which could increase inflationary pressures.  However, it is 
unlikely that the MPC would increase Bank Rate in February 2019, ahead of the 
deadline in March for Brexit. On a major assumption that Parliament and the EU 
agree a Brexit deal in the first quarter of 2019, then the next increase in Bank Rate is 
forecast to be in May 2019, followed by increases in February and November 2020, 
before ending up at 2.0% in February 2022. 

 
The overall longer run future trend is for gilt yields, and consequently PWLB rates, to 
rise, albeit gently.  However, over about the last 25 years, we have been through a 
period of falling bond yields as inflation subsided to, and then stabilised at, much 
lower levels than before, and supported by central banks implementing substantial 
quantitative easing purchases of government and other debt after the financial crash 
of 2008.  Quantitative easing, conversely, also caused a rise in equity values as 
investors searched for higher returns and purchased riskier assets.  In 2016, we saw 
the start of a reversal of this trend with a sharp rise in bond yields after the US 
Presidential election in November 2016, with yields then rising further as a result of 
the big increase in the US government deficit aimed at stimulating even stronger 
economic growth. That policy change also created concerns around a significant rise 
in inflationary pressures in an economy which was already running at remarkably low 
levels of unemployment. Unsurprisingly, the Fed has continued on its series of robust 
responses to combat its perception of rising inflationary pressures by repeatedly 
increasing the Fed rate to reach 2.25 – 2.50% in December 2018.  It has also 
continued its policy of not fully reinvesting proceeds from bonds that it holds as a 
result of quantitative easing, when they mature.  We therefore saw US 10 year bond 
Treasury yields rise above 3.2% during October 2018 and also investors causing a 
sharp fall in equity prices as they sold out of holding riskier assets. However, by early 
January 2019, US 10-year bond yields had fallen back considerably on fears that the 
Fed was being too aggressive in raising interest rates and was going to cause a 
recession. Equity prices have been very volatile on alternating good and bad news 
during this period. 

Page 136



15 

 

 
 
 

From time to time, gilt yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to exceptional 
levels of volatility due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis, emerging market 
developments and sharp changes in investor sentiment. Such volatility could occur at 
any time during the forecast period. 

 
Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external 
influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts, (and MPC decisions), will be 
liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and developments in 
financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, especially 
in the EU, could also have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment earnings 
beyond the three-year time horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and 
political developments.  
 
Investment and borrowing rates 
 

 investment returns are likely to remain low during 2019/20 but to be on a gently 
rising trend over the next few years; 
 

 Borrowing interest rates have been volatile so far in 2018-19 and while they were on 
a rising trend during the first half of the year, they have backtracked since then until 
early January.  The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash 
balances has served well over the last few years.  However, this needs to be carefully 
reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when authorities may 
not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the 
refinancing of maturing debt; 

 There will remain a cost of carry, (the difference between higher borrowing costs and 
lower investment returns), to any new long-term borrowing that causes a temporary 
increase in cash balances as this position will, most likely, incur a revenue cost. 

3.5    Borrowing Strategy  
        
In recent years, the Council maintained a slightly over-borrowed position, and up to 
2017/18 borrowing consisted of a single market loan of £1m repayable in 2051.  
 
During 2018/19, to take advantage of the historically low borrowing rates available, 
the Council envisages it will increase the amount it borrowed by £15.459m, following 
purchases of holdings in Capital Commercial Property Funds. This was undertaken 
carefully and the rationale is set out in the Capital Strategy approved by Council on 30 
April 2018, in accordance with the Prudential Code and government guidance. At this 
stage the TMSS creates no capacity for further borrowing during the period to 
2023/24. Should any opportunities arise for potential further borrowing during this 
time, detailed reports will be brought to members for consideration and approval prior 
to any new borrowing being undertaken.  
  

3.6   Policy of borrowing in advance of need 
  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to profit 
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be 
within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered 
carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can 
ensure the security of such funds.  

 
 

Page 137



16 

 

 
 
 

4.     Annual Investment Strategy 
   

4.1    Investment Policy – Management of Risk 
 
The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both 
financial and non-financial investments.  This report deals solely with financial 
investments (as managed by the treasury management team).  Non-financial 
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the 
Capital Strategy (included in a separate report). 
 
The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: - 
 

 MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 
 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 

Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)  
 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018   

 
The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and 
then yield (return). 
 
The guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA places a high priority on the management 
of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk and defines 
its risk appetite by the following means: - 
 

1. Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of 
highly creditworthy counterparties.  This also enables diversification and thus 
avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor 
counterparties are the short term and long-term ratings.   

 
2. Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an 

institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector 
on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political 
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take 
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this 
consideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor 
on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that 
information on top of the credit ratings.  

 
3. Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price 

and other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to 
establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential 
investment counterparties. 

 
4. This authority has defined the list of types of investment instruments that 

the treasury management team are authorised to use. There are two lists in 
section 7 of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.  
 

 Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and 
subject to a maturity limit of one year. 

 

 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, 
may be for periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex 
instruments which require greater consideration by members and 
officers before being authorised for use. 

Page 138



17 

 

 
5. Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will limit 

the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 90% of the 
total investment portfolio, (see paragraph 4.3). 
 

6. Lending limits, Counterparty limits and duration are set out in paragraph 4.2. 
  

7. This authority will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are 
invested for longer than 365 days, (see paragraph 4.4).   

 
8. Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a 

specified minimum sovereign rating, (see paragraph 4.3). 
 

9. This authority has engaged external consultants, (see paragraph 1.5), to 
provide expert advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, 
liquidity and yield, given the risk appetite of this authority in the context of the 
expected level of cash balances and need for liquidity throughout the year. 

 
10. All investments will be denominated in sterling. 

 
11. As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2018/19 under IFRS 9, 

this authority will consider the implications of investment instruments which 
could result in an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and 
resultant charges at the end of the year to the General Fund. This change will, 
in the future, affect the accounting treatment in relation to the gain or loss on 
the value of the Council’s Property Fund Holdings. MHCLG guidance allows 
for a Mandatory Statutory Override to apply for a five year period to 2023/24 
which will see gains/losses taken to an unusable reserve with no resultant 
impact on the General Balance over this period.  

 
However, this authority will also pursue value for money in treasury management and 
will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for 
investment performance (see paragraph 4.5). Regular monitoring of investment 
performance will be carried out during the year. 
 
Changes in risk management policy from last year. 
 
These criteria are unchanged from last year.  
 

4.2    Creditworthiness Policy 
   
This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services. 
This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from 
the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s.  The 
credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  
 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 
 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 
 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 

countries. 
 
This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit Watches and credit Outlooks 
in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads 
for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to 
determine the suggested duration for investments.   
 

Page 139



18 

 

The Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands as 
a guide:  
 

 Yellow             5 years  

 Blue*               1 year  

 Orange 1 year 

 Red   6 months 

 Green   100 days  

 No Colour  not to be used 
 

*only applies to nationalised or semi-nationalised UK banks  
 
Counterparty limits are no more than £3m per counterparty and the counterparty 
group limit is £5m, with UK registered/domiciled banks, and for a period of no more 
than one year.  The only exception to the £3m individual limit is if due to cash flow 
reasons all counterparties are being used to their maximum limit then any residual 
balances will be deposited in the Council’s Call Account with HSBC. The balance on 
the call account should not exceed £5m.  
 
Paragraph 1.4 of this Strategy document gives the currently used Counterparties. 
Changes to the investment policy can be authorised by the Section 151 Officer or the 
Deputy Section 151 Officer and thereafter will be reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee. This is to cover exceptional circumstances so that instant 
decisions can be made in an environment which is both fluid and subject to high risk. 
 
Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term 
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of   F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be 
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower 
than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances, consideration will be 
given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to 
support their use. 
 
All credit ratings will be monitored on a daily basis. The Council is alerted to changes 
to ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services’ 
creditworthiness service.  
  

 if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will 
be withdrawn immediately; 
 

 in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and 
other market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided exclusively 
to it by Link Asset Services. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

  
Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition, this 
Council will also use market data and market information to help support its decision 
making process. 
 
UK banks – ring fencing 
The largest UK banks (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Medium-sized 
Enterprise (SME) deposits) are required, by UK law, to separate core retail banking 
services from their investment and international banking activities by 1st January 
2019. This is known as “ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in 
deposits are exempt, they can choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to the 
threshold already and so may come into scope in the future regardless. 

Page 140



19 

 

Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis. 
It mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in 
order to improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure. 
In general, simpler, activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank (RFB) will be 
focused on lower risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier” 
activities are required to be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank 
(NRFB). This is intended to ensure that an entity’s core activities are not adversely 
affected by the acts or omissions of other members of its group. 
 
While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the 
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council will continue to assess the 
new-formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with sufficiently 
high ratings (and any other metrics considered) will be considered for investment 
purposes. 
 

4.3   Country limits 
 
Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment 
portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors.   
 

1. Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that it will limit 
the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 90% of the 
total investment portfolio. 

2. Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use approved 
counterparties from the UK and from countries with a minimum sovereign 
credit rating of AA-. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as 
at the date of this report are shown below.  This list will be added to, or 
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.  

3. Other limits. In addition: 

 no more than 20% will be placed with any non-UK country at any time; 
 limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 
 sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness. 

 
   Approved Countries for Investment  

 

AAA                      

 Australia 

 Canada 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

 Netherlands  

 Norway 

 Singapore 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

 Finland 

 U.S.A. 

 

Page 141



20 

 

 

AA 

 Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

 France 

 Hong Kong 

 U.K. 

 

AA- 

 Belgium  

 Qatar 

 

4.4    Investment Strategy 
   

    In-house funds 
 
Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments 
up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for longer 
periods. While most cash balances are required in order to manage the ups and 
downs of cash flow, where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for 
longer periods, the value to be obtained from longer term investments will be carefully 
assessed. For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its 
instant access call account and notice accounts (30 day and 95 day) in order to 
benefit from the compounding of interest.  The Council’s core funds available for 
investment are detailed in Table 3, paragraph 2.5 of this strategy.  
 

 If it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time horizon 
being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most investments 
as being short term or variable. 
 

 Conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time period, 
consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for 
longer periods. 

 
    Investment return expectations 

 
Bank Rate is forecast to increase steadily but slowly over the next few years to reach 
2.00% by quarter 1 of 2022.  Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:  
 

 2018/19          0.75%   
 2019/20          1.25% 
 2020/21          1.50% 
 2021/22          2.00%   

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 142



21 

 

 
The Council is budgeting for investment returns over its Medium Term Financial 
Strategy as shown below:  

 
Year Cash 

Balances 
% 

Property 
Funds 

% 

2018/19 0.70 3.50 

2019/20 0.90 3.00 

2020/21 1.20 3.00 

2021/22 1.35 3.00 

2022/23 1.35 3.00 

2023/24 1.50 3.00 

  
The overall balance of risks to these forecasts is currently skewed to the upside and 
is dependent on how strong GDP growth turns out, how quickly inflation pressures 
rise and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively.   
 
Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater 
than 365 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements 
and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the 
availability of funds after each year-end. They relate at this stage to the capital 
investment in Property Funds.   
 
The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limit:  
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 365 days 

 ‘19/20 ‘20/21 ‘21/22 ‘22/23 ‘23/24 

Principal sums 
invested > 365 days 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
£21m 

 
4.5    Investment reporting  

 
At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report and a mid-year update report will also be 
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee.  Any significant issues on a 
quarterly basis will be reported as part of the quarterly Finance and Performance 
report to Cabinet and any issues of concern regarding governance (for example risks 
concerning counterparties) will be reported to the next meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 143



22 

 

 

5.    Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 
 
The table below shows in terms of governance arrangements the various levels of 
responsibility with regards to the treasury function. 

 
Table 1:  Treasury Management Governance Arrangements 

 

Area of Organisation Responsibilities 

1.Full Council 1.1  Approval of the annual Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement (TMSS) and any changes recommended by the 
Audit and Governance Committee 

2.Cabinet 2.1  Budget consideration and approval 
2.2  Updates on service and financial performance 

3.Overview and Scrutiny - 
Corporate and 
Community Committee 

3.1  Scrutiny of service and financial performance 

4. Audit and Governance 
Committee 

4.1  Approval of/amendments to the adopted clauses, 
TMSS and treasury management practices 
4.2  Reviewing the TMSS and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body 
4.3  Approval of the division of responsibilities 
4.4  Receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and 
ensuring recommendations are followed-up 
4.5  Approving the selection of external service providers 
and agreeing terms of appointment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



23 

 

 

6.    The Treasury Management Role of the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer) 

 
The S151 Officer’s main functions with regards to treasury are to:  

 recommend clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, review 
them regularly, and monitor compliance 

 submit regular treasury management policy reports 
 submit budgets and budget variations 
 receive and review management information reports 
 review the performance of the treasury management function 
 ensure the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 

effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function 
 ensure the adequacy of internal audit, and liaise with external audit; and 

recommend the appointment of external service providers 
 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, 

non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe  
 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent 

in the long term and provides value for money 
 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 

investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority 
 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure 

on non-financial assets and their financing 
 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not 

undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level 
of risk compared to its financial resources 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, 
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and 
long term liabilities 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including 
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial 
guarantees  

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk 
exposures taken on by an authority 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally 
provided, to carry out the above 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non 
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following: 

 
o Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and 

risk management criteria for any material non-treasury investment 
portfolios; 

  
o Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and 

schedules), including methodology and criteria for assessing the 
performance and success of non-treasury investments;          

  
o Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and 

schedules), including a statement of the governance requirements 
for decision making in relation to non-treasury investments; and 
arrangements to ensure that appropriate professional due diligence 
is carried out to support decision making; 

 
o Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), 

including where and how often monitoring reports are taken; 

  

Page 145



24 

 

o Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how 
the relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury 
investments will be arranged. 

7      Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk 
Management  

 
        7.1 APPENDIX: Specified and Non-Specified Investments 

 
 SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with 
maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where 
applicable. 

 

  Minimum ‘High Credit’ 
Criteria 

1 Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 

Government Secure 

2 Term deposits with credit rated 
banks and building societies with 
maturities up to one year  

 UK nationalised banks 

 UK part nationalised banks 

 Non-UK domiciled banks* 

Minimum Green colour rating – up to 
100 days 

3 Local Authorities with maturities up 
to one year  

High Security, although Local 
Authorities are not credit rated.  

4 Money Market Funds (CCLA) Minimum AAA rated by one of the 
rating agencies  

5 Business Reserve Accounts and 
Deposit Accounts with credit rated 
banks and building societies  

Minimum Green colour rating – up to 
100 days 

 
* A maximum of 20% of the total portfolio will be invested in non-UK domiciled 
banks operating in countries with a minimum sovereign rating of AA+. 

 
NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not meet the 
specified investment criteria.  A maximum of 90% will be held in aggregate in non-
specified investments.  

 

 Minimum Credit Criteria 

Term Deposits with credit rated deposit 
takers (UK banks and building 
societies). 

Minimum Orange or blue colour rating –in 
excess of 1 year. 

Callable Deposits with credit rated 
deposit takers (UK banks and building 
societies) with maturities greater than 
one year.  

Minimum Orange or blue colour rating –in 
excess of 1 year. 

Forward deals with credit rated deposit 
takers (UK banks and building 
societies)  

Minimum Orange or blue colour rating –in 
excess of 1 year. 

Property funds – in excess of one year* N/a – see comment below 

 
*The use of these instruments can be deemed capital expenditure, and as such will 
be an application (spending) of capital resources.   

 
 

Page 146



25 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 147



26 

 

7.2 APPENDIX: Interest Rate Forecasts 2019 – 2022 

PWLB rates and forecast shown below have taken into account the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012. 

 

P
age 148



 Boston Borough Council 
 

 1 

         Appendix 9 

 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2023/24 

 
2019/20 Pay Policy Statement 

 
This statement will be approved by the Council by the end of March annually. 
Any changes to this statement should be approved by Council.  
 
Overview 
Each local authority has the autonomy to take its own decisions on pay and 
pay policies. The 2019/20 statement reflects current practice and existing 
policies at Boston Borough Council. 
 
Legislation  
Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce a 
Pay Policy Statement for each financial year.  
 
Policy Statement 
We are committed to providing quality public services that provide value for 
money for our residents. In order to do this we must employ high quality staff 
and reward them appropriately and fairly. In today’s challenging economic 
climate we must also ensure that we control our employment costs. 
 
Remuneration of senior officers 
The Chief Officer Employment Panel has traditionally made recommendations 
to Council on the level of remuneration to be offered to new appointees. The 
Panel usually considers relevant evidence in relation to other salaries at the 
Council, budget constraints, market conditions e.g. recruitment difficulties and 
rates as well as other information when reaching a decision to make a 
recommendation. The Chief Officer Employment Panel has the delegated 
authority to appoint to Chief Officer posts other than for the Chief 
Executive/Head of Paid Service which is a decision reserved for Full Council.  
 
Full council should be offered the opportunity to vote before large salary 
packages are offered in respect of a new appointment. The Secretary of State 
considers that £100,000 is the right level for that threshold to be set. For this 
purpose, salary packages should include salary, any bonuses, fees or 
allowances routinely payable to the appointee and any benefits in kind to 
which the officer is entitled as a result of their employment.  
 
Information on the remuneration of senior officers can be found in the annual 
statement of accounts and under the Transparency Agenda on the Council’s 
website.  
 
Chief Executive Remuneration 
The terms and conditions of Chief Executives are generally determined by the 
Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Executives with variation at a 
local level.  
 

Page 149



 Boston Borough Council 
 

 2 

 
The actual salary paid to the Chief Executive is published annually in the 
Statement of Accounts.  
 
The salary is a ‘spot’ salary which has no automatic increases except when 
reviewed by the Chief Officer Employment Panel who may recommend 
increases to Council. Any such increases may be given due to exceptional 
performance or to retain an attractive salary package at the market rate.  
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the JNC 
once agreed at a national level.  
 
The level of remuneration set for the post of Chief Executive encompasses 
consideration of a number of elements including the size of the organisation 
and the population to which services are delivered and a number of other 
factors including market conditions.  
 
There are currently no provisions for bonus or performance related pay 
outside of the policies set out above.  
 
Chief Officer Remuneration (including deputies)  
 
The salary is a ‘spot’ salary which has no automatic increases except when 
reviewed by the Chief Officer Employment Panel who may recommend 
increases to council. Any such increases may be given due to exceptional 
performance or to retain an attractive salary package at the market rate.  
 
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the Joint 
Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers once agreed at a national 
level.  
 
There are currently no provisions for bonus or performance related pay. 
Additional pay will only be paid in exceptional circumstances where significant 
additional work has to be undertaken outside of the course of normal duties.  
 
The actual salaries paid to Chief Officers are published annually in the 
Statement of Accounts under the transparency agenda.  
 
Joint Authority Duties  
Where a senior officer takes up a post shared with one or more authorities the 
salary costs (including on costs) are to be shared with each authority. The 
share will depend on each circumstance and will be agreed with the relevant 
Chief Executives. Where additional responsibility is given, an increase in pay 
or honorarium may be awarded to reflect the size of the additional 
duties/responsibilities. The cost of the increase is normally added to the basic 
salary and the total is shared between partners or apportioned accordingly. 
 
Returning Officer Fees 

The fees and charges for European, UK Parliamentary and County Council 
elections are set by external bodies at each relevant election however, there 
are no express statutory provisions governing fees payable to Returning 

Page 150



 Boston Borough Council 
 

 3 

Officers for local government elections. Historically, the setting of fees for the 
administration of District and Parish elections have therefore been the 
responsibility of the Democratic Services Manager based on the Lincolnshire 
countywide scale of fees and reviewed on an annual basis.  
 

The Returning Officer’s fees are regarded as a special responsibility payment 
in relation to the independent duties carried out. They are personal to the 
Returning Officer and in addition to salary for performing the duties which a 
Returning Officer is required to perform.  
 
Employment of officers in receipt of a local government pension scheme 
payment and/or redundancy/severance pay from this or another 
authority  
Any appointment to a post at Boston Borough Council is made upon merit and 
is subject to the normal pre-employment checks undertaken for all prospective 
employees. Provisions relating to redundancy pay in the Redundancy 
Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local Government, etc) (Modification) 
Order 1999 still applies. The Government may be bringing in rules during 
2018 regarding the recovery of exit/compensation payments for senior officers 
where they subsequently take up other paid work in a local authority. If these 
rules are brought into force mid-year our Pay Policy shall be deemed to 
comply with any new rules and will be updated for the following financial year.  
 
Contract for Services 
All of the facts will be taken into account where a former employee is put 
forward or puts themselves forward for a contract for services. Where work is 
sought under a contract for services from officers in receipt of severance pay 
from this authority each situation will be judged upon merit however such a 
contract would only be offered in exceptional circumstances.   
 
Other posts may be filled under a contract for services where a business case 
exists for doing so. Due regard should be paid to the requirements of Her 
Majesty’s Revenues & Customs and IR35 regulations and the particular 
requirements on public sector employers when making any such 
arrangements. Any appointment will be dealt with on a case by case basis. 
The ‘recovery regulations’ will need to be considered in any such decision – 
see the section on ‘Recovery Regulations’ for more information.  
 
Workforce Remuneration  
We have adopted a set of local terms and conditions for the whole workforce 
which are supplemented by those set out under the ‘Green Book’ (National 
Agreement on Pay & Conditions of Service – National Joint Council for Local 
Government Services). Local terms will override terms in the Green Book as 
set out in Boston Borough Council Terms & Conditions of Service 2014. 
 
Any benefits associated with the post are set out in the Boston Borough 
Council Terms and Conditions of Service 1st April 2014.  
 
From 1st April 2014 we have a pay and grading structure which consists of a 
single pay scale with broad-banded grades ranging from Grade 1 to Grade 8 

Page 151



 Boston Borough Council 
 

 4 

and a Head of Service band with single spot salaries within the band. All posts 
below Head of Service have and continue to be evaluated using the Local 
Government Single Status Job Evaluation Scheme (LGJES). Individual jobs 
are allocated a number of points following evaluation and allocated a grade 
according to the number of points.  
 
Starting salaries are normally at probationary point of the relevant pay grade 
unless market or other relevant factors such as skills and experience exist to 
create a business case to pay at a higher point within the grade. Any such 
business case should be recorded in writing and retained. 
 
Upper band points are available where an agreed criterion is met related to 
market forces and recruitment/retention matters. The relevant policies should 
be complied with before any upper band payments can be made. 
 
Any cost of living increases are normally given after notification from the 
National Joint Council for Local Government Services once agreed at a 
national level.  
 
Lowest Pay 
The lowest pay point in this scale at 1st April 2019 will be £9.00 per hour.  
 
The Council does not set a formula for the relationship between the lowest 
and highest paid employees. Rather it monitors the levels of pay to ensure 
value for money, fair pay and market conditions.  
 
Apprenticeships  
The Apprentice rate at the Council from April 2019 will be £3.90 per hour for 
the first 12 months. Beyond 12 months the rate for an apprentice is the 
National Minimum Wage for their age group.  
 
Pay multiples 
The highest pay is approximately 4.99 times the median average full time 
equivalent pay at the council (as at 31st March 2019).  
 
The Council does not have a policy to reach a specific pay multiple across the 
workforce.  
 
The use of a single pay spine and an analytical job evaluation scheme 
provides pay transparency across the workforce and set levels of 
remuneration. The same core terms and conditions of employment apply to 
the whole workforce regardless of seniority.  
  
Honorarium/Acting Up 
Where temporary additional duties/responsibilities are given to an existing 
employee, consideration of payment of an honorarium is usually undertaken. 
The amount payable is authorised by the relevant Head of Service following 
an assessment of the exact duties/responsibilities and may be a percentage 
of the difference between the salary of the employee and the post that they 
are covering if only part of the duties are being undertaken or a full increase to 

Page 152



 Boston Borough Council 
 

 5 

a higher salary if all duties are being undertaken. Honoraria are only to be 
used on a temporary basis and must be reviewed regularly to ensure 
appropriateness.  
 
Special responsibility payments 
Additional payments may be made in addition to basic salary for additional job 
duties which may not always form part of the core job role. Where these do 
form part of the core duties of the role they will be included and evaluated 
under the relevant Job Evaluation Scheme where available rather than a 
continued supplement being payable. Any such payments are based upon an 
assessment of responsibility, market factors and/or a % of time spent on any 
such duties and are temporary being reviewed at least annually, if not more 
frequently. 
 
Pay flexibility  
Where necessary the use of ‘market supplements’ is used to deal with any 
recruitment or retention difficulties. Such payments may be ongoing or a ‘one-
off’. The use of such practices only applies where a business case has been 
prepared and signed off by the relevant director in conjunction with finance 
approval. Any ongoing supplements should be reviewed regularly and at least 
every 3 years, to ensure there is still a business case to continue payment. 
Employment contracts should be explicit in this regard.  
 
Early termination of employment  
See the Redundancy & Reorganisation Policy and the Pensions & Retirement 
Policy for more information. Severance payments may be made where the 
decision is in the best interests of the Council. Where these are outside of the 
budgetary framework the appropriate approval must be sought. Currently any 
severance packages of over £100,000 (including pay in lieu of notice, 
redundancy pay, pension entitlements, holiday pay, fees or allowances paid) 
should be approved by Full Council and reported in this detail.  
 
Ex gratia payments 
Ex gratia payments may be made in exceptional cases and could be made in 
respect of business continuity or out of pocket costs to employees The normal 
Council procedures relating to budgets are followed in any such cases and 
approval made by the relevant Corporate Management Team member.   
 
Payments of arrears in respect of Job Evaluation or other re-grading 
In line with the Council’s Job Evaluation Scheme where a person is appointed 
to a new position or substantive and permanent post an evaluation should be 
undertaken after six months service within the role. This is to allow the 
appropriate grade for the post to be established in a timely manner. Where an 
evaluation results in a grade increase the value of the arrears will be limited to 
a period not exceeding 3 years.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 153



 Boston Borough Council 
 

 6 

Pension provision 
All employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme. The 
Scheme requires contributions from employees based up on their earnings 
and from 1st April 2014 is a career average scheme. The employer contributes 
a percentage of pay to the pension fund. This percentage is determined by 
the administering authority based upon actuarial assessments and for 
2019/20 this  will be 27.2% in total (made up of a primary percentage rate and 
a secondary rate deficit repayment lump sum per annum). 
 
 
Elections 
Any employees putting themselves forward for any election duties will be 
required to take relevant leave. Pay for elections work will usually be 
determined by the Returning Officer based upon the Lincolnshire countywide 
scale of fees. 
 
Relocation 
Relocation assistance may be paid to new appointees up to a maximum of the 
Her Majesty’s Revenue & Custom threshold rate. Further details can be found 
in the relevant policy.  

Page 154



         APPENDIX 10 

 

Consultation papers published alongside the provisional finance settlement 

 

Review of Local Authorities’ Relative Needs and Resources 

This consultation seeks views on the approach to measuring the relative needs and 
resources of local authorities, which will determine new baseline funding allocations for local 
authorities in England in 2020/21. 

This consultation proposes to :- 

simplify the assessment of local authorities’ relative needs;  

considers the type of adjustment that will be made to an authority’s relative needs 
assessment to take account of the relative resources available to them to fund local 
services; and  

proposes a set of principles that will be used to design potential transitional 
arrangements and examines how the baseline for the purposes of transition should 
be established. 

Documents can be found at -  

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authorities-relative-needs-and-

resources  

 

 

 

Business Rates Retention reform 

This consultation seeks views on proposals for sharing risk and reward, managing volatility 
in income and setting up the reformed business rates retention system. The reform of the 
business rates retention system will sit alongside wider changes to the local government 
finance system which the government aims to introduce in 2020. 

Documents can be found at -  

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/business-rates-retention-reform  

 

 

 

Both consultations close on the 21 February 2019   

Page 155

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authorities-relative-needs-and-resources
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authorities-relative-needs-and-resources
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/business-rates-retention-reform


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
*all comments appear as received.  

          APPENDIX 11 

 

Budget – Public Consultation Results 2019/20 

 

 

Methodology 

 

Draft budget papers were made available online between Wednesday 9 January 2019 and Friday 8 

February 2019 for comment and consideration.  

 

The documentation was published on the council website, posted on social media and sent to all 

Parish Councils. 

 

45 responses were received. 

 

 

Headline Results 

 

Highest rated ‘most important services’ that Boston Borough Council provides: 

 

 Waste and Recycling Collection (49%) 

 Community Safety – CCTV, anti-social behaviour, domestic violence and abuse (36%) 

 Cleaning roads/footpaths and emptying litter bins (31%)  

 

Highest rated ‘least important services’ that Boston Borough Council provides: 

 

 Community Development – working with community and voluntary groups (36%) 

 Leisure Services – Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre and health (27%) 

 Public Toilets (24%) 

 

 

Full Results 

 

Please read the draft Budget Report 2019/20 and the associated appendices, if you have any 

comments on the draft budget, please comment* below.  

 

 No comments 

 Perhaps a link to the budget report would be helpful? 

 Please support Sport, Leisure and Health.  Without these things the buildings blocks of 

society break down.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 157



2 
*all comments appear as received.  

 

Please can you indicate what you feel are the THREE MOST important services the Boston Borough 

Council provides. 

 

Services n* % of total number of 
surveys 

Building Control 0 0% 

Car Parks 4 9% 

Cleaning roads/footpaths and emptying litter bins 14 31% 

Community Development – working with community and voluntary groups 1 2% 

Community Safety – CCTV, anti-social behaviour, domestic violence and 
abuse 

16 36% 

Crematorium and Cemetery 0 0% 

Economic Development – creating job, attracting inward investment and 
developing the skill market 

5 11% 

Environmental Crime Enforcement (litter, dog fouling, fly tipping)  5 11% 

Emergency Planning and Business Continuity 1 2% 

Environmental Health – food safety, pollution and noise 6 13% 

Housing needs – homelessness support, managing the housing register and 
the home choice bid system 

8 18% 

Leisure Services – Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre and health  6 13% 

Licensing – Taxi, entertainment and alcohol, animal welfare and charity 
collections 

1 2% 

Markets – Wednesday and Saturday markets 8 18% 

Parks and Open Spaces (including play areas) 5 11% 

Planning – Planning applications, planning enforcement, planning policy  4 9% 

Private Sector Housing – monitoring of standards in privately rented 
accommodation 

2 4% 

Public Toilets 5 11% 

Town Centre – street furniture, events 10 22% 

Waste and Recycling collections  22 49% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 158



3 
*all comments appear as received.  

Please can you indicate what you feel are the THREE LEAST important services that Boston 

Borough Council provides 

 

Services n* % of total number of 
surveys 

Building Control 5 11% 

Car Parks 10 22% 

Cleaning roads/footpaths and emptying litter bins 5 11% 

Community Development – working with community and voluntary groups 14 31% 

Community Safety – CCTV, anti-social behaviour, domestic violence and 
abuse 

2 4% 

Crematorium and Cemetery 5 11% 

Economic Development – creating job, attracting inward investment and 
developing the skill market 

7 16% 

Environmental Crime Enforcement (litter, dog fouling, fly tipping)  9 20% 

Emergency Planning and Business Continuity 6 13% 

Environmental Health – food safety, pollution and noise 0 0% 

Housing needs – homelessness support, managing the housing register and 
the home choice bid system 

3 7% 

Leisure Services – Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre and health  12 27% 

Licensing – Taxi, entertainment and alcohol, animal welfare and charity 
collections 

2 4% 

Markets – Wednesday and Saturday markets 8 18% 

Parks and Open Spaces (including play areas) 5 11% 

Planning – Planning applications, planning enforcement, planning policy  0 0% 

Private Sector Housing – monitoring of standards in privately rented 
accommodation 

7 16% 

Public Toilets 11 24% 

Town Centre – street furniture, events 7 16% 

Waste and Recycling collections  4 9% 

 

Facebook Comments*. 

 

A number of comments were also received on the Facebook post: -  

 

 No buses, road sweeping, grass cutting and street lights so no increase 

 Sorry forgot no police 

 Please take note all I repeat all our services are a necessity so please no more cuts, switch 

the lights back on and give us value for extortionate taxes we pay!!  May add that the 

‘survey’ is unsatisfactory ie. From a list of vital services you are compelled only to pick out 3! 

 Maybe fixing CCTV cameras or installing new ones?! My parents house was broken into this 

week and surprise surprise the cameras near Peter Paine don’t work!  Police state they 

haven’t done for a while!! Also street lights… have nay of your councillors finished work late 

and had to bike/walk home alone?  With the ever increasing crime rate in this town, I think 

having street lights is of upmost importance to maintain everyone’s safety! 

 Please correct me if I am wrong…. I have heard there is to be potential increase in council tax 

looming, supposedly to ‘balance the books’ if this is true then why or how has that 

happened?  Boston has more people living in the town now than ever before? We have had 

Page 159



4 
*all comments appear as received.  

a maximum or close to increase in council tax payments not too long ago, we have a lot of 

services cut already i.e lights switch off, grass not being cut, no Christmas lights (consortium 

of local people and businesses funded ours for the past 2 years, otherwise we wouldn’t have 

had any), roads are a mess.... crime rates are at an all time high and even more worryingly 

serious crime that makes the national press and news channels is giving a massively bad 

image for the town... So pardon for me for asking, where is the money we are already paying 

going? Or is the money being badly managed? I fail to see anywhere this extra income is/has 

being spent in Boston? However, I do see Lincoln have a lot of building works going on most 

of the time to make their city a nice place to visit, they have a new bypass being built... 

wonder how that’s being funded? Can you answer what councillors expenses have been cut? 

It’s about time B.B.C stood up for the people in this town, we all (mostly) pay into it and 

deserve far better than what we’re getting to be frank 

 Could you provide a link to the actual budget rather than just survey please? – link to reports 

given  

 What do we actually get for this money seams to me not a lot 

 A safer town for our families and children     

 Yeah right like you will take any notice of the Public! 

 This not what what it appears to be, the questions are to ambiguous and pointed ! 

 

Page 160


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	3 PRE-APPLICATION PROTOCOL REVIEW
	4 DEFINING COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY GROUPS
	5 BTAC PLAY AREA RECOMMENDATIONS
	Appendix A.  Consultation
	Appendix B.  Play Area Signs

	6 BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019-20  -  2023-24
	Appendix 1.  Summary by Portfolio Holder
	Appendix 2.  Summary by Service Area
	Appendix 3.  Corporate Charging Policy
	Appendix 4.   Fees and Charges
	Appendix 5.  Reserves Schedule
	Appendix 6.  Asset Strategy
	Appendix 7.  Capital Strategy
	Appendix 8.  Treasury Management
	Appendix 9.  Pay Policy
	Appendix 10.  Consultation
	Appendix 11.  Public Consultation


